
South Coast 

Air Quality Management District 
  21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, CA 91765 

(909) 396-2000,  www.aqmd.gov

HYBRID MOBILE SOURCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Committee Members 

Chair Vanessa Delgado, Committee Chair 
Supervisor Holly J. Mitchell, Committee Vice Chair 

Mayor Pro Tem Larry McCallon 
Supervisor V. Manuel Perez 

Councilmember Nithya Raman 
Mayor Pro Tem Carlos Rodriguez 

June 20, 2025 ♦ 9:00 a.m. 

TELECONFERENCE LOCATIONS: 

Office of Senator  

Vanessa Delgado 

944 South Greenwood Ave. 

Montebello, CA 90640 

Office of Supervisor 

V. Manuel Perez

78015 Main Street, Suite 205 

La Quinta, CA 92253 

Yorba Linda Public Library 

Study Room 2 

4852 Lakeview Avenue 

Yorba Linda, CA  92886 

Los Angeles City Hall 

200 N. Spring Street, Room 

415  

(Conference Room) 

Los Angeles, CA 90012 

Kenneth Hahn Hall of 

Administration 

500 W. Temple Street 

HOA Room 372
Los Angeles, CA 90012

A meeting of the South Coast Air Quality Management District Mobile Source Committee 

will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Friday, June 20, 2025, through a hybrid format of in-person 

attendance in the Dr. William A. Burke Auditorium at the South Coast AQMD 

Headquarters, 21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, California, and remote attendance via 

videoconferencing and by telephone. Please follow the instructions below to join the 

meeting remotely. 

Please refer to the South Coast AQMD’s website for information regarding the format of the 

meeting, updates if the meeting is changed to a full remote via webcast format, and details on 

how to participate: 

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/news-events/meeting-agendas-minutes 

ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

(Instructions provided at bottom of the agenda) 

Join Zoom Webinar Meeting - from PC or Laptop 

https://scaqmd.zoom.us/j/94589960931 

Zoom Webinar ID: 945 8996 0931 (applies to all) 

Teleconference Dial In 

+1 669 900 6833

http://www.aqmd.gov/
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/news-events/meeting-agendas-minutes
https://scaqmd.zoom.us/j/94589960931


South Coast AQMD  -2- June 20, 2025 

Mobile Source Committee 

One tap mobile 

+16699006833,94589960931#

Audience will be allowed to provide public comment in person 

or through Zoom connection or telephone. 

PUBLIC COMMENT WILL STILL BE TAKEN 

AGENDA 

Members of the public may address this body concerning any agenda item before or during 

consideration of that item (Gov't. Code Section 54954.3(a)). If you wish to speak, raise your 

hand on Zoom or press Star 9 if participating by telephone. All agendas for regular meetings are 

posted at South Coast AQMD Headquarters, 21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, California, at 

least 72 hours in advance of the regular meeting. Speakers may be limited to three (3) minutes 

total for all items on the agenda. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Items 1-2) 

1. Update on Proposed Rule 2304 - Commercial Marine Ports

(No Motion Required)

Staff will provide an update on Proposed Rule 2304 – Commercial Marine

Ports, and its companion fee rule Proposed Rule 316.1

Ian MacMillan 

Assistant Deputy 

Executive Officer 

2. Update on AB 2766 Annual Report

(No Motion Required)

Staff will provide an update on the AB 2766 Annual Report.

Lane Garcia 

Program Supervisor 

WRITTEN REPORTS (Items 3-5) 

3. Rule 2305 Implementation Status Report: Warehouse Actions and

Investments to Reduce Emissions (WAIRE) Program

(No Motion Required)

This report summarizes the status of the WAIRE Program implementation

during the period of May 1, 2025 through May 31, 2025, including

outreach, assistance, implementation and compliance activities as well as

anticipated actions for the following month.

Ian MacMillan 

Assistant Deputy 

Executive Officer 

4. Rule 2202 Activity Report: Rule 2202 Summary Status Report

(No Motion Required)

Status Report summarizes activities for the period of May 1 to May 31,

2025. The report identifies the plan submittal activities by compliance

option and lists Air Quality Investment Program funds collected by county.

Ian MacMillan 

Assistant Deputy 

Executive Officer 



South Coast AQMD  -3- June 20, 2025 

Mobile Source Committee 

5. Intergovernmental Review of Environmental Documents and CEQA

Lead Agency Projects

(No Motion Required)

This report provides a listing of environmental documents prepared by other

public agencies seeking review by South Coast AQMD between May 1,

2025 and May 31, 2025, and proposed projects for which South Coast

AQMD is acting as lead agency pursuant to CEQA.

Sarah Rees, Ph.D. 

Deputy Executive 

Officer 

OTHER MATTERS 

6. Other Business

Any member of the Committee, or its staff, on his or her own initiative or in

response to questions posed by the public, may ask a question for clarification,

may make a brief announcement or report on his or her own activities, provide a

reference to staff regarding factual information, request staff to report back at a

subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or may take action to direct staff to

place a matter of business on a future agenda.  (Gov’t. Code Section 54954.2)

7. Public Comment Period

At the end of the regular meeting agenda, an opportunity is provided for the

public to speak on any subject within the Committee's authority that is not on the

agenda. Each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes.

8. Next Meeting Date: Friday, August 15, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Americans with Disabilities Act and Language Accessibility 

Disability and language-related accommodations can be requested to allow participation in the 

Mobile Source Committee meeting. The agenda will be made available, upon request, in 

appropriate alternative formats to assist persons with a disability (Gov’t Code Section 

54954.2(a)). In addition, other documents may be requested in alternative formats and 

languages. Any disability or language-related accommodation must be requested as soon as 

practicable. Requests will be accommodated unless providing the accommodation would result 

in a fundamental alteration or undue burden to the South Coast AQMD. Please contact Jacob 

Allen at (909) 396-2282 from 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., Tuesday through Friday, or send the 

request to jallen2@aqmd.gov. 

Document Availability 

All documents (i) constituting non-exempt public records, (ii) relating to an item on an agenda 

for a regular meeting, and (iii) having been distributed to at least a majority of the Committee 

after the agenda is posted, are available by contacting Jacob Allen at (909) 396-2282 or send 

the request to jallen2@aqmd.gov 

mailto:jallen2@aqmd.gov
mailto:jallen2@aqmd.gov


South Coast AQMD  -4- June 20, 2025 

Mobile Source Committee 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION 

Instructions for Participating in a Virtual Meeting as an Attendee 

As an attendee, you will have the opportunity to virtually raise your hand and provide public 

comment.  

Before joining the call, please silence your other communication devices such as your cell or 

desk phone. This will prevent any feedback or interruptions during the meeting. 

Please note: During the meeting, all participants will be placed on Mute by the host. You will 

not be able to mute or unmute your lines manually. 

After each agenda item, the Chair will announce public comment. 

A countdown timer will be displayed on the screen for each public comment. 

If interpretation is needed, more time will be allotted. 

Once you raise your hand to provide public comment, your name will be added to the 

speaker list. Your name will be called when it is your turn to comment. The host will then 

unmute your line. 

Directions for Video ZOOM on a DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 

• If you would like to make a public comment, please click on the “Raise Hand” button on

the bottom of the screen.

• This will signal to the host that you would like to provide a public comment and you will

be added to the list.

Directions for Video Zoom on a SMARTPHONE: 

• If you would like to make a public comment, please click on the “Raise Hand” button on

the bottom of your screen.

• This will signal to the host that you would like to provide a public comment and you will

be added to the list.

Directions for TELEPHONE line only: 

• If you would like to make public comment, please dial *9 on your keypad to signal that

you would like to comment.



Proposed Rule 2304 –

Commercial Marine Ports

Mobile Source Committee

June 20, 2025
5

Item #1



2

Recent Activities

Two More Working Group Meetings – April 25 and June 17

• Rule implementation, incentives, and initial rule language revisions discussed

PR 2304 Revised Initial Preliminary Draft Rule Language Release

• Informed by stakeholder feedback received to date

PR 316.1 Initial Preliminary Draft Rule Language Release

• Companion fees rule for PR 2304

Stakeholder Engagement - Ongoing

• Individual/small group meetings

Following March 21 Staff Update to Mobile Source Committee:

6



3

PR 2304 Development Status

Staff will continue to monitor emerging short-term uncertainties

Received 11 comment letters following Feb. 21 release of initial preliminary 
rule language

• Includes letters from Ports, industry, labor, agriculture, and community stakeholders

Continue considering stakeholder comments, questions, and feedback 

• Actively engaging with utilities and invited them to present to MSC later this year

Public Hearing anticipated for October 3, 2025 to provide time to 
incorporate stakeholder feedback

7



Evolving Shifts in U.S. Trade Policies

❑ Global increases in U.S. import tariffs

▪ Highest tariffs on Chinese goods

▪ Additional upcoming per-voyage

fees on loaded Chinese-

built/owned/operated vessels

▪ Uncertain scales and durations

❑ Majority of imports through San Pedro

Bay Ports shipped from China

❑ Port TEU volumes through April near record high*

❑ Port volumes lower in May with many “blank sailings”

❑ Volumes back up following temporary tariff pause

❑ Summer volumes?

*Source: https://www.portoflosangeles.org/business/statistics/container-statistics & https://polb.com/business/port-statistics/#latest-statistics 4

4/16/25

4/17/25

5/12/25

5/28/25

5/29/25

8

https://www.portoflosangeles.org/business/statistics/container-statistics
https://polb.com/business/port-statistics/#latest-statistics


5

Recent Ports Actions

Actions are all development towards long-term goals, but a comprehensive plan is 

needed to understand long-term planning for all port sources and implementation steps

Request for Proposals for On-Port Switching Services 

❑ Selected operator to develop ZE switcher locomotive

operations and infrastructure master plan with Ports

Released 2024 Draft Clean Truck Assessment

Updates to Clean Truck Program Spending Plan

❑ Prioritize investment on zero emission trucks and

infrastructure over next three years

❑ Ports seeking public comment on latest feasibility

assessment of cleaner drayage truck technologies

9



❑ Staff acknowledges ongoing

short-term uncertainties for

the ports and supply chain

and will continue to monitor

these activities

❑ PR 2304 is focused on

longer-term infrastructure

planning and installation

Long-Term Infrastructure Planning Remains Necessary

Why is Fueling and Charging 

Infrastructure Needed?

❑Next generation of vehicles

require new fuels

❑Public health and air quality

❑State and federal Clean Air Act

requirements

❑Ports existing commitments

to zero emissions

6

10



7

PR 2304 Summary

Port develops a Port-wide 
Charging and Fueling 

Infrastructure Plan

South Coast AQMD 
approves Plan 

Port implements 
approved Plan and 

annually reports progress

• Planning Targets and

Milestones

• Assessments

• Processes and

Timelines

• Evaluate based on

specific criteria that

leaves policy-making to 

the ports

• Port carries out its roles

and responsibilities

toward milestones

• Compliance flexibility –

plan modifications and

time extensions

11



8

Key Issues: Port Management and Funding

• Concern PR 2304 will interfere with Port

management

• Clarification on South Coast AQMD

discretion to approve or disapprove

infrastructure Plan

Stakeholder Feedback: Staff Responses:

Revised initial rule language: 

• Ports set own Infrastructure Planning Targets

• Plan approval criteria limits South Coast

AQMD discretion and keeps policy-making

with Ports

• Concern PR 2304 will impact ability to

secure external funding

• Most funding programs not impacted

• Board Resolution: direct staff to continue

aggressively seeking funding in partnership

with Ports and other stakeholders

• Focus efforts on funding that would

support human-operated equipment

12



9

Key Issue: Cargo Throughput Limits

• Concern that a port

regulation would require

cargo throughput limit

Stakeholder Feedback: Staff Responses:

• Provision added to PR 2304 that

precludes any cargo throughput limit

• Board resolution can include process for

evaluating any potential next steps

• Commence public process after

plans are received

• Report to Mobile Source Committee

• Considering EPA/CARB actions

13



10

Key Issues: Emission Reductions and 
Transparency 

• Request to incorporate

emission reductions into

the proposed rule

Stakeholder Feedback: Staff Responses:

• Emission reduction requirements not included in PR 2304

• Revised rule language: Infrastructure Planning Targets

must consider air quality attainment needs

• Staff direction in Board Resolution after receive Plans:

• Estimate potential range of emission reductions if

Planning Targets are achieved

• Public access and

transparency concerns

Staff direction in Board Resolution:

• Post Plans and Reports online

• Develop user-friendly web portal for approved Plan

information

14



11

Next Steps

June / July
August / 

September
Anticipated 

October 2025 

• Public Hearing for

Board consideration
• August 15: Mobile

Source Committee

Update

• Release of Draft Rule,

Staff Report (including

environmental analysis),

Supporting Documents

• September Set Hearing

• Release of Preliminary

Draft of PR 2304 (3rd

draft), PR 316.1 (2nd

draft), Staff Report,

Socioeconomic Impact

Assessment

• Two Community

Workshops (virtual)

Continue stakeholder engagement

15



AB 2766
Motor Vehicle Subvention Fund

FY 2023-24 Annual Report 

Mobile Source Committee

June 20, 2025

16

Item #2



Purpose of Report

• Annual Program Update

• Use of Motor Vehicle Fees

• Program Results

17



Background

• Adopted in 1990

• DMV collects $6 per vehicle as surcharge on annual

registration fees:
➢ $2 → Carl Moyer Program

➢ $1.60 → Motor Vehicle Subvention Fund (this program)

➢ $1.20 → MSRC Discretionary Fund

➢ $1.20 → South Coast AQMD Program Funds

• 162 local governments receive quarterly distributions

based on population

• Local governments annually report spending and

emission reductions to South Coast AQMD
➢ 11 project categories available

• South Coast AQMD compiles data for subvention fund

Annual Report
18



Program Summary

4

162 Local 
Governments 
Participated

347 Projects 
Implemented

261 Projects 
with Quantified 

Emission 
Reductions

$22.7M in 
Project 

Spending

122 Tons/Year 
of Emissions 

Reduced

$21.1M in 

Motor Vehicle 

Fees Received
19



Annual Training & Outreach

• Online training sessions throughout January & February

• 13 sessions held

• Project eligibility

• Selection of projects with quantifiable reductions

• Accounting requirements

• Encourage fund leveraging

• Ongoing technical assistance to cities and counties

• Included Guidance on Project Cost Effectiveness

• Briefings to Council of Governments

20



Project Categories

• Alternative Fuel/Electric Vehicle Purchases

• Vehicle Emissions Abatement

• Land Use

• Public Transportation (Transit & Rail)

• Traffic Management

• Transportation Demand Management

• Market Based Strategies

• Bicycles

• PM Reduction Strategies

• Public Education

• Miscellaneous Projects

21



Recent Program History ($M)

Fiscal Year Beginning 

Balance

MV Fees 

Received

Project 

Spending*

Ending 

Balance

Pre-Designated 

Funds

Funds 

Remaining

2019-20 $62.7 $21.5 $24.5 $60.9 $54.5 $6.4

2020-21 $60.2 $22.9 $19.1 $64.1 $54.6 $9.5

2021-22 $64.1 $21.1 $17.0 $67.8 $57.4 $10.3

2022-23 $67.2 $22.5 $23.9 $66.6 $56.8 $9.8

2023-24 $69.7 $21.1 $22.7 $70.4 $57.5 $12.9 

* Project spending does not consider any potential additional co-funding
22



Expenditure by Project Category

Project Category
Project 

Spending
Percent of Spending No. of Projects

Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles $8,992,573 40% 131

Transportation Demand Management $4,609,385 20% 58

Traffic Management $3,185,148 14% 45

Land Use $1,891,996 8% 11

PM Reduction Strategies $1,219,031 5% 18

Bicycles $1,052,334 5% 21

Public Transportation (Transit & Rail) $732,706 3% 15

Miscellaneous Projects $475,583 2% 28

Vehicle Emissions Abatement $396,688 2% 3

Public Education $175,969 1% 17

Totals $22,731,411 100% 347 23



FY 2023-24 PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 
& EMISSION REDUCTIONS*

Project Category
No. of 

Projects

No. of Projects 

Quantified

% of Projects 

Quantified

Emissions 

Reduced (tons/yr)*

Cost-Effect. 

($/ton)

Transportation Demand Management 58 56 97% 93.9 $47,340

PM Reduction Strategies 18 17 94% 13.7 $72,640

Traffic Management 45 36 80% 7.0 $57,600

Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles 131 109 83% 2.2 $830,000

Miscellaneous Projects 28 4 14% 1.5 $19,400

Public Transportation (Transit & Rail) 15 14 93% 1.4 $376,500

Vehicle Emissions Abatement 3 3 0% 1.07 $52,440

Bicycles 21 17 81% 0.84 $252,400

Land Use 11 5 45% 0.04 $1,226,000

Public Education 17 0 0% - -

Totals 347 261 75% 121.63 $70,360

* Pollutants: NOx, PM10, ROG and CO/7. Totals may vary slightly due to rounding. AB 2766 cost-effectiveness methodology differs from Moyer and follows CARB’s guidance for CMAQ Programs

24



Emission Reductions

County
Emission Reduced (Tons/Year)

ROG NOx PM 10 CO/7

Los Angeles 10 17 11 18

Orange 6 9 3 13

Riverside 5 7 3 10

San Bernardino 2 3 1 4

Totals 23 35 17 46

25



Going Forward

• Submit FY 2023-24 Annual Report to CARB

• Continue to advise local governments on project
eligibility, including:

• Vehicle purchases

• EV Charging Infrastructure

• Telecommuting

• Cost Effectiveness

• Coordinate with CARB staff to improve tools used
to evaluate air quality benefits of transportation
projects

26



Thank You

27



SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  

Annual Report on AB 2766 Funds from Motor Vehicle Registration Fees for 

Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 

June 20, 2025 

Executive Officer 

Wayne Nastri 

Deputy Executive Officer 

Planning, Rule Development & Area Sources 

Sarah Rees, Ph.D. 

Assistant Deputy Executive Officer 

Planning, Rule Development, and Area Sources 

Ian MacMillan  

Planning and Rules Manager 

Vicki White 

Program Supervisor 

Lane Garcia 

Author: Paul Macias Air Quality Specialist 

Contributor: Laurence Brown (Ret.) Air Quality Specialist 

28



 

Table of Contents 

 

Annual Report on AB 2766 Funds from Motor Vehicle 

Registration Fees for FY 2023-24 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................. EX-1 
I. BACKGROUND ....................................................................................................................... 1 
II. REPORTING............................................................................................................................ 2 
III. PROGRAM GUIDANCE ......................................................................................................... 3 

Purpose ................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Activities ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Local Government Coordination ............................................................................................................. 4 

IV. PROGRAM DATA ................................................................................................................... 5 
Project Categories ................................................................................................................................... 5 
Project Funding & Quantification ............................................................................................................ 8 
Emission Reductions & Cost-Effectiveness ............................................................................................11 

V. PROGRAM OUTREACH .......................................................................................................15 
ATTACHMENT A: Eligible Local Governments (FY 2023-24).........................................................17 
ATTACHMENT B: FY 2023-24 AB 2766 Subvention Fund Program Reports ...................................19 

South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds .........................................20 

Local Government Administrative Costs ................................................................................................26 

Local Government Projects Funded by Category ....................................................................................30 

Percent of Project Expenditures by Project Category ..............................................................................41 

Summary of Spending by Project Subcategory .......................................................................................42 

Project Funding Sources .........................................................................................................................43 

Range of Cost-Effectiveness by Subcategory ..........................................................................................55 

Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project ...................................................................................................56 

Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project ...............................................................................................67 

Summary of Projects that Reported Cost-Effectiveness...........................................................................78 

 

TABLES 

 

Table 1     Summary of COG Activities........................................................................................................ 5 

Table 2     Motor Vehicle Funds (MV) Financial Summary (As Reported by Local Governments) ........... 9 
Table 3     History of MV Funds Financial Summary  .............................................................................. 9 
Table 4     Local Government Project Reporting & Emission Reduction Quantification ..........................10 
Table 5     Project Quantification History ................................................................................................10 
Table 6     Expenditures by Project Category ..........................................................................................11 
Table 7     Project Spending and Emissions Reduced ..............................................................................12 
Table 8     Emissions Reduced and Cost-Effectiveness By Project Category ...........................................13 
Table 9     History of Emissions Reduced and Cost-Effectiveness ...........................................................14 

Table 10   Project Subcategories with More Than $500,000 in Expenditure ............................................14 

 
 
Other Information Available on South Coast AQMD’s Website or Upon Request: 

AB 2766 Subvention Fund Program Resource Guide 

CARB Criteria and Guidelines for the Use of Motor Vehicle Registration Fees 

AB 2766 Funds Report from Motor Vehicle Registration Fees - Previous Years Annual Reports 

Please visit: http://www.aqmd.gov/home/programs/local-government 

 

29

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/programs/local-government


 

1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

During Fiscal Year 2023-24, 162 local governments in the South Coast Air Quality Management 

District (South Coast AQMD) were eligible to receive AB 2766 Subvention Funds. These jurisdictions 

were subvened $21.1 million to implement projects that reduce mobile source emissions. From their AB 

2766 fund balances, local governments spent $22.7 million in this fiscal year. The two highest spending 

categories were Transportation Demand Management and Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles, which 

claimed a combined total of 60% of the $22.7 million program expenditures. The two project categories 

yielding the highest portion of emission reductions for this fiscal reporting cycle were Transportation 

Demand Management and Particulate Matter (PM) Reduction Strategies with 88.5% of the quantified 

emission reductions. In total, local governments implemented 347 projects of which 261 reported 

quantified emission reductions.  

 

I. BACKGROUND 

 

On-road motor vehicles, including cars, trucks and buses, represent one of the major sources of air 

pollution in the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction. Vehicle emissions from exhaust contribute to 

unhealthful levels of ozone, particulate matter, and toxic air contaminants. To protect public health, 

Assembly Bill 2766 was signed into law in September 1990. Section 44223 of the Health & Safety 

(H&S) Code authorized a $2 motor vehicle registration fee surcharge, effective April 1991, to fund the 

implementation of programs designed to reduce air pollution from motor vehicles and to implement the 

California Clean Air Act of 1988. H&S Code Section 44225 authorized a subsequent increase in this fee 

to $4, effective April 1992. In 2004, an additional $2 surcharge was added pursuant to H&S Code 

Section 44229 to provide a long-term source of funding for expansion of the Carl Moyer Memorial Air 

Quality Standards Attainment Program and to incentivize early introduction of clean air technology such 

as cleaner diesel engines; a Lower-Emission School Bus Program; and accelerated vehicle repair and 

retirement programs. 

 

AB 2766 requires that the first $4 of these fees be subvened to South Coast AQMD for the purpose of 

funding three programs with a prescribed allocation as follows: 

• 40% to the Local Government Subvention Fund Program (AB 2766 Program). These funds are 

distributed on a quarterly basis to cities and counties in the South Coast AQMD based upon their 

prorated share of population to implement projects that reduce emissions from mobile sources. 

• 30% to the South Coast AQMD Program Fund. This fund provides for agency planning, 

monitoring, research and other activities that reduce mobile source emissions. 

• 30% to the Discretionary Fund Program. This fund is administered by the Mobile Source Air 

Pollution Reduction Review Committee (MSRC), which awards money to project proponents 

that also reduce motor vehicle emissions.  

AB 2766 funded projects have many additional benefits including increasing transportation alternatives, 

relieving traffic congestion, conserving energy resources and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

 

In December 2022, the South Coast AQMD adopted the 2022 Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) as 

the blueprint for attainment of the federal ozone air quality standard in the South Coast AQMD 

30



 

2 

jurisdiction area by 2037. The 2022 AQMP brought renewed focus to the role that mobile source 

emissions play in attainment of this standard and includes control measures that will require a 

widespread transition to zero emission vehicles and equipment for nearly all emission sources. Future 

mobile source control measures are identified in the 2022 AQMP as well as planning opportunities 

available for South Coast AQMD cities and counties to align transportation policy, infrastructure 

planning, and emission control goals. The AB 2766 subvention funds can be useful for local 

governments to meet mobile source requirements and air quality goals.  

 

The South Coast AQMD’s AB 2766 staff actively works with local governments to align their planning 

efforts with policy objectives of the AB 2766 Program and the AQMP blueprint designed to achieve the 

state and federal air quality standards. 

 

 

II. REPORTING 

 

This Annual Report solely addresses the AB 2766 funds subvened to local governments by accounting 

for financial expenditures, emissions reduced, and the cost-effectiveness of projects implemented 

through the AB 2766 Program during FY 2023-24.  

 

AB 2766 fees are collected by the DMV and subvened to the South Coast AQMD on a monthly basis. 

The South Coast AQMD Finance Division disburses the AB 2766 revenues to local governments 

quarterly. During FY 2023-24, 162 local governments were eligible to receive AB 2766 Program funds 

(see Attachment A). Pursuant to H&S Code Section 44243(b)(1), newly incorporated cities may receive 

subvention funds, provided they adopt and transmit to the South Coast AQMD the required ordinance 

within 90 days of official incorporation.  

 

The city or county government receiving AB 2766 Program funds is required to deposit them into an air 

quality improvement trust fund for expenditures to reduce air pollution from motor vehicles pursuant to 

H&S Code Section 44243(b)(1)(c). AB 2766 Program fund recipients complete and submit an annual 

report to the South Coast AQMD identifying the revenues received, project expenditures, emissions 

reduced, and cost-effectiveness of each project implemented during the preceding fiscal year.  

 

South Coast AQMD staff provides technical assistance and project eligibility guidance to the recipients 

of the AB 2766 Program funds according to the AB 2766 criteria and guidelines established by the 

CARB. Staff receive, review, and evaluate the AB 2766 reports submitted by the participating local 

governments and consolidate the results into this AB 2766 Program Annual Report. In addition, H&S 

Code Section 44244.1 sets forth auditing requirements that are conducted every two years. The audit is 

conducted by an independent auditor who evaluates whether local governments adhered to program 

guidelines. Audit determinations confirming that local government recipients have expended revenues 

contrary to statute will have the opportunity to refund the program or shall upon required public 

hearing(s), result in the inappropriate expense amount withheld from future revenue distribution and 

then redistributed among the remaining local governments. A local government can also request to have 

future funds withheld without going through a public hearing process. Local governments are 

encouraged to pre-designate funds for specific projects that may be implemented in the future.  

31



 

3 

 

AB 2766 financial and project reporting from local governments occurs cyclically following notification 

from South Coast AQMD that the program tools are available. As the implementing agency, South 

Coast AQMD coordinates the update of program resources with CARB to facilitate local government 

report submittals. 

 

CARB and South Coast AQMD have a Memorandum of Understanding dated July 31, 2019 that enables 

South Coast AQMD to directly manage the reporting process and submit the relevant data to CARB in a 

timely fashion. South Coast AQMD’s AB 2766 Annual Report is shared with CARB upon completion.  

 

III. PROGRAM GUIDANCE  

 

 Purpose 

 

As directed by the Governing Board in 1998, the South Coast AQMD’s AB 2766 staff serve as a 

resource to local governments by providing guidance in project identification, development, 

quantification, and reporting. Special emphasis is placed on the selection of cost-effective, quantifiable 

mobile source emission reduction projects that meet the needs of the local government and that advance 

the objectives of the AQMP. 

 

An AB 2766 Subvention Fund Program Resource Guide (hereafter, the Resource Guide), developed by 

the South Coast AQMD, is available to provide assistance in identifying projects that are eligible for AB 

2766 funding. The Resource Guide outlines project eligibility requirements, provides program updates, 

policies, and guidelines to assist local governments that receive AB 2766 Program funds. Project 

descriptions and examples provided in the Resource Guide are consistent with CARB’s Criteria and 

Guidelines for the Use of Motor Vehicle Registration Fees, which focuses on strategies that directly 

reduce mobile source emissions.  

 

The Resource Guide was updated in July 2023 to improve clarity, address the availability of cleaner 

technologies for Light-Duty, Medium-Duty and Heavy-Duty Vehicles (LDVs), and support the direction 

of CARB’s EV goals and requirements. For example, eligible LDVs must be plug-in hybrid electric 

vehicles or zero emission vehicles starting on July 1, 2024 to be eligible for AB 2766 funding.  The AB 

2766 Resource Guide can be found at: http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/transportation/ab2766-

motor-vehicle-subvention-fund-program/ab2766-resource-guide.pdf.  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

32

http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/transportation/ab2766-motor-vehicle-subvention-fund-program/ab2766-resource-guide.pdf
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/transportation/ab2766-motor-vehicle-subvention-fund-program/ab2766-resource-guide.pdf


4 

Activities 

South Coast AQMD staff reviews the AB 2766 Program data and collaborates with CARB staff on ways 

to improve the process for local governments to report their AB 2766-funded project results. South 

Coast AQMD staff conduct technical training sessions for local government and Councils of 

Government (COG) representatives to provide an overview of program updates, guidelines, policies, and 

respond to inquiries related to local projects/programs.  

Staff conducted thirteen (13) AB 2766 technical training sessions and held open office hours during 

January/February 2025, at which 165 representatives participated on behalf of 125 of the 162 local 

government subvention fund recipients. Training included an overview of the program’s authorizing 

legislation; prior-year project reporting; emission reductions and financial summaries; and a detailed 

review of program guidelines developed by CARB and South Coast AQMD. Expenditure limitations, 

preferred projects that provide quantifiable, cost-effective emission reductions, common reporting 

errors, and administrative tips were of key focus during the training sessions. Requirements related to 

the financial administration of AB 2766 dollars were reviewed in detail, with emphasis on fund 

accounting and auditing guidelines.  

During the training sessions, staff guided attendees through project categories and instructed local 

government representatives on how to identify and calculate emission reductions and cost effectiveness. 

Training also included detailed instructions on the new South Coast AQMD AB 2766 reporting software 

which was developed for local governments to submit their subvention fund reports to the South Coast 

AQMD. During the previous program cycle, local governments were introduced to the new reporting 

tool called the AB2766 Report Portal, which greatly simplified the uploading process of AB 2766 

Annual Report information. The AB 2766 Report Portal allows local governments to easily input data 

and monitor the status of South Coast AQMD’s review. Use of this web-based application is now in its 

fourth program cycle and has fostered enhanced AB 2766 Program efficiency, time savings, as well as 

record retention and accessibility for South Coast AQMD staff and participating local governments.  

On an on-going basis, South Coast AQMD staff assists local governments with project/program 

selection, emission reduction calculations and guidance on use of the Portal system for future project 

planning. South Coast AQMD staff has received and evaluated the FY 2023-24 Annual Reports 

submitted by the 162 participating local governments. The results are summarized in the Program Data 

section of this report. 

Local Government Coordination 

Local governments may contribute a portion of their AB 2766 Program funds to their respective COGs 

to pool resources for implementation of eligible projects. In expending these funds, COGs must adhere 

to the same project eligibility requirements and guidelines as local government recipients when 

implementing air quality projects funded by the AB 2766 Program. For monitoring purposes, COGs are 

asked to provide summary reports to their member cities as well as to the South Coast AQMD, including 

descriptions of AB 2766 projects along with funding amounts. COG summary reports should align with 

local government member reporting to South Coast AQMD. Table 1 provides a summary of the projects 

and programs implemented by COGs using AB 2766 Program funds received from their member cities. 

33



 

5 

 

Table 1 

Summary of COG Activities 

 

COG Name Expenditure Amount* Project Description** 

Coachella Valley $450,273 

Regional PM Street Sweeping Program using 

alternative fuel equipment to sweep approximately 

20,808 curb miles to remove roadway dust. 

Western Riverside $113,520 

Clean Cities Coalition activities/outreach promoting 

emission reductions from motor vehicles through 

alternative fuel and advanced technology vehicles; 
AQMP Outreach and Western Riverside County Active 

Transportation Plan development.  

Gateway Cities $27,742 
Development of the Air Quality/Active Transportation 

elements of the Gateway Cities Strategic 

Transportation Plan (STP). 

*Expenditure amounts as reported by COG member cities. 

**Project descriptions provided by COG to the COG member cities. 
 

 

IV. PROGRAM DATA 

 

 Project Categories 

 

The Resource Guide summarizes CARB’s guidance for the use of the AB 2766 funds and identifies 

appropriate strategies that, through careful planning and design, will cost effectively and efficiently 

reduce emissions from mobile sources. The following list identifies eleven AB 2766 Project Categories 

and provides examples of projects that meet the criteria and guidelines established by CARB: 

 

1. Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles1  

• Purchasing/leasing alternative fuel vehicles (automobiles, vans, shuttles or buses) 

powered by compressed natural gas, propane, non-diesel hybrids that meet specific 

CARB certification standards, as well as zero emission fuel cell and battery electric 

vehicles.  

• Projects that assist local governments with fleet conversions or repowering from 

conventional gas to an alternative fuel engine meeting CARB certification standards.  

• Installation of alternative fuel (including hydrogen) and electric charging 

infrastructure that supports the use of near-zero and/or zero emission vehicles; and, 

purchasing alternative fuel or electricity for up to three years after vehicle purchase. 

 

 
 
1AB 2766 funding can be used to assist local governments in their compliance with regulations such as CARB’s Advanced Clean Cars II 

and Advanced Clean Fleets regulation, as well as South Coast AQMD mobile source fleet rules (e.g., Rule 1191) and Rule 2202. 

34



 

6 

2. Vehicle Emissions Abatement  

• Purchasing/leasing the cleanest available diesel engines when alternative fuel engines 

or zero emission technologies are not available and/or repowering of heavy-duty 

engines with the cleanest available engines.  

• Installation of particulate trap retrofits for engines and/or retirement and replacement 

of dirty off-road engines with newer, cleaner engines.  

• Participation in a certified Vehicle Scrapping Program.  

• Purchasing/leasing of electric ride-on commercial lawn mowers. 

 

3. Land Use  

• Planning, designing, and constructing/installing facilities that discourage and decrease 

the use of automobiles.  

• Providing adequate or expanding existing pedestrian facilities that make it easier for 

people to walk, bicycle, or use public transit.  

• Developing Air Quality Action Plans, Strategic Transportation Plans or an Air 

Quality Element of a General Plan.  

• Funding CEQA related studies that will identify surplus mobile source mitigation 

measures or project alternatives resulting in reduced emissions or VMT as required 

by SB 743. However, funding is not to be used to replace funds otherwise available to 

perform CEQA related activities.  

 

4. Public Transportation  

• Introducing, marketing or implementing new or extended transit services or rail 

feeder operations, and the operations thereof up to 3 years.  

• Constructing, installing or enhancing public transportation facilities designed to 

provide new or extended services or to increase passenger safety.  

• Installing equipment that contains public transit information and fare subsidies.  

• Providing transit fare discounts and subsidies.  

 

5. Traffic Management and Signal Coordination  

• Implementing projects/programs that monitor and control travel conditions.  

• Installing corridor signal synchronization systems; design and installation of 

pedestrian islands, turning lanes, pedestrian traffic controls and/or changeable 

message signs that reduce idling and improve traffic flow, and/or mobilization of 

freeway tow truck services. 

 

6. Transportation Demand Management (TDM)  

• Implementing projects that reduce the demand for automobile use by encouraging 

behavioral changes regarding travel modes, i.e., encourage carpooling, vanpooling, 

biking, walking, use of public transit, telecommuting, or implementation of 

compressed work week schedules.  

35



 

7 

• Designing, developing, and implementing programs that focus on reducing trips to 

special event centers or other attractions. 

• Creation and enhancement of Park and Ride facilities. 

 

7. Market Based Strategies  

• Developing and implementing incentives and disincentives that encourage behavioral 

changes resulting in emission reductions such as introduction of user fees or 

congestion charges to encourage behavioral changes for consumers to use less 

congesting or less polluting forms of transportation and/or implementation of parking 

strategies. 

 

8. Bicycles  

• Implementing projects that encourage the use of bicycles by employees and residents; 

bike share and/or purchasing programs, bike loan programs (electric bikes and 

standard) for police officers, community members, and the general public.  

• Designing, developing and/or installing bike lanes, paths and bikeways or 

establishing new bicycle corridors physically separated from motor vehicle traffic; 

making bicycle facility enhancements/improvements by installing bicycle lockers, 

bike signals or bus bike racks.  

 

9. PM Reduction Strategies  

• Implementing measures that reduce or prevent deposits of dust and other materials 

from build-up on roadway surfaces such as paving of dirt roads and shoulders; 

purchasing/leasing South Coast AQMD Rule 1186.1 compliant street sweepers. 

 

10. Public Education  

• Long-term/short-term, routine, regularly scheduled, intermittent or frequent 

information brochures, videos, printed materials that provide a focused message 

which targets behavioral changes resulting in mobile source emission reductions and 

reduced reliance on motor vehicles.  

• Marketing of demonstration or pilot projects, coordinating promotional events or 

programs to educate schools or the public about transportation alternatives, and the 

relationship between motor vehicles and air pollution. 

 

11. Miscellaneous Projects  

• Designing, developing and/or implementing projects or programs that reduce mobile 

source emissions, but are not specifically listed or identified in the AB 2766 Resource 

Guide. Projects that result in emission reductions, but use a manual or alternative 

CARB-approved methodology to calculate emission reductions. Specific details on 

the type of project being implemented, cost-effectiveness and emission reductions 

achieved as well as data/explanation on the CARB-approved methodology used in the 

calculations/analysis must be provided and deemed acceptable. 

 

36



 

8 

NOTE: Research and Development (R&D) projects are allowable AB 2766 expenditures. However, the 

expenditure(s) must not exceed 10% of the AB 2766 funds received for the reporting cycle. Total funds 

used for Public Education and CEQA related studies, and R&D funds, must not exceed the 10% 

expenditure threshold. 

  

 

Project Funding & Quantification 

 

A financial summary of funds spent by local governments in the South Coast AQMD region during FY 

2023-24 is provided in Table 2, and the financial summary for the last five reporting cycles is shown in 

Table 3. Local governments can carry over fund balances indefinitely, which allows them the flexibility 

to accumulate funding for future projects or to secure additional co-funding. In FY 2023-24, local 

governments spent more subvention funds on mobile source emission reduction projects ($22.7 million) 

than the amount received ($21.1 million), and project spending decreased compared to the last reporting 

cycle ($23.9 million) as shown in Table 3. The local governments are continuing to pre-designate a 

larger amount of funds than in previous years which indicates an increased interest in future 

projects/programs and technology investments. 

 

Tables 2 and 3 show that of the $70.4 million ending balance reported by local governments in FY 

2023-24, approximately $57.5 million, or 82%, of the ending balance was pre-designated for future 

projects. This is consistent with the amounts pre-designated in previous years. Local governments are 

expected to face increased costs for vehicles and equipment and for supporting charging/fueling 

infrastructure in future years as new statewide requirements for zero emission vehicles are implemented. 

The option to accumulate funds for future use helps jurisdictions prepare for investments in larger, more 

costly projects as well as changing policy and market direction.   

 

Table 3 shows that as reported by local governments, the motor vehicle funds that were subvened 

decreased from $22.5 million in FY 2022-23 to $21.1 million in this reporting cycle. Local governments 

spent a higher percentage (108% or $22.7 million) of their funds received on AB 2766 projects 

compared to the prior reporting cycle (106% or $23.9 million). Between FY 2019-20 and FY 2023-24, 

local governments have spent 98% of the funds they received. With guidance from South Coast 

AQMD’s AB 2766 staff, local governments are continuing to plan and implement clean transportation 

programs that advance our regional air quality goals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



9 

Table 2 

Motor Vehicle (MV) Funds Financial Summary 

(As Reported by Local Governments) 

County 
Beginning 

Balance 

MV Fees 

Received 

Project 

Spending 

Ending 

Balance2 

Pre-

designated 

Funds 

Funds 

Remaining 

Los Angeles $35,281,869 $12,014,183 $12,109,347 $36,244,210 $28,457,154 $7,787,056 

Orange $15,773,589 $3,907,677 $5,267,675 $15,080,805 $12,380,712 $2,700,093 

Riverside $11,099,900 $3,153,991 $3,113,429 $11,465,426 $10,009,725 $1,455,701 

San Bernardino $7,559,543 $2,027,912 $2,240,960 $7,624,348 $6,624,868 $999,480 

Totals* $69,714,901 $21,103,764 $22,731,411 $70,414,789 $57,472,460 $12,942,329 

*Totals may vary due to rounding.

Table 3 

History of Motor Vehicle Funds Financial Summary 

Fiscal 

Year 

Beginning 

Balance 

MV Fees 

Received 

Project 

Spending 

Ending 

Balance 

Pre-

designated 

Funds 

Funds 

Remaining 

2019-20 $62,742,224 $21,505,465 $24,471,364 $60,898,314 $54,451,852 $6,446,462 

2020-21 $60,159,059 $22,895,514 $19,080,855 $64,143,099 $54,593,825 $9,549,274 

2021-22 $64,052,895 $21,149,454 $16,983,589 $67,756,135 $57,443,415 $10,312,720 

2022-23 $67,279,035 $22,516,842 $23,935,726 $66,622,656 $56,789,420 $9,833,236 

2023-24 $69,714,901 $21,103,764 $22,731,411 $70,414,789 $57,472,460 $12,942,329 

Table 4 identifies, by county, the number of projects funded by local governments, as well as the 

number and percentages of projects with quantified emission reductions achieved during FY 2023-24. 

Los Angeles County, which includes the majority of cities in the South Coast AQMD, funded the largest 

number of AB 2766 projects (181). Orange County had the second highest number of projects funded 

(76), followed by Riverside County (53) and San Bernardino (37). For this reporting cycle, San 

Bernardino County yielded the highest percentage (86%) of funds for projects with quantifiable 

emission reductions.  

2 The Ending Balance represents the Beginning Balance and MV Fees Received, minus Project Spending. Interest Earned and 
Administrative Costs are incorporated. Interest Earned and Administrative Costs are fully detailed in Appendix B. 

38



 

10 

Table 4 

Local Government Project Reporting and Emission Reduction Quantification 

County 

Number of 

Local 

Governments 

Reporting 

Number of 

Projects Funded 

Number of 

Projects with 

Emission 

Reductions 

Quantified 

Percent of 

Projects with 

Emission 

Reductions 

Quantified 

Los Angeles 82 181 140 77% 

Orange 35 76 56 74% 

Riverside 28 53 33 62% 

San Bernardino 17 37 32 86% 

Totals 162 347 261 75% 

 

Table 5 shows the number of projects with emission reductions quantified over the last five reporting 

cycles. The FY 2023-24 report shows 261 projects with emission reductions quantified, which is an 

increase from the 242 projects quantified in FY 2022-23. The percentage of quantifiable projects is 

higher this year (75%), particularly by expenditures (78%), compared to FY 2022-23 for which 70% of 

the projects had quantifiable emissions reductions. This is due primarily to an increase in zero emission 

vehicle purchases, and a slight decrease in EV charging infrastructure projects, which are not 

quantifiable in terms of emissions reductions. EV charging infrastructure projects are crucial for 

supporting battery-electric ZE vehicles, but do not directly reduce emissions on their own.   

 

Every year, CARB updates and provides the South Coast AQMD with emission reduction calculation 

methodologies, along with the corresponding emission factors for most of the transportation projects 

funded through this program. The annual emission reductions, as well as the cost-effectiveness of the 

projects, are calculated based on those emission factors and local government reporting of project 

spending. Emission reductions from some types of projects are difficult to quantify or cannot be 

quantified, such as electric vehicle charging stations, public education, and research and development. 

CARB has begun the process of updating established emission calculation methodologies and creating 

new methodologies for quantifying emissions reductions and cost-effectiveness for several types of 

eligible projects that were previously non-quantifiable. It is expected that these methodologies will 

become available by 2026.   

 

Table 5 

Project Quantification History 

Fiscal Year     
Number of 

Projects 

Projects with Emission 

Reductions Quantified 

Percent of 

Projects 

Quantified 

Percent of 

Expenditures 

Quantified 

2019-20 371 237 64% 62% 

2020-21 313 214 68% 73% 

2021-22 315 196 62% 59% 

2022-23 344 242 70% 75% 

2023-24 347 261 75% 78% 

39



 

11 

 

 

 

Table 6 shows the FY 2023-24 expenditures made in ten of the eleven AB 2766 project categories. Since 

there were no projects reported in the Market Based Strategies category, it is not listed in Table 6. There 

have been no projects in the Market Based Strategies category since FY 2006-07. Table 6 displays 

expenditures by category, sorted from the highest to the least in local government spending. The two 

highest spending categories are Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles and Transportation Demand 

Management categories, which together represents 60% or $13.6 million of the $22.7 million program 

expenditures. A significant amount of these funds was spent on the purchasing or leasing of alternative 

fuel/electric vehicles, installation of alt-fuel/electric vehicle infrastructure, and implementation of 

employer-based trip reduction programs.  

 

Table 6 

Expenditures by Project Category 

Project Category Project Spending* 
Percent of 

Spending* 

No. of 

Projects 

Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles $8,992,573  40% 131 

Transportation Demand Management $4,609,385  20% 58 

Traffic Management $3,185,148  14% 45 

Land Use $1,891,996  8% 11 

PM Reduction Strategies $1,219,031  5% 18 

Bicycles $1,052,334  5% 21 

Public Transportation (Transit & Rail) $732,706  3% 15 

Miscellaneous Projects $475,583  2% 28 

Vehicle Emissions Abatement $396,688  2% 3 

Public Education $175,969 1% 17 

Totals $22,731,411  100% 347 

    * Totals may vary due to rounding. 

  
 

Emission Reductions & Cost-Effectiveness 

 

Table 7 summarizes, by county, the number of projects funded, project spending, and the emission 

reductions achieved. Local governments in Los Angeles County reported the majority of project 

spending, $12.1 million, and also achieved the majority of annual emission reductions, 55 tons. During 

FY 2023-24, a total of 122 tons of emissions were reduced in the South Coast AQMD local governments 

by projects funded with AB 2766 Program funds.  

 

 

40



 

12 

Table 7 

Project Spending and Emissions Reduced 

County 
No. of Projects 

Funded 

Project  

Spending 

Emissions Reduced3 (Tons/Year) 

ROG NOx PM2.5 CO/7 Totals* 

Los Angeles 181 $12,109,347 10 17 11 18 55 

Orange 76 $5,267,675 6 9 3 13 30 

Riverside  53 $3,113,429 5 7 3 10 26 

San Bernardino 37 $2,240,960 2 3 1 4 10 

Totals* 347 $22,731,411  23 35 17 46 122 

* Totals may vary due to rounding. 

 

Table 8 provides emission reduction and cost-effectiveness information4 for AB 2766 project categories. 

The table ranks project categories by emissions reduced; and displays the number of projects, number of 

projects with emission reduction quantified, and the percentage of projects quantified in each category. 

The last column in Table 8 identifies the total Air Funds cost-effectiveness (dollar per pound) of 

emissions reduced. The “Air Funds” consist of the AB 2766 Motor Vehicle Fees and, if applicable, 

funding from the state Carl Moyer Fund Program and the Mobile Source Air Pollution Reduction 

Review Committee (MSRC) funding pursuant to CARB’s methodology. 

 

In this reporting cycle, the Transportation Demand Management project category represents 77.2% of all 

emissions reduced, including a total of 187,788 pounds per year. This is an increase in percentage for 

this category compared to FY 2022-23, which represented 75% of emission reductions (150,616 

pounds). This category includes project types such as employee trip reduction subsidies, telecommuting 

subsidies, vanpools, and subsidies for residents who meet their city program requirements.  

 

The PM Reduction Strategies category accounts for 11.3% of the emissions reduced, with a total of 

27,407 pounds per year. This category includes street sweeping projects. The Traffic Management 

category is third in terms of emission reductions, representing 5.8% of emissions reduced with a total of 

14,020 pounds per year, and includes traffic signal synchronization, signal installation, and software 

updates.  

 

The cost-effectiveness of all project categories, as shown in Table 8, range from $9.69 - $612.98 per 

pound of emissions reduced. The overall total average cost-effectiveness was computed as $35.18 per 

pound of emissions reduced, which is a reduction from the average FY 2022-23 project cost-

effectiveness of $42.05 per pound. AB 2766 staff are continuing to provide technical support and 

 
 
3 Emissions reduced account for total reductions (VOC, NOx, PM2.5 and CO/7) from Air Fund expenditures. Air Funds consist of the 
Motor Vehicle Fees and funding from both the state Carl Moyer Program and the AB 2766 Discretionary Fund. See Attachment B:  
Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project.  
4 Cost Effectiveness for AB 2766 projects are calculated by first amortizing the Air Funds (AB 2766, MSRC, and Moyer funding) then 

dividing by the total emission reduction of ROG, NOx, PM2.5, and CO/7. Emission factors tables were provided by CARB in September 

2024 and draw from EMFAC2021. This method differs from how the Moyer program assess cost effectiveness, and can be found in the 
“Methods to Find the Cost-Effectiveness of Funding Air Quality Projects” handbook published by CARB in May 2005: 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/Congestion_Mitigation_Air%20_Quality_Improvement_Program_cost-
effectiveness_methods_may2005.pdf 

41

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/Congestion_Mitigation_Air%20_Quality_Improvement_Program_cost-effectiveness_methods_may2005.pdf
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/Congestion_Mitigation_Air%20_Quality_Improvement_Program_cost-effectiveness_methods_may2005.pdf


13 

program outreach, helping local governments to implement cost-effective and quantifiable emission 

reduction projects that meet immediate agency needs, while working toward achieving longer-term 

AQMP objectives. Local governments are also encouraged to seek and create opportunities to coordinate 

with neighboring cities, jurisdictions, and COGs to implement projects that will result in shared, mutual 

emission reduction benefits, while potentially pooling costs and resources. 

Table 8 

Emissions Reduced and Cost-Effectiveness by Project Category 

Project Category 

Number 

of 

Projects 

Number of 

Projects 

Quantified 

Percent of 

Projects 

Quantified 

Emissions 

Reduced
5
 

(lbs./yr.) 

Emissions 

Reduced
6
 

(tons/yr.) 

Air Fund Cost-

Effectiveness
7
 

($/lbs.) 

Transportation Demand 

Management 
58 56 97% 187,788 93.9 $23.67 

PM Reduction Strategies 18 17 94% 27,407 13.7 $36.31 

Traffic Management 45 36 80% 14,020 7.0 $28.80 

Alternative Fuels/Electric 

Vehicles 
131 109 83% 4,454 2.2 $414.89 

Miscellaneous Projects 28 4 14% 2,926 1.5 $9.69 

Public Transportation 

(Transit & Rail) 
15 14 93% 2,770 1.4 $188.25 

Vehicle Emissions 

Abatement 
3 3 100% 2,138 1.07 $26.22 

Bicycles 21 17 81% 1,679 0.84 $126.20 

Land Use 11 5 45% 77 0.04 $612.98 

Public Education 17 0 0% - - - 

Totals 347 261 75% 243,259 121.63 $35.18 

*Totals may vary due to rounding.

The history of the AB 2766 Program’s emission reductions and cost-effectiveness is shown in Table 9. 

The average cost-effectiveness figure is determined by dividing the Amortized Air Fund dollar amount, 

which is associated with quantified projects, by the total amount of emission reductions. Emissions 

calculations are based on the Emission Factor (EMFAC) modeling tool provided by CARB. Table 9 

shows the history of the AB 2766 Program regarding emissions reduction and cost-effectiveness after 

adjusting for inflation.  

5 Emissions reduced account for total reductions (VOC, NOx, PM2.5 and CO/7) from the state Carl Moyer Program and the AB 2766

Discretionary Fund. See Attachment B:  Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project. 

6 Emissions reduced (tons/year) is determined by dividing by 2,000 lbs. Totals may vary slightly due to rounding. 
7 Cost-effectiveness is determined by multiplying default capital recovery factors (amortization by project life and discount rate) by total

funds, then dividing those annualized funds by annual emission reductions. See Attachment B:  Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project. 

42



 

14 

Table 9 

History of Emissions Reduced and Cost-Effectiveness 

 

Fiscal Year     

Emissions 

Reduced*  

(lbs./yr.) 

Emissions 

Reduced* 

(tons/yr.) 

Cost- 

Effectiveness** 

($/lb.) 

Cost- 

Effectiveness** 

($/ton) 

2019-20 263,654  132 $42.39  $84,778  

2020-21 277,285  139 $32.76  $65,516  

2021-22 223,023  112 $28.19  $56,376  

2022-23 201,990  101 $42.05  $84,102  

2023-24 243,259 122 $35.18  $70,357  

*Emission reductions determined by the EMFAC emissions model in effect for the year specified. 

**In 2024 dollars. 

 

Table 10 shows the project subcategories with Motor Vehicles Fee expenditures greater than $500,000. 

There are 10 of the 43 subcategories that collectively represent $19.1 million of the $22.7 million in 

project spending for FY 2023-24. Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchases/Leases, a subcategory of 

Alternative Fuel Vehicles, had the largest expenditures with $4.4 million in project spending, which is a 

notable decrease from the $5.6 million spent in this subcategory in FY 2022-23. Employer-Based Trip 

Reduction is next at $3.8 million, followed by Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases at $3.5 million. 

Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases increased significantly from $2.2 million in the prior fiscal year, 

while Electric Vehicle Infrastructure decreased from $1.35 million in the prior fiscal year to $529,649 in 

FY 2023-24. Jurisdictions are now utilizing the Electric Vehicle Infrastructure installed in prior fiscal 

years by expanding Electric Vehicle Fleets.  

 

Table 10 

Project Subcategories with More Than $500,000 in Expenditures 

Category Subcategory Expenditure 
No. of 

Projects 

Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles 
Alternative Fuel Vehicle 

Purchases/Leases 
$4,449,285  59 

Transportation Demand Management Employer-Based Trip Reduction $3,757,586  48 

Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases $3,542,183  50 

Traffic Management Traffic Flow or Signalization $1,842,177  36 

PM Reduction Strategies Road Dust Control $1,219,031  18 

Land Use Plan Elements $1,178,395  5 

Traffic Management Traffic Calming $1,173,980  6 

Bicycles Bicycle Lanes, Trails, and Bridges $738,508  13 

Land Use 
Facilities (Pedestrian, Mixed Use, 

etc.) 
$703,601  5 

Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles Electric Vehicle Infrastructure $529,649  18 

Totals* $19,134,394  258 

*Totals may vary due to rounding. 

43



 

15 

 

V. PROGRAM OUTREACH 

 

The following information summarizes future program outreach goals to be accomplished by South 

Coast AQMD staff: 

 

Local Government Leadership 

• Continue to provide written and electronic notification of fund balances and fund match/leverage 

opportunities to local government officials and staff. 

• Encourage local government policy makers to provide leadership and establish partnerships in the 

program decision-making process.  

• Work directly with cities to implement quantifiable, cost-effective mobile source emission reduction 

projects. Staff will meet with and maintain an open, ongoing dialogue with city mayors, city 

managers, and other local government staff, and will support their efforts to educate their elected 

officials on the value of the AB 2766 Program. 

• Collaborate with South Coast AQMD’s Legislative, Public Affairs & Media (LPAM) Office and the 

Mobile Source Air Pollution Reduction Review Committee staff to coordinate outreach activities, 

align project and policy goals, and maximize fund matching and leveraging opportunities for local 

governments. 

 

Local Government Staff 

• Develop new resources or enhance existing program tools that will assist local governments with 

identifying, monitoring, and reporting eligible AB 2766 projects and programs, such as: 

1) Implementing and continuing to develop the web-based reporting process for local government 

annual report submissions; 

2) Developing web-based tools to help local governments to better estimate emission reduction and 

cost effectiveness for potential eligible projects; 

3) Updating the Resource Guide to better align with the AQMP and CARB direction; 

4) Enhancing Marketing Materials.  

• Encourage fund leveraging and pre-designation of funds for future quantifiable project 

implementation.  

• Act as an intermediary between District and city staffs, COG representatives and local government 

leadership to streamline project and policy development.  

• Maintain an outreach presence through meetings with local governments’ AB 2766 administrators as 

a means to: 

1) Provide technical guidance on program changes and legal constraints of AB 2766 spending; 

2) Provide technical hands-on assistance with calculating, tracking and reporting on projects that 

will yield quantifiable emission reductions; 

44



16 

3) Provide a list of eligible, preferred projects, as well as encourage pre-designating funds for future

projects;

4) Provide training on the automated reporting and submittal processes.

• Encourage all AB 2766 administrators to virtually attend the annual AB 2766 training sessions to

learn about AB 2766 software submittal procedures, as well as updates, changes and/or

modifications to the AB 2766 Program.

Councils of Government 

• Coordinate with COG staff to ensure accurate program reporting on project activities funded with

AB 2766 funds received from their member cities and counties. Emphasis will continue to be placed

on the importance of ensuring that projects funded by COGs adhere to the AB 2766 guidelines and

criteria established by CARB.

• Respond to feedback from local governments and their respective COGs on various AB 2766

Program matters, including the annual reporting process, and the use of subvention funds allocated

towards COG sponsored projects.

• Host specialized training sessions for COG staff and member governments on project coordination

and annual reporting requirements.

CARB Collaboration 

• Create and manage the reporting process for South Coast Air District fund recipients with oversight

from CARB as outlined in the July 31, 2019 Memorandum of Understanding for the collection of

fund expenditures, project implementation, emission reductions, cost effectiveness, and other

relevant data.

• Continue to collaborate with CARB to effectively communicate program and financial reports and

receive updated emission factors and program direction.

• Continue to collaborate with CARB to align the program with statewide and local emission

reduction goals.

• Collaborate with CARB to identify priority project categories that would benefit from emission

reduction and cost-effectiveness calculation methodologies.

45



17 

ATTACHMENT A 

Participating Local Governments (FY 2023-24) 

46



 

18 

Eligible Local Governments (FY 2023-24) 
 

Los Angeles  

County 

Los Angeles County 

(cont’d) 

Orange  

County 

Riverside 

County 

San Bernardino 

County 

Agoura Hills Lawndale Aliso Viejo Banning Big Bear Lake 

Alhambra Lomita Anaheim Beaumont Chino 

Arcadia Long Beach Brea Calimesa Chino Hills 

Artesia Los Angeles City Buena Park Canyon Lake Colton 

Azusa Los Angeles County Costa Mesa Cathedral City Fontana 

Baldwin Park Lynwood Cypress Coachella  Grand Terrace 

Bell Malibu Dana Point Corona Highland 

Bell Gardens Manhattan Beach Fountain Valley Desert Hot Springs Loma Linda 

Bellflower Maywood Fullerton Eastvale Montclair 

Beverly Hills Monrovia Garden Grove Hemet  Ontario 

Burbank Montebello Huntington Beach  Indian Wells Rancho Cucamonga 

Calabasas Monterey Park Irvine Indio Redlands 

Carson Norwalk La Habra Jurupa Valley  Rialto 

Cerritos Palos Verdes Estates La Palma La Quinta  San Bernardino (City) 

Claremont Paramount Laguna Beach Lake Elsinore San Bernardino County 

Commerce Pasadena Laguna Hills Menifee  Upland 

Compton Pico Rivera Laguna Niguel Moreno Valley Yucaipa 

Covina Pomona Laguna Woods Murrieta  

Cudahy Rancho Palos Verdes Lake Forest Norco   

Culver City Redondo Beach Los Alamitos Palm Desert   

Diamond Bar Rolling Hills Estates Mission Viejo  Palm Springs  

Downey Rosemead Newport Beach Perris   

Duarte San Dimas Orange (City) Rancho Mirage  

El Monte San Fernando Orange County Riverside (City)   

El Segundo San Gabriel Placentia Riverside County   

Gardena San Marino Rancho Santa Margarita San Jacinto   

Glendale Santa Clarita San Clemente Temecula  

Glendora Santa Fe Springs San Juan Capistrano Wildomar  

Hawaiian Gardens Santa Monica Santa Ana   

Hawthorne Sierra Madre Seal Beach   

Hermosa Beach  Signal Hill Stanton   

Hidden Hills South El Monte Tustin   

Huntington Park South Gate Villa Park   

Inglewood South Pasadena Westminster   

Irwindale Temple City Yorba Linda   

La Canada Flintridge Torrance    

La Habra Heights Walnut    

La Mirada West Covina    

La Puente West Hollywood    

La Verne Westlake Village    

Lakewood  Whittier    

Total Eligible 
Governments = 162 

Los Angeles = 82 Orange = 35 Riverside = 28 San Bernardino = 17 

 

 

 

47



 

19 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

FY 2023-24 AB 2766 Subvention Fund Program Report

48



South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024                 
 

20 

County and Local Government 
Beginning  

Balance 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Fees 

Received  

Interest Revenue 
Project  

Spending 
Admin 

Ending  

Balance 

Funds Pre-

Designated 

for Future 

Year 

 

 
           

Los Angeles          
 

Agoura Hills  $68,932 $19,942 $3,437 $92,310 $0 $0 $92,310 $60,000  

Alhambra  $343,931 $109,349 $14,941 $468,221 $120,600 $0 $347,621 $260,000  

Arcadia  $212,457 $55,985 $9,840 $278,282 $53,977 $0 $224,305 $224,000  

Artesia  $298,779 $21,648 $13,744 $334,171 $10,009 $0 $324,163 $184,630  

Azusa  $427,353 $66,561 $12,120 $506,034 $10,762 $530 $494,742 $400,000  

Baldwin Park  $105,747 $94,653 $1,301 $201,702 $181,294 $0 $20,408 $100,000  

Bell  $192,958 $44,887 $8,624 $246,469 $0 $606 $245,863 $125,000  

Bell Gardens  $41,502 $33,434 $56 $74,992 $472 $0 $74,520 $34,100  

Bellflower  $321,464 $103,472 $10,620 $435,556 $244,836 $0 $190,720 $190,720  

Beverly Hills  $360,640 $31,933 $18,962 $411,535 $3,057 $0 $408,478 $360,640  

Burbank  $492,917 $140,612 $22,873 $656,402 $101,649 $1,569 $553,184 $553,184  

Calabasas  $262,635 $30,679 $7,450 $300,764 $70,843 $0 $229,921 $210,000  

Carson  $506,778 $123,917 $98,157 $728,852 $116,581 $0 $612,271 $450,000  

Cerritos  $695,498 $64,641 $14,532 $774,670 $21,000 $4,040 $749,630 $749,631  

Claremont  $404,194 $49,442 $17,123 $470,759 $152,268 $0 $318,491 $315,000  

Commerce  $38,010 $16,189 $277 $54,477 $5,589 $0 $48,888 $48,888  

Compton  $1,028,370 $126,063 $5,387 $1,159,819 $6,204 $0 $1,153,615 $800,000  

Covina  $212,519 $50,787 $2,632 $265,938 $212,629 $2,270 $51,040 $51,000  

Cudahy  $130,029 $28,649 $0 $158,678 $149,660 $0 $9,018 $100,000  

Culver City  $353,978 $53,377 $4,299 $411,655 $136,065 $0 $275,590 $275,000  

Diamond Bar  $211,290 $71,804 $7,490 $290,584 $159,413 $0 $131,171 $131,170  

Downey  $409,077 $149,659 $12,965 $571,701 $272,423 $0 $299,278 $250,000  

Duarte  $176,657 $30,663 $5,311 $212,631 $55,925 $0 $156,706 $150,000  

El Monte  $421,842 $143,090 $11,469 $576,400 $349,285 $0 $227,115 $227,115  

El Segundo  $167,729 $17,075 $4,011 $188,815 $0 $0 $188,815 $169,933  

Gardena  $137,417 $60,328 $2,515 $200,260 $111,183 $3,500 $85,578 $70,000  

Glendale  $1,147,881 $257,352 $31,863 $1,437,096 $137,883 $8,005 $1,291,208 $1,086,950  

Glendora  $323,765 $68,886 $4,474 $397,126 $282,733 $2,494 $111,899 $111,000  

Hawaiian Gardens  $76,634 $18,221 $3,295 $98,150 $1,000 $0 $97,150 $88,163  

Hawthorne  $181,682 $115,279 $6,004 $302,966 $109,713 $0 $193,253 $100,000  

Hermosa Beach  $90,529 $19,183 $5,681 $115,394 $46,630 $0 $68,764 $135,000  

Hidden Hills  $10,730 $2,328 $360 $13,419 $0 $0 $13,419 $13,418  

49



South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024                 
 

21 

County and Local Government 
Beginning  

Balance 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Fees 

Received  

Interest Revenue 
Project  

Spending 
Admin 

Ending  

Balance 

Funds Pre-

Designated 

for Future 

Year 

 

 
Huntington Park  $375,457 $71,669 $3,395 $450,522 $335,040 $0 $115,482 $95,000  

Inglewood  $665,770 $142,916 $20,447 $829,133 $51,020 $6,373 $771,741 $650,000  

Irwindale  $1,658 $2,492 $63 $4,213 $0 $0 $4,213 $0  

La Canada Flintridge  $284,929 $26,800 $10,170 $321,900 $215,875 $0 $106,025 $106,000  

La Habra Heights  $28,937 $5,553 $1,732 $36,223 $0 $0 $36,223 $36,223  

La Mirada  $523,826 $64,430 $44,225 $632,480 $59,932 $0 $572,549 $0  

La Puente  $179,949 $37,680 $2,889 $220,519 $0 $167 $220,352 $150,000  

La Verne  $655,229 $43,108 $22,018 $720,355 $95,015 $0 $625,340 $537,554  

Lakewood  $306,655 $107,817 $1,772 $416,244 $393,967 $0 $22,277 $22,276  

Lawndale  $224,809 $41,540 $6,370 $272,719 $0 $0 $272,719 $170,000  

Lomita  $62,538 $27,026 $1,920 $91,484 $20,000 $0 $71,484 $53,613  

Long Beach  $3,631,614 $615,845 $89,032 $4,336,490 $103,470 $983 $4,232,037 $3,000,000  

Los Angeles City  $4,279,277 $4,686,398 $153,319 $9,118,994 $4,471,365 $0 $4,647,630 $3,683,380  

Los Angeles County  $4,003,823 $1,342,426 $29,367 $5,375,616 $1,342,426 $0 $4,033,190 $4,033,190  

Lynwood  $498,753 $66,803 $3,543 $569,099 $59,596 $0 $509,503 $40,000  

Malibu  $152,038 $14,140 $5,206 $171,384 $0 $0 $171,384 $171,384  

Manhattan Beach  $238,036 $34,582 $10,862 $283,480 $2,245 $672 $280,563 $0  

Maywood  $189,997 $33,017 $465 $223,479 $0 $0 $223,479 $154,000  

Monrovia  $336,335 $37,865 $12,804 $387,004 $3,289 $0 $383,716 $383,716  

Montebello  $243,844 $82,920 $7,125 $333,889 $8,110 $5,100 $320,679 $123,000  

Monterey Park  $426,337 $79,883 $16,548 $522,768 $47,725 $0 $475,043 $392,076  

Norwalk  $270,239 $136,062 $10,262 $416,563 $95,989 $0 $320,574 $250,000  

Palos Verdes Estates  $176,077 $17,399 $1,764 $195,240 $0 $0 $195,240 $0  

Paramount  $79,972 $70,186 $2,512 $152,670 $88,998 $3,658 $60,014 $60,014  

Pasadena  $303,203 $138,178 $7,519 $448,900 $70,070 $0 $378,830 $378,830  

Pico Rivera  $504,055 $74,713 $27,351 $606,119 $43,580 $0 $562,539 $185,681  

Pomona  $343,198 $201,392 $11,635 $556,225 $43,178 $9,437 $503,610 $488,289  

Rancho Palos Verdes  $37,315 $55,190 $2,209 $94,714 $0 $0 $94,714 $94,714  

Redondo Beach  $270,027 $74,129 $6,440 $350,595 $48,071 $3,311 $299,214 $270,027  

Rolling Hills Estates  $144,389 $11,361 $6,272 $162,022 $0 $0 $162,022 $192,022  

Rosemead  $448,763 $65,726 $18,457 $532,945 $34,774 $3,893 $494,278 $494,278  

San Dimas  $332,869 $34,375 $10,083 $377,327 $195,172 $1,719 $180,436 $150,000  

San Fernando  $181,693 $31,535 $5,531 $218,759 $0 $0 $218,759 $65,000  

San Gabriel  $372,126 $38,800 $17,774 $428,700 $0 $0 $428,700 $428,700  

50



South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024                 
 

22 

County and Local Government 
Beginning  

Balance 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Fees 

Received  

Interest Revenue 
Project  

Spending 
Admin 

Ending  

Balance 

Funds Pre-

Designated 

for Future 

Year 

 

 
San Marino  $63,381 $16,470 $3,298 $83,149 $58,782 $0 $24,367 $24,367  

Santa Clarita  $558,416 $310,263 $24,198 $892,878 $250,401 $3,916 $638,561 $638,561  

Santa Fe Springs  $252,759 $24,979 $8,574 $286,311 $118,852 $0 $167,459 $167,459  

Santa Monica  $855,006 $123,374 $58,173 $1,036,553 $75,413 $7,700 $953,440 $526,384  

Sierra Madre  $14,544 $14,556 $626 $29,726 $0 $0 $29,726 $29,726  

Signal Hill  $123,544 $15,376 $4,811 $143,731 $70,855 $0 $72,876 $70,000  

South El Monte  $79,610 $19,630 $2,092 $101,331 $35,600 $0 $65,731 $55,000  

South Gate  $404,400 $124,596 $19,565 $548,560 $105,503 $2,089 $440,968 $199,705  

South Pasadena  $200,000 $33,200 $0 $233,200 $0 $0 $233,200 $233,200  

Temple City  $56,201 $48,164 $1,480 $105,844 $55,628 $0 $50,217 $45,000  

Torrance  $452,516 $192,470 $13,843 $658,829 $154,656 $0 $504,173 $452,516  

Walnut  $36,017 $37,062 $1,269 $74,348 $52,256 $0 $22,092 $22,092  

West Covina  $367,225 $145,129 $11,251 $523,604 $56,842 $400 $466,363 $400,000  

West Hollywood  $260,957 $46,801 $11,433 $319,190 $8,513 $0 $310,677 $260,957  

Westlake Village  $61,214 $10,652 $2,556 $74,422 $7,605 $0 $66,817 $40,000  

Whittier  $868,419 $117,417 $39,127 $1,024,963 $105,857 $5,255 $913,850 $408,677  

County Total: $35,281,869 $12,014,183 $1,135,190 $48,431,242 $12,109,347 $77,686 $36,244,210 $28,457,154 
 

          
 

Orange          
 

Aliso Viejo  $1,145,741 $51,207 $200,052 $1,397,000 $0 $0 $1,397,000 $1,397,000  

Anaheim  $404,945 $441,979 $10,245 $857,169 $496,131 $3,999 $357,039 $357,039  

Brea  $191,345 $64,813 $3,304 $259,462 $13,947 $361 $245,154 $245,154  

Buena Park  $619,876 $84,242 $14,891 $719,009 $328,559 $0 $390,451 $390,451  

Costa Mesa  $446,004 $150,191 $17,512 $613,707 $114,282 $0 $499,425 $475,000  

Cypress  $0 $65,752 $0 $65,752 $65,752 $0 $0 $0  

Dana Point  $458,965 $44,597 $8,578 $512,140 $240,000 $0 $272,140 $458,965  

Fountain Valley  $500,145 $76,347 $13,971 $590,463 $210,000 $0 $380,463 $210,000  

Fullerton  $989,713 $240,444 $31,759 $1,261,915 $240,444 $5,505 $1,015,967 $360,000  

Garden Grove  $545,680 $172,670 $7,258 $725,608 $461,986 $2,800 $260,822 $195,617  

Huntington Beach  $1,037,743 $228,661 $18,292 $1,284,696 $404,332 $1,363 $879,002 $1,325,888  

Irvine  $850,409 $407,639 $21,194 $1,279,242 $266,429 $0 $1,012,813 $637,807  

La Habra  $296,270 $83,175 $13,166 $392,611 $38,105 $0 $354,506 $100,000  

La Palma  $243,067 $20,623 $11,117 $274,807 $0 $0 $274,807 $0  

51



South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024                 
 

23 

County and Local Government 
Beginning  

Balance 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Fees 

Received  

Interest Revenue 
Project  

Spending 
Admin 

Ending  

Balance 

Funds Pre-

Designated 

for Future 

Year 

 

 
Laguna Beach  $21,564 $30,213 $669 $52,445 $0 $0 $52,445 $52,445  

Laguna Hills  $194,895 $30,790 $7,922 $233,606 $71,608 $0 $161,998 $140,000  

Laguna Niguel  $308,731 $65,264 $19,817 $393,813 $280,448 $0 $113,365 $113,365  

Laguna Woods  $236,878 $23,443 $7,721 $268,042 $8,611 $0 $259,431 $194,573  

Lake Forest  $586,618 $116,824 $29,705 $733,147 $29,924 $0 $703,223 $576,015  

Los Alamitos  $167,121 $16,194 $4,367 $187,683 $0 $0 $187,683 $0  

Mission Viejo  $573,102 $123,544 $16,680 $713,326 $0 $1,527 $711,799 $648,848  

Newport Beach  $1,552,736 $112,059 $80,473 $1,745,268 $0 $0 $1,745,268 $1,700,000  

Orange City  $165,956 $186,188 $8,675 $360,819 $106,889 $3,399 $250,532 $200,000  

Orange County  $467,097 $178,401 $19,714 $665,212 $147,675 $2,547 $514,989 $400,000  

Placentia  $288,864 $52,962 $6,555 $348,381 $35,817 $0 $312,564 $318,278  

Rancho Santa Margarita $226,902 $63,310 $11,425 $301,637 $16,166 $0 $285,471 $67,013  

San Clemente  $114,829 $85,061 $4,211 $204,101 $37,509 $0 $166,592 $176,800  

San Juan Capistrano  $390,485 $35,394 $19,983 $445,862 $19,953 $0 $425,909 $404,729  

Santa Ana  $1,403,735 $302,232 $15,701 $1,721,669 $1,010,647 $0 $711,022 $785,613  

Seal Beach  $9,345 $16,301 $375 $26,021 $0 $0 $26,021 $26,021  

Stanton  $242,043 $39,423 $10,776 $292,242 $150,965 $0 $141,277 $140,000  

Tustin  $253,413 $80,249 $11,816 $345,478 $223,582 $0 $121,896 $0  

Villa Park  $3,938 $5,840 $728 $10,507 $0 $0 $10,507 $10,507  

Westminster  $115,895 $121,431 $5,137 $242,463 $0 $7,589 $234,874 $234,873  

Yorba Linda  $719,540 $90,214 $42,514 $852,267 $247,916 $0 $604,351 $38,713  

County Total: $15,773,589 $3,907,677 $696,305 $20,377,571 $5,267,675 $29,091 $15,080,805 $12,380,712 
 

          
 

Riverside          
 

Banning  $284,301 $41,077 $10,562 $335,941 $18,177 $347 $317,417 $250,000  

Beaumont  $267,785 $76,120 $10,324 $354,229 $86,819 $0 $267,410 $265,000  

Calimesa  $57,704 $14,745 $2,557 $75,006 $1,270 $0 $73,736 $73,736  

Canyon Lake  $53,158 $14,775 $2,071 $70,005 $0 $0 $70,005 $70,005  

Cathedral City  $280,239 $69,183 $16,814 $366,236 $51,888 $0 $314,349 $314,349  

Coachella  $93,117 $57,116 -$1,955 $148,279 $42,837 $1 $105,441 $50,280  

Corona  $1,722,482 $213,368 $72,558 $2,008,408 $28,620 $1,140 $1,978,648 $1,236,878  

Desert Hot Springs  $494 $43,862 $7 $44,362 $32,896 $0 $11,466 $10,000  

Eastvale  $617,349 $93,504 $16,764 $727,617 $483,686 $0 $243,932 $196,430  

52



South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024                 
 

24 

County and Local Government 
Beginning  

Balance 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Fees 

Received  

Interest Revenue 
Project  

Spending 
Admin 

Ending  

Balance 

Funds Pre-

Designated 

for Future 

Year 

 

 
Hemet  $379,967 $120,950 $20,320 $521,237 $48,701 $0 $472,536 $379,967  

Indian Wells  $13,582 $6,422 $651 $20,654 $4,816 $0 $15,838 $7,250  

Indio  $234,935 $122,186 $10,458 $367,579 $95,404 $0 $272,175 $234,935  

Jurupa Valley  $422,943 $141,215 $13,225 $577,383 $33,022 $0 $544,361 $430,561  

La Quinta  $51,113 $51,086 $3,625 $105,825 $38,315 $0 $67,510 $51,000  

Lake Elsinore  $302,030 $69,201 $11,347 $382,578 $258,675 $0 $123,902 $123,000  

Menifee  $238,412 $110,990 $5,487 $354,889 $0 $1,244 $353,645 $204,000  

Moreno Valley  $333,064 $287,838 $7,822 $628,725 $249,551 $9,103 $370,071 $300,000  

Murrieta  $791,926 $148,034 $29,461 $969,422 $0 $338 $969,084 $969,084  

Norco  $140,451 $33,678 $5,260 $179,389 $141,611 $1,500 $36,278 $36,000  

Palm Desert  $39,428 $68,083 $1,707 $109,218 $77,854 $0 $31,364 $40,000  

Palm Springs  $84,404 $44,475 $4,477 $133,356 $47,570 $0 $85,787 $80,000  

Perris  $167,420 $106,194 $3,983 $277,597 $215,737 $0 $61,860 $61,860  

Rancho Mirage  $99,918 $22,883 $368 $123,169 $17,152 $0 $106,017 $106,017  

Riverside City  $1,968,929 $423,350 $77,197 $2,469,476 $490,445 $1,575 $1,977,456 $1,968,929  

Riverside County  $1,717,836 $542,159 $14,986 $2,274,981 $490,653 $23,113 $1,761,215 $1,717,836  

San Jacinto  $55,169 $72,775 $2,009 $129,953 $73,055 $583 $56,315 $55,000  

Temecula  $391,055 $109,845 $19,018 $519,918 $80,175 $0 $439,743 $439,743  

Wildomar  $290,685 $48,876 $5,279 $344,841 $4,500 $2,474 $337,867 $337,867  

County Total: $11,099,900 $3,153,991 $366,383 $14,620,274 $3,113,429 $41,418 $11,465,426 $10,009,725  

          
 

San Bernardino          
 

Big Bear Lake  $11,539 $6,610 $1,284 $19,434 $0 $0 $19,434 $0  

Chino  $963,195 $93,946 $39,135 $1,096,276 $5,820 $0 $1,090,456 $725,000  

Chino Hills  $599,971 $77,727 $29,622 $707,320 $88,854 $3,643 $614,823 $593,558  

Colton  $762,796 $53,616 $41,850 $858,261 $103,834 $0 $754,428 $570,000  

Fontana  $1,402,277 $215,708 $39,097 $1,657,082 $687,341 $12,090 $957,651 $750,000  

Grand Terrace  $26,881 $17,275 $2,869 $47,025 $11,000 $0 $36,025 $11,000  

Highland  $341,731 $75,305 $16,059 $433,096 $62,145 $0 $370,951 $370,951  

Loma Linda  $14,814 $25,447 $238 $40,499 $36,564 $1,590 $2,345 $1,983  

Montclair  $131,557 $50,434 $1,247 $183,237 $169,495 $0 $13,742 $130,000  

Ontario  $1,023,759 $180,731 $41,132 $1,245,622 $16,006 $10,945 $1,218,670 $1,218,412  

Rancho Cucamonga  $667,860 $233,439 $29,981 $931,280 $73,930 $3,430 $853,920 $689,764  

53



South Coast Local Government Financial Summary of Motor Vehicle Funds    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024                 
 

25 

County and Local Government 
Beginning  

Balance 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Fees 

Received  

Interest Revenue 
Project  

Spending 
Admin 

Ending  

Balance 

Funds Pre-

Designated 

for Future 

Year 

 

 
Redlands  $210,723 $72,597 $21,773 $305,093 $0 $799 $304,295 $303,642  

Rialto  $479,242 $138,527 $17,704 $635,472 $40,196 $7,400 $587,877 $440,908  

San Bernardino City  $557,125 $298,822 $23,350 $879,296 $327,249 $223 $551,824 $565,100  

San Bernardino County  $22,088 $309,670 $30,903 $362,661 $335,802 $19,352 $7,507 $7,043  

Upland  $290,224 $105,425 $7,483 $403,133 $210,724 $6,402 $186,007 $187,507 
 

Yucaipa  $53,760 $72,634 $0 $126,395 $72,000 $0 $54,395 $60,000 
 

County Total: $7,559,543 $2,027,912 $343,727 $9,931,182 $2,240,960 $65,874 $7,624,348 $6,624,868 
 

 
 

Grand Total:  $69,714,901 $21,103,764 $2,541,606 $93,360,270 $22,731,411 $214,070 $70,414,789 $57,472,460 
 

Number of Local Governments:          162  
 

54



Local Government Administrative Costs 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

26 

Local Government 
Administrative 

Costs 
Motor Vehicle Revenues

Agoura Hills $0 $168,451

Alhambra $0 $444,397

Aliso Viejo $0 $1,145,741

Anaheim $3,999 $887,752

Arcadia $0 $330,506

Artesia $0 $298,779

Azusa $530 $446,175

Baldwin Park $0 $295,222

Banning $347 $475,806

Beaumont $0 $423,465

Bell $606 $191,992

Bell Gardens $0 $46,658

Bellflower $0 $459,608

Beverly Hills $0 $338,334

Big Bear Lake $0 $101,539

Brea $361 $555,238

Buena Park $0 $754,608

Burbank $1,569 $592,239

Calabasas $0 $262,635

Calimesa $0 $59,044

Canyon Lake $0 $53,158

Carson $0 $565,197

Cathedral City $0 $332,200

Cerritos $4,040 $720,662

Chino $0 $1,073,205

Chino Hills $3,643 $692,212

Claremont $0 $410,892

Coachella $1 $134,855

Colton $0 $305,750

Commerce $0 $43,551

Compton $0 $1,175,153

Corona $1,140 $1,745,899

Costa Mesa $0 $563,967

Covina $2,270 $185,226

Cudahy $0 $163,981

Culver City $0 $365,419

Cypress $0 $65,752

Dana Point $0 $752,795

Desert Hot Springs $0 $40,132

Diamond Bar $0 $326,552

Downey $0 $559,566

Duarte $0 $170,150

55



Local Government Administrative Costs  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024     

27 

Local Government 

  
Administrative  

Costs 
Motor Vehicle Revenues  

  

Eastvale $0 $626,580 

El Monte $0 $554,776 

El Segundo $0 $167,729 

Fontana $12,090 $1,631,618 

Fountain Valley $0 $640,517 

Fullerton $5,505 $1,194,739 

Garden Grove $2,800 $743,944 

Gardena $3,500 $198,975 

Glendale $8,005 $1,212,527 

Glendora $2,494 $386,313 

Grand Terrace $0 $39,447 

Hawaiian Gardens $0 $82,919 

Hawthorne $0 $295,939 

Hemet $0 $1,061,928 

Hermosa Beach $0 $94,234 

Hidden Hills $0 $10,730 

Highland $0 $416,356 

Huntington Beach $1,363 $1,552,976 

Huntington Park $0 $373,501 

Indian Wells $0 $19,635 

Indio $0 $353,975 

Inglewood $6,373 $672,655 

Irvine $0 $1,031,919 

Irwindale $0 $7,658 

Jurupa Valley $0 $686,884 

La Canada Flintridge $0 $352,150 

La Habra $0 $294,967 

La Habra Heights $0 $29,069 

La Mirada $0 $526,715 

La Palma $0 $243,067 

La Puente $167 $148,114 

La Quinta $0 $86,655 

La Verne $0 $654,513 

Laguna Beach $0 $51,185 

Laguna Hills $0 $305,712 

Laguna Niguel $0 $459,360 

Laguna Woods $0 $268,667 

Lake Elsinore $0 $308,030 

Lake Forest $0 $693,791 

Lakewood $0 $531,380 

Lawndale $0 $224,809 

Loma Linda $1,590 $54,126 

Lomita $0 $82,538 

56



Local Government Administrative Costs  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024     

28 

Local Government 

  
Administrative  

Costs 
Motor Vehicle Revenues  

  

Long Beach $983 $2,015,169 

Los Alamitos $0 $167,121 

Los Angeles City $0 $10,187,100 

Los Angeles County $0 $5,526,627 

Lynwood $0 $495,299 

Malibu $0 $152,038 

Manhattan Beach $672 $240,315 

Maywood $0 $200,827 

Menifee $1,244 $278,421 

Mission Viejo $1,527 $574,085 

Monrovia $0 $326,797 

Montclair $0 $275,025 

Montebello $5,100 $263,748 

Monterey Park $0 $466,961 

Moreno Valley $9,103 $586,700 

Murrieta $338 $858,172 

Newport Beach $0 $1,552,736 

Norco $1,500 $191,212 

Norwalk $0 $366,094 

Ontario $10,945 $1,529,342 

Orange City $3,399 $352,087 

Orange County $2,547 $601,423 

Palm Desert $0 $107,487 

Palm Springs $0 $140,901 

Palos Verdes Estates $0 $174,902 

Paramount $3,658 $481,770 

Pasadena $0 $345,304 

Perris $0 $318,670 

Pico Rivera $0 $539,539 

Placentia $0 $273,029 

Pomona $9,437 $482,566 

Rancho Cucamonga $3,430 $773,160 

Rancho Mirage $0 $116,555 

Rancho Palos Verdes $0 $207,725 

Rancho Santa Margarita $0 $289,459 

Redlands $799 $510,226 

Redondo Beach $3,311 $313,701 

Rialto $7,400 $723,662 

Riverside City $1,575 $2,260,343 

Riverside County $23,113 $1,987,075 

Rolling Hills Estates $0 $154,389 

Rosemead $3,893 $567,026 

San Bernardino City $223 $579,390 

57



Local Government Administrative Costs 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

29 

Local Government 
Administrative 

Costs 
Motor Vehicle Revenues

San Bernardino County $19,352 $353,464

San Clemente $0 $168,671

San Dimas $1,719 $361,786

San Fernando $0 $205,978

San Gabriel $0 $401,452

San Jacinto $583 $151,271

San Juan Capistrano $0 $445,087

San Marino $0 $170,171

Santa Ana $0 $2,214,854

Santa Clarita $3,916 $586,603

Santa Fe Springs $0 $259,021

Santa Monica $7,700 $938,032

Seal Beach $0 $73,084

Sierra Madre $0 $73,529

Signal Hill $0 $123,544

South El Monte $0 $72,606

South Gate $2,089 $596,370

South Pasadena $0 $255,010

Stanton $0 $246,795

Temecula $0 $439,099

Temple City $0 $87,408

Torrance $0 $638,096

Tustin $0 $253,413

Upland $6,402 $367,461

Villa Park $0 $83,060

Walnut $0 $68,499

West Covina $400 $767,677

West Hollywood $0 $310,311

Westlake Village $0 $63,959

Westminster $7,589 $874,001

Whittier $5,255 $898,114

Wildomar $2,474 $298,124

Yorba Linda $0 $1,200,212

Yucaipa $0 $77,056

58



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

30 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 
    

(1) Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles   

(1a) Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchases/Leases 
  

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $1,635 
 

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $1,496 
 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $23,049 
 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $26,582 
 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $57,433 
 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program 15 vehicles $72,874 
 

Beaumont FY23-24 City Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $86,819 
 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $91,787 
 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $96,017 
 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick  $29,993 
 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick Truck $27,038 
 

Buena Park 2024 Kia Niro Hybrid $34,375 
 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#1) $56,945 
 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#2) $58,490 
 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#3) $58,536 
 

Claremont 2 Sanitation Vehicle Purchase (CNG) $149,967 
 

Covina 2020 Toyota Prius - Lease $7,133 
 

Covina Lease of (3) 2024 Toyota Camry LE Hybrid Vehicles $15,527 
 

Cudahy Light Duty Vehicle Leases $149,660 
 

Cypress Compressed Natural Gas Sewer Cleaning Truck $65,752 
 

Diamond Bar (2) electric, zero-emission work trucks $132,000 
 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle lease $18,642 
 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease 24 Honda Crv $10,241 
 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Ford  $9,545 
 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Toyota $17,498 
 

Eastvale Purchase of 3 Ford Escape PHEV $126,892 
 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 
 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 
 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 
 

Gardena Lease (1) 2019 Hyundai Ioniq Plug-In Hybrid Hatchback $4,560 
 

Hemet One New 2024 Ford Maverick Hybrid $37,701 
 

Huntington Beach Purchase of 1 new equipment - sweeper $388,453 
 

Jurupa Valley Vin# 1FMCU0MZ4PUB13572 $33,022 
 

La Verne New Vehicles $92,811 
 

Laguna Hills 2023 Ford F-150 Hybrid 4x4 Truck $56,681 
 

Lakewood Purchase of 1 new Ford Maverick Hybrid $35,385 
 

Lakewood Purchase of 11 new Chevrolet Equinox $348,583 
 

Lynwood 2022 Toyota Highlander Hybrid lease purchase $34,798 
 

59



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

31 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 
Norco Ford Escape ST-Line Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $36,662 

 

Norco Ford Maverick Hybrid Trucks $104,950 
 

Perris Purchase of two (2) Hybrid Cars $68,766 
 

Perris Purchase of Two (2) Toyota Hybrid Cars $84,344 
 

Riverside City Vactor Truck Purchase $399,993 
 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #504 $9,666 
 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #511 $5,368 
 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #514 $5,925 
 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #515 $7,889  

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #516 $5,925  

San Bernardino City 2024 FREIGHTLINER 114SD VIN 1FVHG3FW7RHVG3539 $302,500 
 

San Dimas Street Sweeper $195,172 
 

San Jacinto Vactor Truck $66,455 
 

Santa Clarita 2024 CNG Freightliner Dump Truck $237,658 
 

Stanton Purchase of Toyota Sienna hybrid Minivan $116,559 
 

Temple City City Fleet Low Emission Vehicles Lease $55,628 
 

Tustin Purchase 2 plug-in hybrid EVs $71,082 
 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $149,511 
 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $38,208 
 

Walnut Purchase of Hybrid Vehicle $20,000 
 

Westlake Village Lease of 1 Alternative Fuel Vehicle $7,605 
 

 Subcategory Total: $4,449,285 
 

(1c) Alternative Fuel Infrastructure  
 

Fullerton CNG Station Improvement $240,444 
 

Montclair EV Charging Stations $169,495 
 

Ontario CNG Compressor Upgrade $16,006 
 

Riverside County Beam EV Mobile Solar Charger Mobility Trailer $45,511 
 

 Subcategory Total: $471,457 
 

(1d) Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases  
 

Alhambra Purchase two (2) Ford Mach E $114,600 
 

Arcadia City Fleet Vehicle - Chevrolet Bolt EUV $37,744 
 

Brea John Deere TE 4x2 Electric Utility Vehicle $13,947 
 

Buena Park Police Captain's Take-home Car - Tesla Model Y $55,638 
 

Buena Park Replace police captain's take-home vehicle with Ford Mach E $50,598 
 

Calabasas 2 Electric Vehicle Purchase $70,843 
 

Carson ELECTRIC UTILITY VEHICLE / GATOR $17,804 
 

Carson Purchase of F-150 Lightning $77,858 
 

Chino Hills Hybrid-gasoline vehicle $43,960 
 

Colton Electric Vehicle Ford Lightening Fleet Purchases $103,834 
 

Covina Purchase of (3) 2023 Ford E-Transit Cargo Vans $188,278 
 

Culver City Pool Car Purchase $46,077 
 

60



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

32 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 
Eastvale Purchase of 1 Ford F-150 Lighting $33,005 

 

El Monte El Monte Transit Service Trucks $132,218 
 

El Monte Paratransit/Team-Building Electric Van $119,543 
 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 
 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 
 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 
 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Lease Electric Vehicles  $11,759 
 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Purchased Electric Vehicles  $29,397 
 

Garden Grove 2024 ZEV Electric Vehicle Purchase  $17,638 
 

Gardena Down Payment/Lease (1) 2023 Tesla Model Y Long Range AWD,  $28,989 
 

Gardena Lease (1) 2020 Tesla Model 3 AWD $15,610 
 

Glendora EV250 Buses $256,931 
 

Grand Terrace Grand Terrace Senior Bus $11,000 
 

Hermosa Beach Purchase of Tesla $41,500 
 

Huntington Park 1 2019 Green Power EV Star $55,840 
 

Huntington Park 2019 Green Power EV Star Shuttle Purchase - 5 Vehicles $279,200 
 

Irvine Irvine Police Cybertruck Purchase $18,613 
 

La Mirada ELECTRIC FORKLIFT $59,932 
 

Laguna Hills Electric Payloader Cart $14,928 
 

Lynwood John Deere Gator Vehicle  $19,798 
 

Orange City Clubb Car Ambulance Transport $27,710 
 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3349 $52,838 
 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3352 $52,838 
 

Paramount Purchase of an Electric Utility Vehicle $14,782 
 

Paramount Lease of Electric Vehicles $67,416 
 

Perris Purchase of Electric Vehicles $62,627 
 

Pico Rivera Purchase (1) electric vehicle (2023 Ford Lightning) $34,600 
 

Rancho Cucamonga 2023 Chevrolet Bolt  $41,059 
 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Heavy Duty Additions (Rizon) $217,587 
 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Chevy Blazers) $246,470 
 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Ford F-150 Lightings) $116,939 
 

Santa Fe Springs Electric Transit Van $116,752 
 

Signal Hill Purchase of Ford F-150 Lightning $70,855 
 

South Gate Replace One Gas-Powered Vehicle with Electric Vehicle  $33,617 
 

Stanton Purchase of electric forklift $33,993 
 

West Covina Purchase of 2023 Ford E-Transit 350 Cargo Van $56,842 
 

Whittier New Vehicle Purchase  $78,761 
 

Yorba Linda Purchase of 5 new EV's $247,916 
 

 Subcategory Total: $3,542,183 
 

    

    

61



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

33 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

(1f) Electric Vehicle Infrastructure  
 

Artesia EV Charging Facility Expansion Project $10,009 
 

Banning Installation of EV Chargers $14,877 
 

Chino Hills Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $44,894 
 

Culver City Off-Grid EV Charger $89,987 
 

Downey Electric Vehicle Charging Station $89,530 
 

Eastvale EV Charging Stations  $12,132 
 

Gardena 
Purchase of (71) Noodoe EV AC11P Charging Stations and EV P220S 
Dual Mount Pedestal $61,859 

 

Irvine EV Chargers for City of Irvine Operations Support Facility $11,387 
 

Laguna Woods City Hall Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Project $8,611 
 

Los Angeles City Deployment of EV Charging Stations at Citywide Locations $27,053 
 

Manhattan Beach Meter & Service Plan for Future EV Charger Project $2,245 
 

Monrovia City of Monrovia EV Chargers $3,289 
 

Orange City Charging station $8,971 
 

Paramount EV Charging Stations $6,800 
 

Pico Rivera City Hall Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (EVCS) $8,980 
 

San Juan Capistrano Electric Car Charging Station at Community Center $153 
 

Santa Ana Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $56,988 
 

South Gate Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $71,886 
 

 Subcategory Total: $529,649 
 

 Category Total: $8,992,573 
 

(2) Vehicle Emissions Abatement  
 

(2a) Off-Road Vehicle Cleaner Diesel Purchases, Repowers, and Retrofits  
 

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader $302,306 
 

San Marino Riding Lawnmower Replacement $58,782 
 

South El Monte Mean Green Electric Mower $35,600 
 

 Subcategory Total: $396,688 
 

 Category Total: $396,688 
 

(3) Land Use   
 

(3a) Plan Elements  
 

Los Angeles City Multi-Modal Infrastructure Planning $318,696 
 

Los Angeles City Transportation & Land Use Planning $637,498 
 

Lynwood Gateway Cities COG I-710 Study $5,000 
 

Santa Ana Comprehensive General Plan/Land-Use $205,459 
 

Whittier Gateway Cities COGs $11,742 
 

 Subcategory Total: $1,178,395 
 

(3c) Facilities (Pedestrian, Mixed Use, etc.)  
 

Fontana Alder Middle School Sidewalk PN3367 $397,904 
 

Fontana Alder‐Locust‐Ramona Safe Routes to School PN 3339 $138,412 
 

Fontana Blanchard Avenue Sidewalk Gap Project PN 3115 $91,800 
 

Rancho Cucamonga Haven Avenue Sidewalk Improvement $3,484 
 

62



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

34 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

Yucaipa Yucaipa Blvd - 2nd to 5th St - Phase 3 $72,000 
 

 Subcategory Total: $703,601 
 

(3d) Land Use Research  
 

Lakewood 91/605/405 COG Major Corridor Study $10,000 
 

   
 

 Subcategory Total: $10,000 
 

 Category Total: $1,891,996 
 

(4) Public Transportation (Transit & Rail)  
 

(4a) Public Transportation Facilities  
 

Irvine Security Services at Irvine Train Station $196,444 
 

   
 

 Subcategory Total: $196,444 
 

(4c) Transit Operations  
 

Dana Point Dana Point Trolley and Special Event Program $240,000 
 

La Habra Shuttle to Transport Seniors $38,105 
 

Placentia Senior Mobility Program  $35,817 
 

 Subcategory Total: $313,922 
 

(4d) Passenger Fare Subsidies  
 

Anaheim Metrolink and OCTA $70,468 
 

Azusa Transit Pass Subsidy $1,344 
 

Corona Corona Cruiser Fare Subsidy $4,061 
 

Covina Commuter Choice $1,691 
 

Garden Grove Transit Subsidy Metrolink & Bus $14,837 
 

Glendale Transit Fare Subsidy  $34,059 
 

Norwalk Commuter Benefits Program $8,425 
 

Riverside City Riverside Go Transit Bus Pass Subsidy Program $75,831 
 

Santa Fe Springs GO RIO (BUS PASS PROGRAM) $2,100 
 

Walnut Bus Pass Subsidy $256 
 

Whittier GO RIO $9,268 
 

 Subcategory Total: $222,340 
 

 Category Total: $732,706 
 

(5) Traffic Management  
 

(5a) Traffic Calming  
 

Anaheim 
Improvements at various locations with confirmed speeding issues 
within City limits. $23,247 

 

Corona SB 821 Sidewalk Gap Closure $8,059 
 

Diamond Bar NTMP/NORTHAMPTON NEIGHBORHOOD  $27,413 
 

Long Beach South ST Quick Build $1,105 
 

Los Angeles City 

Neighborhood Traffic Management - Traffic Management & Signal 

Coordination $1,076,646 
 

San Clemente Traffic Calming Improvements $37,509 
 

 Subcategory Total: $1,173,980 
 

63



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

35 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

(5b) Traffic Flow or Signalization  
 

Anaheim Anaheim Bl from La Palma Ave to Wilken Wy $600 
 

Costa Mesa Baker/Placentia/19th/Victoria TSSP $56,430 
 

Costa Mesa Bear Street Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $851 
 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - 5th St / Greenspot Rd $31,073 
 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - Baseline $31,072 
 

Laguna Niguel Traffic Signal Coordination $280,448 
 

Lake Forest Lake Forest Drive Traffic Signal Synchronization $1,298 
 

Los Angeles City 3rd St $29,109 
 

Los Angeles City 6th St  $66,831 
 

Los Angeles City 8th St $44,257 
 

Los Angeles City Adams Blvd $70,692 
 

Los Angeles City Bundy Dr $46,039 
 

Los Angeles City Burbank Blvd $29,109 
 

Los Angeles City Cashio St $46,336 
 

Los Angeles City Figueroa St $48,415 
 

Los Angeles City Florence Ave $101,583 
 

Los Angeles City Fountain Ave $40,990 
 

Los Angeles City James M Wood Blvd $42,475 
 

Los Angeles City Los Angeles St $53,465 
 

Los Angeles City Melrose Ave $81,385 
 

Los Angeles City Ohio Ave $45,445 
 

Los Angeles City Pacific Ave $64,158 
 

Los Angeles City Pico Blvd $102,771 
 

Los Angeles City S Grand Ave $71,880 
 

Los Angeles City S Pacific Ave (San Pedro) $72,771 
 

Los Angeles City Sawtelle Blvd $59,702 
 

Los Angeles City Soto St $34,752 
 

Los Angeles City Temple St $56,138 
 

Los Angeles City Van Ness Ave $55,247 
 

Los Angeles City Vine St $42,178 
 

Los Angeles City W 19th St $44,257 
 

Los Angeles City Wilton Pl $47,227 
 

Moreno Valley Traffic Signal Coordination Program $30,667 
 

Pomona Traffic Controller Upgrades $8,865 
 

Rancho Santa Margarita Los Alisos/Melinda Road Signal Equipment Update $720 
 

Riverside City Traffic Timing Signal Coordination $2,943 
 

 Subcategory Total: $1,842,177 
 

    

    

    

64



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

36 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

(5c) Alternate Mode Signalization  
 

Tustin Red Hill Ave. Pedestrian Crosswalk $152,500 
 

 Subcategory Total: $152,500 
 

(5d) Traffic Management Research and Development  
 

Huntington Beach Traffic Counts $1,045 
 

Rancho Santa Margarita Santa Margarita Parkway Signal Synchronization Project $15,446 
 

   
 

 Subcategory Total: $16,491 
 

 Category Total: $3,185,148 
 

(6) Transportation Demand Management  
 

(6a) Employer-Based Trip Reduction  
 

Anaheim Trip Reduction $171,607 
 

Arcadia Rideshare Plus Program $16,232 
 

Azusa Rideshare Financial Incentives $6,287 
 

Baldwin Park Employer Trip Reduction Incentive Program $1,357 
 

Bell Gardens Employee Ride Share Subsidies $472 
 

Buena Park Employee Rideshare Program Incentives $13,977 
 

Burbank Employee Rideshare Subsidies $44,054 
 

Burbank Employee Transit Subsidies $54,803 
 

Carson Breathe Employee Rideshare Project $20,918 
 

Cerritos City Employee Rideshare Trip Rebate Program $21,000 
 

Claremont Trip-Reduction Program $2,301 
 

Commerce Employer Based Trip Reduction  $5,589 
 

Compton Employee Transit/Pass Subsidy Program $6,204 
 

Downey Downey Employee "Thumbs Up" Commuting Program $180,866 
 

El Monte Employee Rideshare Program $64,666 
 

Fontana Employee Rideshare Program $12,078 
 

Garden Grove Rideshare Redemption  $21,431 
 

Glendale Employer Based Trip Reduction Program  $94,106 
 

Glendora Alternative Commute Program $25,802 
 

Hermosa Beach Auto Trip Reduction Program $5,130 
 

Huntington Beach Employer-Based Trip Reduction $14,833 
 

La Verne City of La Verne Walk, Bike, Carpool or Public Transit Program $2,204 
 

Los Angeles City Bikeshare Incentive $1,705 
 

Los Angeles City Employer's Bike Incentive Program $21,391 
 

Los Angeles City Employer's Carpool Incentive Program $7,150 
 

Los Angeles City Employer's Transit Subsidy Program $292,625 
 

Los Angeles City Employer's Walk Incentive Program $13,547 
 

Los Angeles County Countywide Rideshare Program $1,342,426 
 

Montebello Employee Rideshare Program $8,110 
 

Monterey Park Employee Rideshare Program $47,725 
 

65



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

37 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

Orange City Trip Reduction Program (TRP) $60,919 
 

Orange County Ride Share $42,000 
 

Palm Desert Rideshare Program $1,690 
 

Palm Springs Employee Rideshare and Low-Carbon Transportation Initiative $3,088 
 

Rancho Cucamonga Rideshare Program $13,295 
 

Redondo Beach Employee Rideshare $48,071 
 

Rialto Employee Rideshare Program $32,828 
 

Riverside County Commuter Service Rideshare Program $344,732 
 

San Bernardino City Rideshare Program $24,750 
 

San Bernardino County ECRP $310,084 
 

Santa Ana Rideshare Program $167,204 
 

Santa Clarita Monthly Passes $2,946 
 

Santa Clarita Rideshare Program $1,507 
 

Stanton Rideshare Incentive Program $413 
 

Torrance Employee Rideshare $154,656 
 

Upland Rideshare Program $23,005 
 

West Hollywood Alternative Transportation Mode Incentive $5,305 
 

Whittier Rideshare Reward $500 
 

 Subcategory Total: $3,757,586 
 

(6b) Other Trip Reduction Incentive Programs  
 

Pasadena Rideshare program $42,270 
 

San Juan Capistrano Senior Nutritional Transportation Program $19,800 
 

Whittier Bike to Work $725 
 

 Subcategory Total: $62,795 
 

(6c) Vanpool Programs  
 

Anaheim Vanpool $211,139 
 

Garden Grove Vanpool Program $40,104 
 

Los Angeles City Employer's Vanpool Program $218,569 
 

San Bernardino County SCAQMD Vanpool Program $17,325 
 

 Subcategory Total: $487,137 
 

(6e) Telecommunication  
 

Garden Grove Telecommunication $8,812 
 

 Subcategory Total: $8,812 
 

(6f) Transportation Management Agencies/Organizations  
 

Glendale Transportation Management Agency Services (Go Glendale)  $8,355 
 

Los Angeles City Transportation Demand Management/Trip Reduction Programs $284,699 
 

 Subcategory Total: $293,054 
 

 Category Total: $4,609,385 
 

    

    

    

66



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

38 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

(8) Bicycles   
 

(8a) Bicycle Lanes, Trails, and Bridges  
 

Anaheim Nohl Ranch Open Space Trail $15,002 
 

Costa Mesa W 19th Bike Facility Improvements $57,001 
 

Fontana Fontana Safe Routes to School Gap Closure PN 0003 $44,146 
 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Brookhurst St. from Trask 

Ave. to Katella Ave $65,008 
 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Chapman from Valley View 

to Beach Blvd.  $76,578 
 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Gilbert St. from Deodora 

Drive/ Westminster Blvd to Katella Ave  $47,249 
 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Lampson Ave. from Dale St. 

to Haster St $79,313 
 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - West Street from Garden 

Grove Avenue to Orangewood Avenue $49,861 
 

La Canada Flintridge Foothill Blvd. Link Project $215,875 
 

Rancho Cucamonga Cucamonga Creek Channel Bike Trail $1,556 
 

Rancho Cucamonga Day Creek Bike Trail $14,536 
 

Temecula Citywide Buffered Bike Lane Striping $69,175 
 

West Hollywood Fountain Ave Bicycle Facilities Project $3,209 
 

 Subcategory Total: $738,508 
 

(8b) Other Bicycle Facilities  
 

Burbank Bicycle Rack Program $2,792 
 

Long Beach Bike Community Forum $88,024 
 

Palm Desert Bicycle Rack Incentive Program $1,080 
 

Rialto Bikeshare Plan & Pedestrian Access $7,368 
 

 Subcategory Total: $99,264 
 

(8c) Bicycle Usage   
 

Inglewood Electric Bikes $44,034 
 

Los Angeles City Metro Bikeshare (Citywide) $136,240 
 

Orange City Police Bike Team $9,288 
 

Pasadena E-Bike Rebate Program $25,000 
 

 Subcategory Total: $214,562 
 

 Category Total: $1,052,334 
 

(9) PM Reduction Strategies  
 

(9a) Road Dust Control  
 

Cathedral City Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $51,888 
 

Coachella Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $42,837 
 

Desert Hot Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $32,896 
 

El Monte Street Sweeper $32,858 
 

Hawthorne Reduction Street Sweeping Project  $109,713 
 

Indian Wells Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $4,816 
 

Indio Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $95,404 
 

La Quinta Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $38,315 
 

67



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

39 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

Lake Elsinore Citywide Dirt Road Paving $252,675 
 

Loma Linda City Street Sweeping $36,564 
 

Lomita Street Sweeper  $15,000 
 

Moreno Valley Street Sweeping Program $202,384 
 

Norwalk Cleaner Street Sweeping Contract $87,564 
 

Palm Desert Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 2 Sweepers $68,083 
 

Palm Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $44,482 
 

Rancho Mirage Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $17,152 
 

Riverside County Regional Street Sweeping Program $54,400 
 

Walnut Street Sweeper with CNG Sweeper $32,000 
 

 Subcategory Total: $1,219,031 
 

 Category Total: $1,219,031 
 

(10) Public Education  
 

(10a) Short Term Public Education  
 

Banning WRCOG emission reduction outreach programs $3,300 
 

Beverly Hills Bike Month Safety Campaign $3,057 
 

Calimesa Clean Cities Coalition $1,270 
 

Corona Western Riverside Council of Governments Clean Cities Coalition $16,500 
 

Eastvale FY23-24 WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $9,350 
 

Hemet WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $11,000 
 

Irvine Open Streets Event $39,269 
 

Palm Desert SunLine Student Art Contest Sponsorship $7,000 
 

Riverside County WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition Program $27,500 
 

San Jacinto WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $6,600 
 

Santa Clarita Promotion & Advertising for Bike to Work $5,714 
 

 Subcategory Total: $130,560 
 

(10b) Long Term Public Education  
 

Anaheim Rideshare Outreach $4,069 
 

Lake Elsinore Clean Cities Coalition $6,000 
 

Long Beach Livability Initiative $6,000 
 

Long Beach May is Bike Month $8,340 
 

Moreno Valley WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $16,500 
 

Wildomar Clean Cities Coalition $4,500 
 

 Subcategory Total: $45,409 
 

 Category Total: $175,969 
 

(11) Miscellaneous Projects  
 

(11a) Miscellaneous   
 

Alhambra AQMD Audit  $6,000 
 

Chino Vehicle Emissions Credit Purchased $5,820 
 

Downey 2024 Audit $2,027 
 

Fountain Valley Citywide Traffic Signal Retiming $210,000 
 

68



Local Government Projects Funded by Category  
Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024  

 

40 

Project Category & 

Subcategory 
Project Name 

Motor Vehicle 

Expenditure  

 

Gardena 2024 Gardena SCAQMD Rule 2202 Registration Fees $165 
 

Glendale Rule 2202 Annual Plan Filing Fee  $1,363 
 

Hawaiian Gardens Strategic Transportation Plan $1,000 
 

Inglewood Emission Reductions $6,270 
 

Inglewood ERS Filing Fees $716 
 

Irvine Rule 2202 $716 
 

Lake Forest Alton Pkwy Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $1,389 
 

Lake Forest Portola Pkwy/Santa Margarita Pkwy Traffic Signal Synchronization $13,148 
 

Lake Forest Rockfield Blvd Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $14,089 
 

Lomita Viewpoint Cloud/OpenGov $5,000 
 

Los Angeles City Annual Audit of AB2766 Expenditures $38,335 
 

Pasadena Audit Costs $2,800 
 

Pomona Audit Services $1,950 
 

Pomona Rule 2202 Compliance $1,200 
 

Pomona Video Detection System Upgrades $31,164 
 

Riverside City AQMD Rule 2202 Compliance $11,678 
 

Riverside County AB 2766 Audit $6,000 
 

Riverside County Rule 2202 Multisite Cluster Registration $12,510 
 

San Bernardino County Rule 2202 Fees $8,393 
 

Santa Clarita Audit Expense $2,575 
 

Santa Monica Telematics $75,413 
 

Temecula Clean Cities Coalition $11,000 
 

Whittier Air Quality Investment Program $3,778 
 

Whittier Eide Bailly LLP $1,084 
 

 Subcategory Total: $475,583 
 

 Category Total: $475,583 
 

 Program Summary: $22,731,411 
 

 

 

 

 

69



Percent of Project Expenditures by Project Category   

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024    
 

41 

Project Category 
Project 

Expenditure 

Percent of Total 

Project Expenditure 

Number of 

Projects 

(1) Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles $8,992,573 40% 131 

(6) Transportation Demand Management $4,609,385 20% 58 

(5) Traffic Management $3,185,148 14% 45 

(3) Land Use $1,891,996 8% 11 

(9) PM Reduction Strategies $1,219,031 5% 18 

(8) Bicycles $1,052,334 5% 21 

(4) Public Transportation (Transit & Rail) $732,706 3% 15 

(11) Miscellaneous Projects $475,583 2% 28 

(2) Vehicle Emissions Abatement $396,688 2% 3 

(10) Public Education $175,969 1% 17 

Grand Total: $22,731,411 100% 347 

 

 

 

70



Summary of Spending by Project Subcategory    

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024    
 

42 

Category & Subcategory 
Expenditure by 

Subcategory 
Number of Projects 

    

(1) Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles   

 (1a) Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchases/Leases $4,449,285 59 

 (1c) Alternative Fuel Infrastructure $471,457 4 

 (1d) Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases $3,542,183 50 

 (1f) Electric Vehicle Infrastructure $529,649 18 

(2) Vehicle Emissions Abatement   

 (2a) Off-Road Vehicle Cleaner Diesel Purchases, 

Repowers, and Retrofits $396,688 3 

(3) Land Use   

 (3a) Plan Elements $1,178,395 5 

 (3c) Facilities (Pedestrian, Mixed Use, etc.) $703,601 5 

 (3d) Land Use Research $10,000 1 

(4) Public Transportation (Transit & Rail)   

 (4a) Public Transportation Facilities $196,444 1 

 (4c) Transit Operations $313,922 3 

 (4d) Passenger Fare Subsidies $222,340 11 

(5) Traffic Management   

 (5a) Traffic Calming $1,173,980 6 

 (5b) Traffic Flow or Signalization $1,842,177 36 

 (5c) Alternate Mode Signalization $152,500 1 

 (5d) Traffic Management Research and Development $16,491 2 

(6) Transportation Demand Management   

 (6a) Employer-Based Trip Reduction $3,757,586 48 

 (6b) Other Trip Reduction Incentive Programs $62,795 3 

 (6c) Vanpool Programs $487,137 4 

 (6e) Telecommunication $293,054 2 

 (6f) Transportation Management Agencies/Organizations $3,757,586 48 

(8)  Bicycles    

 (8a) Bicycle Lanes, Trails, and Bridges $738,508 13 

 (8b) Other Bicycle Facilities $99,264 4 

 (8c) Bicycle Usage $214,562 4 

(9) PM Reduction Strategies   

 (9a) Road Dust Control $1,219,031 18 

(10) Public Education   

 (10a) Short Term Public Education $130,560 11 

 (10b) Long Term Public Education $45,409 6 

(11) Miscellaneous Projects   

 (11a) Miscellaneous $475,583 28 

 Grand Total: $22,731,411 347 

71



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

43 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

       

Alhambra Purchase two (2) Ford Mach E $114,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Alhambra AQMD Audit  $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Anaheim Rideshare Outreach $4,069 $0 $0 $0 $574 

Anaheim Metrolink and OCTA $70,468 $0 $0 $0 $13,990 

Anaheim 
Improvements at various locations with confirmed speeding issues 

within City limits. 
$23,247 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Anaheim Anaheim Bl from La Palma Ave to Wilken Wy $600 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Anaheim Trip Reduction $171,607 $0 $0 $0 $24,238 

Anaheim Vanpool $211,139 $0 $0 $0 $35,741 

Anaheim Nohl Ranch Open Space Trail $15,002 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Arcadia City Fleet Vehicle - Chevrolet Bolt EUV $37,744 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Arcadia Rideshare Plus Program $16,232 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Artesia EV Charging Facility Expansion Project $10,009 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $1,635 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $1,496 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Azusa Transit Pass Subsidy $1,344 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Azusa Rideshare Financial Incentives $6,287 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $23,049 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $26,582 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $57,433 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program 15 vehicles $72,874 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Baldwin Park Employer Trip Reduction Incentive Program $1,357 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Banning Installation of EV Chargers $14,877 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Banning WRCOG emission reduction outreach programs $3,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Beaumont FY23-24 City Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $86,819 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bell Gardens Employee Ride Share Subsidies $472 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $91,787 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $96,017 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick  $29,993 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick Truck $27,038 $0 $0 $0 $2,955 

Beverly Hills Bike Month Safety Campaign $3,057 $0 $0 $0 $0 

72



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

44 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Brea John Deere TE 4x2 Electric Utility Vehicle $13,947 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park 2024 Kia Niro Hybrid $34,375 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#1) $56,945 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#2) $58,490 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#3) $58,536 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park Police Captain's Take-home Car - Tesla Model Y $55,638 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park Replace police captain's take-home vehicle with Ford Mach E $50,598 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Buena Park Employee Rideshare Program Incentives $13,977 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Burbank Employee Rideshare Subsidies $44,054 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Burbank Employee Transit Subsidies $54,803 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Burbank Bicycle Rack Program $2,792 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Calabasas 2 Electric Vehicle Purchase $70,843 $0 $0 $0 $70,843 

Calimesa Clean Cities Coalition $1,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Carson ELECTRIC UTILITY VEHICLE / GATOR $17,804 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Carson Purchase of F-150 Lightning $77,858 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Carson Breathe Employee Rideshare Project $20,918 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cathedral City Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $51,888 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cerritos City Employee Rideshare Trip Rebate Program $21,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Chino Vehicle Emissions Credit Purchased $5,820 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Chino Hills Hybrid-gasoline vehicle $43,960 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Chino Hills Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $44,894 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Claremont 2 Sanitation Vehicle Purchase (CNG) $149,967 $0 $0 $0 $616,346 

Claremont Trip-Reduction Program $2,301 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Coachella Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers” $42,837 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Colton Electric Vehicle Ford Lightening Fleet Purchases $103,834 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Commerce Employer Based Trip Reduction  $5,589 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Compton Employee Transit/Pass Subsidy Program $6,204 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Corona Western Riverside Council of Governments Clean Cities Coalition $16,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Corona Corona Cruiser Fare Subsidy $4,061 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Corona SB 821 Sidewalk Gap Closure $8,059 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Costa Mesa Baker/Placentia/19th/Victoria TSSP $56,430 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Costa Mesa Bear Street Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $851 $0 $0 $0 $0 

73



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

45 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Costa Mesa W 19th Bike Facility Improvements $57,001 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Covina 2020 Toyota Prius - Lease $7,133 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Covina Lease of (3) 2024 Toyota Camry LE Hybrid Vehicles $15,527 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Covina Purchase of (3) 2023 Ford E-Transit Cargo Vans $188,278 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Covina Commuter Choice $1,691 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cudahy Light Duty Vehicle Leases $149,660 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Culver City Pool Car Purchase $46,077 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Culver City Off-Grid EV Charger $89,987 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cypress Compressed Natural Gas Sewer Cleaning Truck $65,752 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Dana Point Dana Point Trolley and Special Event Program $240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Desert Hot Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $32,896 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Diamond Bar (2) electric, zero-emission work trucks $132,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Diamond Bar NTMP/NORTHAMPTON NEIGHBORHOOD  $27,413 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Downey Electric Vehicle Charging Station $89,530 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Downey 2024 Audit $2,027 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Downey Downey Employee "Thumbs Up" Commuting Program $180,866 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle lease $18,642 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease 24 Honda Crv $10,241 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Ford  $9,545 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Toyota $17,498 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Eastvale Purchase of 3 Ford Escape PHEV $126,892 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Ford F-150 Lighting $33,005 $33,005 $0 $0 $0 

Eastvale EV Charging Stations  $12,132 $12,132 $0 $0 $0 

Eastvale FY23-24 WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $9,350 $0 $0 $0 $1,650 

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader $302,306 $0 $0 $0 $0 

El Monte El Monte Transit Service Trucks $132,218 $0 $0 $0 $0 

El Monte Paratransit/Team-Building Electric Van $119,543 $0 $0 $0 $0 

El Monte Employee Rideshare Program $64,666 $0 $0 $0 $0 

El Monte Street Sweeper $32,858 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

74



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

46 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana Alder Middle School Sidewalk PN3367 $397,904 $0 $0 $0 $1,270,483 

Fontana Alder‐Locust‐Ramona Safe Routes to School PN 3339 $138,412 $0 $0 $0 $1,457,126 

Fontana Blanchard Avenue Sidewalk Gap Project PN 3115 $91,800 $0 $0 $0 $34,549 

Fontana Employee Rideshare Program $12,078 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Fontana Fontana Safe Routes to School Gap Closure PN 0003 $44,146 $0 $0 $0 $1,371,145 

Fountain Valley Citywide Traffic Signal Retiming $210,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Fullerton CNG Station Improvement $240,444 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Lease Electric Vehicles  $11,759 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Purchased Electric Vehicles  $29,397 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove 2024 ZEV Electric Vehicle Purchase  $17,638 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove Transit Subsidy Metrolink & Bus $14,837 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove Rideshare Redemption  $21,431 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove Vanpool Program $40,104 $0 $0 $0 $1,200 

Garden Grove Telecommunication $8,812 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Brookhurst St. from Trask 

Ave. to Katella Ave 
$65,008 $0 $0 $0 $208,431 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Chapman from Valley 

View to Beach Blvd.  
$76,578 $0 $0 $0 $248,195 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Gilbert St. from Deodora 
Drive/ Westminster Blvd to Katella Ave  

$47,249 $0 $0 $0 $147,401 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Lampson Ave. from Dale 

St. to Haster St 
$79,313 $0 $0 $0 $257,594 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - West Street from Garden 

Grove Avenue to Orangewood Avenue 
$49,861 $0 $0 $0 $156,378 

Gardena Lease (1) 2019 Hyundai Ioniq Plug-In Hybrid Hatchback $4,560 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Gardena Down Payment/Lease (1) 2023 Tesla Model Y Long Range AWD,  $28,989 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Gardena Lease (1) 2020 Tesla Model 3 AWD $15,610 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Gardena 
Purchase of (71) Noodoe EV AC11P Charging Stations and EV 
P220S Dual Mount Pedestal 

$61,859 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Gardena 2024 Gardena SCAQMD Rule 2202 Registration Fees $165 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Glendale Rule 2202 Annual Plan Filing Fee  $1,363 $0 $0 $0 $0 

75



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

47 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Glendale Transit Fare Subsidy  $34,059 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Glendale Employer Based Trip Reduction Program  $94,106 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Glendale Transportation Management Agency Services (Go Glendale)  $8,355 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Glendora EV250 Buses $256,931 $50,760 $0 $0 $651,111 

Glendora Alternative Commute Program $25,802 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Grand Terrace Grand Terrace Senior Bus $11,000 $0 $0 $0 $266,224 

Hawaiian Gardens Strategic Transportation Plan $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Hawthorne Reduction Street Sweeping Project  $109,713 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Hemet One New 2024 Ford Maverick Hybrid $37,701 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Hemet WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $11,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Hermosa Beach Purchase of Tesla $41,500 $0 $0 $0 $20,312 

Hermosa Beach Auto Trip Reduction Program $5,130 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - 5th St / Greenspot Rd $31,073 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - Baseline $31,072 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Huntington Beach Purchase of 1 new equipment - sweeper $388,453 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Huntington Beach Traffic Counts $1,045 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Huntington Beach Employer-Based Trip Reduction $14,833 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Huntington Park 1 2019 Green Power EV Star $55,840 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Huntington Park 2019 Green Power EV Star Shuttle Purchase - 5 Vehicles $279,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Indian Wells Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $4,816 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Indio Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $95,404 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Inglewood Emission Reductions $6,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Inglewood ERS Filing Fees $716 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Inglewood Electric Bikes $44,034 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Irvine Irvine Police Cybertruck Purchase $18,613 $0 $0 $0 $113,135 

Irvine EV Chargers for City of Irvine Operations Support Facility $11,387 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Irvine Open Streets Event $39,269 $0 $0 $0 $6,813 

Irvine Rule 2202 $716 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Irvine Security Services at Irvine Train Station $196,444 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Jurupa Valley Vin# 1FMCU0MZ4PUB13572 $33,022 $0 $0 $0 $0 

La Canada Flintridge Foothill Blvd. Link Project $215,875 $0 $0 $1,366,000 $2,175,350 

La Habra Shuttle to Transport Seniors $38,105 $0 $0 $0 $0 

76



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

48 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

La Mirada ELECTRIC FORKLIFT $59,932 $0 $0 $0 $0 

La Quinta Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $38,315 $0 $0 $0 $0 

La Verne New Vehicles $92,811 $0 $0 $0 $0 

La Verne City of La Verne Walk, Bike, Carpool or Public Transit Program $2,204 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Laguna Hills 2023 Ford F-150 Hybrid 4x4 Truck $56,681 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Laguna Hills Electric Payloader Cart $14,928 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Laguna Niguel Traffic Signal Coordination $280,448 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Laguna Woods City Hall Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Project $8,611 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lake Elsinore Clean Cities Coalition $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lake Elsinore Citywide Dirt Road Paving $252,675 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lake Forest Alton Pkwy Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $1,389 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lake Forest Portola Pkwy/Santa Margarita Pkwy Traffic Signal Synchronization $13,148 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lake Forest Rockfield Blvd Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $14,089 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lake Forest Lake Forest Drive Traffic Signal Synchronization $1,298 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lakewood Purchase of 1 new Ford Maverick Hybrid $35,385 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lakewood Purchase of 11 new Chevrolet Equinox $348,583 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lakewood 91/605/405 COG Major Corridor Study $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Loma Linda City Street Sweeping $36,564 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lomita Viewpoint Cloud/OpenGov $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lomita Street Sweeper  $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Long Beach Livability Initiative $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Long Beach May is Bike Month $8,340 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Long Beach South ST Quick Build $1,105 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Long Beach Bike Community Forum $88,024 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Deployment of EV Charging Stations at Citywide Locations $27,053 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Annual Audit of AB2766 Expenditures $38,335 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Multi-Modal Infrastructure Planning $318,696 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Transportation & Land Use Planning $637,498 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City 
Neighborhood Traffic Management - Traffic Management & Signal 

Coordination 
$1,076,646 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City 3rd St $29,109 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City 6th St  $66,831 $0 $0 $0 $0 

77



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

49 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Los Angeles City 8th St $44,257 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Adams Blvd $70,692 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Bundy Dr $46,039 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Burbank Blvd $29,109 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Cashio St $46,336 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Figueroa St $48,415 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Florence Ave $101,583 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Fountain Ave $40,990 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City James M Wood Blvd $42,475 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Los Angeles St $53,465 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Melrose Ave $81,385 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Ohio Ave $45,445 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Pacific Ave $64,158 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Pico Blvd $102,771 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City S Grand Ave $71,880 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City S Pacific Ave (San Pedro) $72,771 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Sawtelle Blvd $59,702 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Soto St $34,752 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Temple St $56,138 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Van Ness Ave $55,247 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Vine St $42,178 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City W 19th St $44,257 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Wilton Pl $47,227 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Bikeshare Incentive $1,705 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Employer's Bike Incentive Program $21,391 $0 $0 $0 $42,745 

Los Angeles City Employer's Carpool Incentive Program $7,150 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Employer's Transit Subsidy Program $292,625 $0 $0 $0 $847,212 

Los Angeles City Employer's Walk Incentive Program $13,547 $0 $0 $0 $40,745 

Los Angeles City Employer's Vanpool Program $218,569 $0 $0 $0 $1,437,737 

Los Angeles City Transportation Demand Management/Trip Reduction Programs $284,699 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Los Angeles City Metro Bikeshare (Citywide) $136,240 $0 $0 $0 $8,283,130 

Los Angeles County Countywide Rideshare Program $1,342,426 $0 $0 $0 $0 

78



Project Funding Sources      

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024        
 

50 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Lynwood 2022 Toyota Highlander Hybrid lease purchase $34,798 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lynwood John Deere Gator Vehicle  $19,798 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Lynwood Gateway Cities COG I-710 Study $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Manhattan Beach Meter & Service Plan for Future EV Charger Project $2,245 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Monrovia City of Monrovia EV Chargers $3,289 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Montclair EV Charging Stations $169,495 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Montebello Employee Rideshare Program $8,110 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Monterey Park Employee Rideshare Program $47,725 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Moreno Valley WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $16,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Moreno Valley Traffic Signal Coordination Program $30,667 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Moreno Valley Street Sweeping Program $202,384 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Norco Ford Escape ST-Line Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $36,662 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Norco Ford Maverick Hybrid Trucks $104,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Norwalk Commuter Benefits Program $8,425 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Norwalk Cleaner Street Sweeping Contract $87,564 $0 $0 $0 $1,280,436 

Ontario CNG Compressor Upgrade $16,006 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange City Clubb Car Ambulance Transport $27,710 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange City Charging station $8,971 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange City Trip Reduction Program (TRP) $60,919 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange City Police Bike Team $9,288 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3349 $52,838 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3352 $52,838 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Orange County Ride Share $42,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Palm Desert SunLine Student Art Contest Sponsorship $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Palm Desert Rideshare Program $1,690 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Palm Desert Bicycle Rack Incentive Program $1,080 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Palm Desert Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 2 Sweepers $68,083 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Palm Springs Employee Rideshare and Low-Carbon Transportation Initiative $3,088 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Palm Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $44,482 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Paramount Purchase of an Electric Utility Vehicle $14,782 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Paramount Lease of Electric Vehicles $67,416 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Paramount EV Charging Stations $6,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 

79



Project Funding Sources 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

51 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Pasadena Audit Costs $2,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Pasadena Rideshare program $42,270 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Pasadena E-Bike Rebate Program $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Perris Purchase of two (2) Hybrid Cars $68,766 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Perris Purchase of Two (2) Toyota Hybrid Cars $84,344 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Perris Purchase of Electric Vehicles $62,627 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Pico Rivera Purchase (1) electric vehicle (2023 Ford Lightning) $34,600 $0 $0 $0 $34,091 

Pico Rivera City Hall Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (EVCS) $8,980 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Placentia Senior Mobility Program  $35,817 $0 $0 $0 $140,762 

Pomona Audit Services $1,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Pomona Rule 2202 Compliance $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Pomona Video Detection System Upgrades $31,164 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Pomona Traffic Controller Upgrades $8,865 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rancho Cucamonga 2023 Chevrolet Bolt  $41,059 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rancho Cucamonga Haven Avenue Sidewalk Improvement $3,484 $0 $0 $0 $6,471 

Rancho Cucamonga Rideshare Program $13,295 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rancho Cucamonga Cucamonga Creek Channel Bike Trail $1,556 $0 $0 $0 $2,889 

Rancho Cucamonga Day Creek Bike Trail $14,536 $0 $0 $0 $27,692 

Rancho Mirage Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $17,152 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rancho Santa Margarita Los Alisos/Melinda Road Signal Equipment Update $720 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rancho Santa Margarita Santa Margarita Parkway Signal Synchronization Project $15,446 $0 $0 $0 $720,000 

Redondo Beach Employee Rideshare $48,071 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rialto Employee Rideshare Program $32,828 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rialto Bikeshare Plan & Pedestrian Access $7,368 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside City Vactor Truck Purchase $399,993 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside City AQMD Rule 2202 Compliance $11,678 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside City Riverside Go Transit Bus Pass Subsidy Program $75,831 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside City Traffic Timing Signal Coordination $2,943 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside County Beam EV Mobile Solar Charger Mobility Trailer $45,511 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside County WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition Program $27,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside County AB 2766 Audit $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside County Rule 2202 Multisite Cluster Registration $12,510 $0 $0 $0 $0 

80



Project Funding Sources 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

52 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Riverside County Commuter Service Rideshare Program $344,732 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Riverside County Regional Street Sweeping Program $54,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #504 $9,666 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #511 $5,368 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #514 $5,925 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #515 $7,889 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #516 $5,925 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Bernardino City 2024 FREIGHTLINER 114SD VIN 1FVHG3FW7RHVG3539 $302,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Bernardino City Rideshare Program $24,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Bernardino County Rule 2202 Fees $8,393 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Bernardino County ECRP $310,084 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Bernardino County SCAQMD Vanpool Program $17,325 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Clemente Traffic Calming Improvements $37,509 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Dimas Street Sweeper $195,172 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Jacinto Vactor Truck $66,455 $0 $0 $0 $43,063 

San Jacinto WRCOG Clean Cities Coalition $6,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Juan Capistrano Electric Car Charging Station at Community Center $153 $0 $0 $0 $0 

San Juan Capistrano Senior Nutritional Transportation Program $19,800 $0 $0 $0 $78,900 

San Marino Riding Lawnmower Replacement $58,782 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Heavy Duty Additions (Rizon) $217,587 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Chevy Blazers) $246,470 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Ford F-150 Lightings) $116,939 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Ana Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $56,988 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Ana Comprehensive General Plan/Land-Use $205,459 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Ana Rideshare Program $167,204 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Clarita 2024 CNG Freightliner Dump Truck $237,658 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Clarita Promotion & Advertising for Bike to Work $5,714 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Clarita Audit Expense $2,575 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Clarita Monthly Passes $2,946 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Clarita Rideshare Program $1,507 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Fe Springs Electric Transit Van $116,752 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Santa Fe Springs GO RIO (BUS PASS PROGRAM) $2,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 

81



Project Funding Sources 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

53 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Santa Monica Telematics $75,413 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Signal Hill Purchase of Ford F-150 Lightning $70,855 $0 $0 $0 $0 

South El Monte Mean Green Electric Mower $35,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 

South Gate Replace One Gas-Powered Vehicle with Electric Vehicle $33,617 $0 $0 $0 $0 

South Gate Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $71,886 $0 $0 $0 $32,359 

Stanton Purchase of Toyota Sienna hybrid Minivan $116,559 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Stanton Purchase of electric forklift $33,993 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Stanton Rideshare Incentive Program $413 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Temecula Clean Cities Coalition $11,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Temecula Citywide Buffered Bike Lane Striping $69,175 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Temple City City Fleet Low Emission Vehicles Lease $55,628 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Torrance Employee Rideshare $154,656 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Tustin Purchase 2 plug-in hybrid EVs $71,082 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Tustin Red Hill Ave. Pedestrian Crosswalk $152,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $149,511 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $38,208 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Upland Rideshare Program $23,005 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Walnut Purchase of Hybrid Vehicle $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

Walnut Bus Pass Subsidy $256 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Walnut Street Sweeper with CNG Sweeper $32,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

West Covina Purchase of 2023 Ford E-Transit 350 Cargo Van $56,842 $0 $0 $0 $0 

West Hollywood Alternative Transportation Mode Incentive $5,305 $0 $0 $0 $0 

West Hollywood Fountain Ave Bicycle Facilities Project $3,209 $0 $0 $0 $1,869 

Westlake Village Lease of 1 Alternative Fuel Vehicle $7,605 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier New Vehicle Purchase  $78,761 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier Air Quality Investment Program $3,778 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier Eide Bailly LLP $1,084 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier Gateway Cities COGs $11,742 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier GO RIO $9,268 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier Rideshare Reward $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Whittier Bike to Work $725 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Wildomar Clean Cities Coalition $4,500 $0 $0 $0 $2,100 

82



Project Funding Sources 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

54 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees MSRC Moyer CMAQ CoFunding 

Yorba Linda Purchase of 5 new EV's $247,916 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Yucaipa Yucaipa Blvd - 2nd to 5th St - Phase 3 $72,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Totals: $22,731,411 $95,897 $0 $1,366,000 $22,213,983 

83



Range of Cost-Effectiveness by Subcategory 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

55 

Subcategory 
Lowest Highest Lowest Highest 

(ROG + NOx + PM) (ROG + NOx + PM + CO/7) 

(1a) Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchases/Leases $60.75 $73,506.48 $34.73 $24,173.27 

(1d) Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases $14.26 $15,554.83 $5.27 $4,470.63 

(2a) Off-Road Vehicle Cleaner Diesel Purchases, Repowers, and Retrofits $10.29 $68.62 $10.29 $68.62 

(3c) Facilities (Pedestrian, Mixed Use, etc.) $265.18 $6,299.57 $160.52 $3,813.23 

(4c) Transit Operations $845.37 $2,824.32 $1,028.70 $2,578.29 

(4d) Passenger Fare Subsidies $49.09 $2,474.35 $27.36 $1,364.32 

(5b) Traffic Flow or Signalization $0.23 $762.80 $0.16 $519.91 

(6a) Employer-Based Trip Reduction $1.73 $1,667.80 $0.94 $912.77 

(6b) Other Trip Reduction Incentive Programs $290.88 $1,085.15 $159.42 $607.26 

(6c) Vanpool Programs $149.85 $1,997.86 $125.47 $1,295.36 

(6e) Telecommunication $7.83 $7.83 $4.32 $4.32 

(8a) Bicycle Lanes, Trails, and Bridges $3.02 $715.86 $1.83 $415.95 

(8c) Bicycle Usage $98.94 $5,513.68 $35.38 $1,971.70 

(9a) Road Dust Control $0.00 $188.31 $0.00 $222.55 

(11a) Miscellaneous $0.00 $32.43 $0.00 $17.54 

Cost-effectiveness is based on MVFees + MSRC + Moyer funding. 

84



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

56 

 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

      

(1) Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles     

   (1a) Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchases/Leases     

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $1,635 $1,684 2 $798.20 

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $1,496 $1,541 2 $730.34 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $23,049 $23,740 3 $7,032.61 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $26,582 $27,379 12 $2,338.99 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $57,433 $59,155 6 $10,514.45 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program 15 vehicles $72,874 $75,060 17 $4,447.08 

Beaumont FY23-24 City Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $86,819 $12,368 7 $1,758.63 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $91,787 $10,760 8 $1,274.29 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $96,017 $11,256 6 $1,959.76 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick  $29,993 $3,516 6 $611.24 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick Truck $27,038 $3,170 2 $1,992.36 

Buena Park 2024 Kia Niro Hybrid $34,375 $4,897 1 $4,973.62 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#1) $56,945 $8,112 2 $3,844.96 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#2) $58,490 $8,332 2 $3,949.29 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#3) $58,536 $8,339 2 $3,952.39 

Claremont 2 Sanitation Vehicle Purchase (CNG) $149,967 $17,581 202 $87.18 

Covina 2020 Toyota Prius - Lease $7,133 $7,347 3 $2,611.60 

Covina Lease of (3) 2024 Toyota Camry LE Hybrid Vehicles $15,527 $15,993 7 $2,274.02 

Cudahy Light Duty Vehicle Leases $149,660 $154,151 20 $7,558.27 

Cypress Compressed Natural Gas Sewer Cleaning Truck $65,752 $7,708 76 $101.53 

Diamond Bar (2) electric, zero-emission work trucks $132,000 $18,804 7 $2,673.82 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle lease $18,642 $19,201 3 $5,687.93 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease 24 Honda Crv $10,241 $10,548 2 $5,768.61 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Ford  $9,545 $9,831 2 $5,327.45 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Toyota $17,498 $18,022 3 $5,338.86 

85



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

57 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7)

(lbs./yr)

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Eastvale Purchase of 3 Ford Escape PHEV $126,892 $18,077 17 $1,070.98 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $59 2 $34.73 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $59 2 $34.73 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $59 2 $34.73 

Gardena Lease (1) 2019 Hyundai Ioniq Plug-In Hybrid Hatchback $4,560 $4,697 4 $1,113.15 

Hemet One New 2024 Ford Maverick Hybrid $37,701 $4,420 0 $10,474.18 

Huntington Beach Purchase of 1 new equipment - sweeper $388,453 $45,539 233 $195.18 

Jurupa Valley Vin# 1FMCU0MZ4PUB13572 $33,022 $4,704 6 $743.23 

La Verne New Vehicles $92,811 $10,880 0 $24,173.27 

Laguna Hills 2023 Ford F-150 Hybrid 4x4 Truck $56,681 $8,075 3 $2,870.35 

Lakewood Purchase of 1 new Ford Maverick Hybrid $35,385 $5,041 7 $716.76 

Lakewood Purchase of 11 new Chevrolet Equinox $348,583 $49,658 70 $706.10 

Lynwood 2022 Toyota Highlander Hybrid lease purchase $34,798 $4,957 2 $2,349.56 

Norco Ford Escape ST-Line Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $36,662 $4,298 2 $2,037.08 

Norco Ford Maverick Hybrid Trucks $104,950 $12,303 19 $647.94 

Perris Purchase of two (2) Hybrid Cars $68,766 $11,038 4 $2,615.73 

Perris Purchase of Two (2) Toyota Hybrid Cars $84,344 $13,538 7 $1,924.97 

Riverside City Vactor Truck Purchase $399,993 $46,891 94 $497.48 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #504 $9,666 $9,956 3 $489.51 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #511 $5,368 $5,530 2 $453.10 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #514 $5,925 $6,103 1 $1,091.10 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #515 $7,889 $8,125 3 $2,888.36 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #516 $5,925 $6,103 2 $545.55 

San Bernardino City 2024 FREIGHTLINER 114SD VIN 1FVHG3FW7RHVG3539 $302,500 $25,341 399 $63.54 

San Dimas Street Sweeper $195,172 $22,879 209 $109.55 

San Jacinto Vactor Truck $66,455 $68,448 49 $1,402.10 

Santa Clarita 2024 CNG Freightliner Dump Truck $237,658 $244,787 255 $960.15 

Stanton Purchase of Toyota Sienna hybrid Minivan $116,559 $13,664 3 $4,857.39 

Temple City City Fleet Low Emission Vehicles Lease $55,628 $57,297 76 $754.37 

86



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

58 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Tustin Purchase 2 plug-in hybrid EVs $71,082 $10,126 7 $1,439.85 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $149,511 $21,299 7 $3,028.53 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $38,208 $5,443 2 $3,224.78 

Walnut Purchase of Hybrid Vehicle $20,000 $2,849 2 $1,688.02 

Westlake Village Lease of 1 Alternative Fuel Vehicle $7,605 $7,833 3 $2,889.63 

 Subcategory Total: $4,449,285 $1,298,571 1,899 $683.99 

   (1d) Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases     

Alhambra Purchase two (2) Ford Mach E $114,600 $16,326 22 $733.55 

Arcadia City Fleet Vehicle - Chevrolet Bolt EUV $37,744 $4,425 2 $1,908.65 

Brea John Deere TE 4x2 Electric Utility Vehicle $13,947 $1,635 7 $226.85 

Buena Park Police Captain's Take-home Car - Tesla Model Y $55,638 $6,522 23 $281.35 

Buena Park Replace police captain's take-home vehicle with Ford Mach E $50,598 $5,932 23 $255.86 

Calabasas 2 Electric Vehicle Purchase $70,843 $8,305 9 $895.60 

Carson ELECTRIC UTILITY VEHICLE / GATOR $17,804 $2,087 142 $14.72 

Carson Purchase of F-150 Lightning $77,858 $9,127 9 $984.28 

Chino Hills Hybrid-gasoline vehicle $43,960 $3,682 2 $1,588.41 

Colton Electric Vehicle Ford Lightening Fleet Purchases $103,834 $14,792 3 $4,470.63 

Covina Purchase of (3) 2023 Ford E-Transit Cargo Vans $188,278 $22,072 29 $772.77 

Culver City Pool Car Purchase $46,077 $5,402 4 $1,456.27 

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Ford F-150 Lighting $33,005 $7,738 11 $695.41 

El Monte El Monte Transit Service Trucks $132,218 $15,500 56 $278.58 

El Monte Paratransit/Team-Building Electric Van $119,543 $14,014 31 $451.08 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $59 11 $5.27 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $59 11 $5.27 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $500 $59 11 $5.27 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Lease Electric Vehicles  $11,759 $12,111 32 $375.85 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Purchased Electric Vehicles  $29,397 $3,446 32 $107.41 

Garden Grove 2024 ZEV Electric Vehicle Purchase  $17,638 $2,068 7 $280.47 

Gardena Down Payment/Lease (1) 2023 Tesla Model Y Long Range AWD,  $28,989 $29,859 46 $643.98 

87



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

59 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Gardena Lease (1) 2020 Tesla Model 3 AWD $15,610 $16,078 46 $346.77 

Glendora EV250 Buses $256,931 $22,372 135 $165.43 

Grand Terrace Grand Terrace Senior Bus $11,000 $800 57 $14.15 

Hermosa Beach Purchase of Tesla $41,500 $6,661 13 $513.08 

Huntington Park 1 2019 Green Power EV Star $55,840 $6,546 28 $235.31 

Huntington Park 2019 Green Power EV Star Shuttle Purchase - 5 Vehicles $279,200 $32,730 551 $59.38 

Irvine Irvine Police Cybertruck Purchase $18,613 $2,182 7 $294.13 

La Mirada ELECTRIC FORKLIFT $59,932 $7,026 6 $1,156.12 

Laguna Hills Electric Payloader Cart $14,928 $1,750 86 $20.35 

Lynwood John Deere Gator Vehicle  $19,798 $20,392 18 $1,154.33 

Orange City Clubb Car Ambulance Transport $27,710 $3,249 72 $45.07 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3349 $52,838 $6,194 5 $1,335.94 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3352 $52,838 $6,194 5 $1,335.94 

Paramount Purchase of an Electric Utility Vehicle $14,782 $1,733 120 $14.43 

Paramount Lease of Electric Vehicles $67,416 $69,438 41 $1,701.85 

Perris Purchase of Electric Vehicles $62,627 $10,052 28 $361.33 

Pico Rivera Purchase (1) electric vehicle (2023 Ford Lightning) $34,600 $4,056 11 $360.81 

Rancho Cucamonga 2023 Chevrolet Bolt  $41,059 $4,813 19 $259.53 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Heavy Duty Additions (Rizon) $217,587 $25,508 336 $75.94 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Chevy Blazers) $246,470 $28,894 46 $623.17 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Ford F-150 Lightings) $116,939 $13,709 19 $739.17 

Santa Fe Springs Electric Transit Van $116,752 $13,687 22 $619.70 

Signal Hill Purchase of Ford F-150 Lightning $70,855 $8,306 147 $56.51 

South Gate Replace One Gas-Powered Vehicle with Electric Vehicle  $33,617 $3,941 34 $114.86 

Stanton Purchase of electric forklift $33,993 $2,847 14 $201.48 

West Covina Purchase of 2023 Ford E-Transit 350 Cargo Van $56,842 $6,663 9 $777.67 

Whittier New Vehicle Purchase  $78,761 $9,233 17 $553.16 

Yorba Linda Purchase of 5 new EV's $247,916 $29,063 139 $208.94 

 Subcategory Total: $3,542,183 $549,337 2,555 $214.97 

88



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

60 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7)

(lbs./yr)

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Category Total: $7,991,468 $1,847,908 4,454 $414.89 

(2) Vehicle Emissions Abatement

   (2a) Off-Road Vehicle Cleaner Diesel Purchases, Repowers, and Retrofits 

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader $302,306 $35,440 516 $68.62 

San Marino Riding Lawnmower Replacement $58,782 $12,833 1,247 $10.29 

South El Monte Mean Green Electric Mower $35,600 $7,775 374 $20.78 

Subcategory Total: $396,688 $56,049 2,138 $26.22 

Category Total: $396,688 $56,049 2,138 $26.22 

(3) Land Use

   (3c) Facilities (Pedestrian, Mixed Use, etc.) 

Fontana Alder Middle School Sidewalk PN3367 $397,904 $26,745 7 $3,813.23 

Fontana Alder‐Locust‐Ramona Safe Routes to School PN 3339 $138,412 $9,303 51 $180.81 

Fontana Blanchard Avenue Sidewalk Gap Project PN 3115 $91,800 $6,170 6 $1,099.68 

Rancho Cucamonga Haven Avenue Sidewalk Improvement $3,484 $234 1 $160.52 

Yucaipa Yucaipa Blvd - 2nd to 5th St - Phase 3 $72,000 $4,839 12 $416.68 

Subcategory Total: $703,601 $47,293 77 $612.98 

Category Total: $703,601 $47,293 77 $612.98 

(4) Public Transportation (Transit & Rail)

   (4c) Transit Operations 

Dana Point Dana Point Trolley and Special Event Program $240,000 $247,200 240 $1,028.70 

La Habra Shuttle to Transport Seniors $38,105 $8,320 5 $1,761.05 

Placentia Senior Mobility Program  $35,817 $36,891 14 $2,578.29 

Subcategory Total: $313,922 $292,411 259 $1,127.54 

   (4d) Passenger Fare Subsidies 

Anaheim Metrolink and OCTA $70,468 $72,583 541 $134.16 

Azusa Transit Pass Subsidy $1,344 $1,384 5 $282.48 

Corona Corona Cruiser Fare Subsidy $4,061 $4,183 18 $231.05 

Covina Commuter Choice $1,691 $1,742 4 $421.62 

Garden Grove Transit Subsidy Metrolink & Bus $14,837 $15,282 11 $1,364.32 

89



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

61 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Glendale Transit Fare Subsidy  $34,059 $35,080 138 $254.76 

Norwalk Commuter Benefits Program $8,425 $8,678 98 $88.54 

Riverside City Riverside Go Transit Bus Pass Subsidy Program $75,831 $78,102 1,338 $58.36 

Santa Fe Springs GO RIO (BUS PASS PROGRAM) $2,100 $2,163 38 $57.37 

Walnut Bus Pass Subsidy $256 $264 10 $27.36 

Whittier GO RIO $9,268 $9,547 310 $30.82 

 Subcategory Total: $222,340 $229,008 2,510 $91.22 

 Category Total: $536,261 $521,420 2,770 $188.25 

(5) Traffic Management     

   (5b) Traffic Flow or Signalization     

Anaheim Anaheim Bl from La Palma Ave to Wilken Wy $600 $133 736 $0.18 

Costa Mesa Baker/Placentia/19th/Victoria TSSP $56,430 $12,321 404 $30.48 

Costa Mesa Bear Street Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $851 $186 200 $0.93 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - 5th St / Greenspot Rd $31,073 $6,786 280 $24.25 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - Baseline $31,072 $6,782 786 $8.63 

Laguna Niguel Traffic Signal Coordination $280,448 $61,230 4,315 $14.19 

Lake Forest Lake Forest Drive Traffic Signal Synchronization $1,298 $280 1,750 $0.16 

Los Angeles City 3rd St $29,109 $6,356 167 $38.11 

Los Angeles City 6th St  $66,831 $14,593 220 $66.20 

Los Angeles City 8th St $44,257 $9,663 227 $42.66 

Los Angeles City Adams Blvd $70,692 $15,436 81 $191.53 

Los Angeles City Bundy Dr $46,039 $10,053 207 $48.56 

Los Angeles City Burbank Blvd $29,109 $6,356 110 $57.64 

Los Angeles City Cashio St $46,336 $10,118 239 $42.40 

Los Angeles City Figueroa St $48,415 $10,573 229 $46.17 

Los Angeles City Florence Ave $101,583 $22,181 192 $115.31 

Los Angeles City Fountain Ave $40,990 $8,950 167 $53.59 

Los Angeles City James M Wood Blvd $42,475 $9,275 39 $240.30 

Los Angeles City Los Angeles St $53,465 $11,675 178 $65.62 

90



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

62 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Los Angeles City Melrose Ave $81,385 $17,771 349 $50.95 

Los Angeles City Ohio Ave $45,445 $9,923 162 $61.44 

Los Angeles City Pacific Ave $64,158 $14,010 265 $52.85 

Los Angeles City Pico Blvd $102,771 $22,441 386 $58.11 

Los Angeles City S Grand Ave $71,880 $15,696 211 $74.42 

Los Angeles City S Pacific Ave (San Pedro) $72,771 $15,890 391 $40.59 

Los Angeles City Sawtelle Blvd $59,702 $13,037 86 $150.97 

Los Angeles City Soto St $34,752 $7,589 134 $56.64 

Los Angeles City Temple St $56,138 $12,258 152 $80.62 

Los Angeles City Van Ness Ave $55,247 $12,064 104 $115.88 

Los Angeles City Vine St $42,178 $9,209 229 $40.26 

Los Angeles City W 19th St $44,257 $9,664 21 $457.83 

Los Angeles City Wilton Pl $47,227 $10,312 155 $66.58 

Moreno Valley Traffic Signal Coordination Program $30,667 $6,697 729 $9.19 

Pomona Traffic Controller Upgrades $8,865 $1,039 57 $18.35 

Rancho Santa Margarita Los Alisos/Melinda Road Signal Equipment Update $720 $157 57 $2.77 

Riverside City Traffic Timing Signal Coordination $2,943 $3,031 6 $519.91 

 Subcategory Total: $1,842,177 $403,733 14,020 $28.80 

 Category Total: $1,842,177 $403,733 14,020 $28.80 

(6) Transportation Demand Management     

   (6a) Employer-Based Trip Reduction     

Anaheim Trip Reduction $171,607 $176,759 1,300 $135.92 

Arcadia Rideshare Plus Program $16,232 $16,720 113 $147.78 

Azusa Rideshare Financial Incentives $6,287 $6,476 63 $102.67 

Baldwin Park Employer Trip Reduction Incentive Program $1,357 $1,397 111 $12.64 

Bell Gardens Employee Ride Share Subsidies $472 $486 10 $46.73 

Buena Park Employee Rideshare Program Incentives $13,977 $14,396 89 $161.60 

Burbank Employee Rideshare Subsidies $44,054 $45,375 95 $479.28 

Burbank Employee Transit Subsidies $54,803 $56,448 241 $233.82 

91



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

63 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7)

(lbs./yr)

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Carson Breathe Employee Rideshare Project $20,918 $21,546 83 $258.87 

Cerritos City Employee Rideshare Trip Rebate Program $21,000 $21,629 156 $138.60 

Claremont Trip-Reduction Program $2,301 $2,369 5 $455.51 

Commerce Employer Based Trip Reduction  $5,589 $5,756 59 $98.36 

Compton Employee Transit/Pass Subsidy Program $6,204 $6,390 7 $912.77 

Downey Downey Employee "Thumbs Up" Commuting Program $180,866 $186,291 461 $404.09 

El Monte Employee Rideshare Program $64,666 $66,606 289 $230.19 

Fontana Employee Rideshare Program $12,078 $12,441 32 $390.46 

Garden Grove Rideshare Redemption  $21,431 $22,073 131 $168.89 

Glendale Employer Based Trip Reduction Program  $94,106 $96,935 3,497 $27.72 

Glendora Alternative Commute Program $25,802 $26,576 65 $408.72 

Hermosa Beach Auto Trip Reduction Program $5,130 $5,284 18 $300.97 

Huntington Beach Employer-Based Trip Reduction $14,833 $15,278 195 $78.32 

La Verne City of La Verne Walk, Bike, Carpool or Public Transit Program $2,204 $2,270 25 $89.52 

Los Angeles City Bikeshare Incentive $1,705 $1,756 12 $144.02 

Los Angeles City Employer's Bike Incentive Program $21,391 $22,035 495 $44.55 

Los Angeles City Employer's Carpool Incentive Program $7,150 $7,368 2,233 $3.30 

Los Angeles City Employer's Transit Subsidy Program $292,625 $301,410 7,298 $41.30 

Los Angeles City Employer's Walk Incentive Program $13,547 $13,954 291 $47.97 

Los Angeles County Countywide Rideshare Program $1,342,426 $1,382,764 57,495 $24.05 

Montebello Employee Rideshare Program $8,110 $8,353 117 $71.37 

Monterey Park Employee Rideshare Program $47,725 $49,156 54 $908.35 

Orange City Trip Reduction Program (TRP) $60,919 $62,746 95 $660.95 

Orange County Ride Share $42,000 $43,138 45,892 $0.94 

Palm Desert Rideshare Program $1,690 $1,741 63 $27.60 

Palm Springs Employee Rideshare and Low-Carbon Transportation Initiative $3,088 $3,180 218 $14.60 

Rancho Cucamonga Rideshare Program $13,295 $13,694 46 $300.86 

Redondo Beach Employee Rideshare $48,071 $49,511 670 $73.90 

Rialto Employee Rideshare Program $32,828 $33,813 251 $134.72 

92



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

64 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Riverside County Commuter Service Rideshare Program $344,732 $354,950 42,868 $8.28 

San Bernardino City Rideshare Program $24,750 $25,492 153 $166.83 

San Bernardino County ECRP $310,084 $319,468 16,358 $19.53 

Santa Ana Rideshare Program $167,204 $172,222 286 $601.48 

Santa Clarita Monthly Passes $2,946 $3,035 79 $38.57 

Santa Clarita Rideshare Program $1,507 $1,553 207 $7.51 

Stanton Rideshare Incentive Program $413 $425 4 $108.74 

Torrance Employee Rideshare $154,656 $159,294 706 $225.63 

Upland Rideshare Program $23,005 $23,695 100 $236.63 

West Hollywood Alternative Transportation Mode Incentive $5,305 $5,464 16 $347.00 

Whittier Rideshare Reward $500 $515 91 $5.66 

 Subcategory Total: $3,757,586 $3,870,235 183,142 $21.13 

   (6b) Other Trip Reduction Incentive Programs     

Pasadena Rideshare program $42,270 $43,537 273 $159.42 

San Juan Capistrano Senior Nutritional Transportation Program $19,800 $20,394 34 $607.26 

Whittier Bike to Work $725 $747 3 $249.17 

 Subcategory Total: $62,795 $64,678 310 $208.86 

   (6c) Vanpool Programs     

Anaheim Vanpool $211,139 $217,473 168 $1,295.36 

Garden Grove Vanpool Program $40,104 $41,307 146 $283.35 

Los Angeles City Employer's Vanpool Program $218,569 $225,122 1,794 $125.47 

San Bernardino County SCAQMD Vanpool Program $17,325 $17,844 129 $138.84 

 Subcategory Total: $487,137 $501,746 2,236 $224.35 

   (6e) Telecommunication     

Garden Grove Telecommunication $8,812 $9,070 2,100 $4.32 

 Subcategory Total: $8,812 $9,070 2,100 $4.32 

 Category Total: $4,316,331 $4,445,729 187,788 $23.67 

(8) Bicycles      

   (8a) Bicycle Lanes, Trails, and Bridges     

93



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

65 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

Anaheim Nohl Ranch Open Space Trail $15,002 $1,008 70 $14.48 

Costa Mesa W 19th Bike Facility Improvements $57,001 $6,682 195 $34.31 

Fontana Fontana Safe Routes to School Gap Closure PN 0003 $44,146 $2,967 46 $64.82 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Brookhurst St. from Trask Ave. to Katella 

Ave 
$65,008 $4,370 134 $32.59 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Chapman from Valley View to Beach 

Blvd.  
$76,578 $5,147 130 $39.69 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Gilbert St. from Deodora Drive/ 
Westminster Blvd to Katella Ave  

$47,249 $3,176 63 $50.65 

Garden Grove Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Lampson Ave. from Dale St. to Haster St $79,313 $5,331 72 $74.03 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - West Street from Garden Grove Avenue 

to Orangewood Avenue 
$49,861 $3,351 83 $40.29 

La Canada Flintridge Foothill Blvd. Link Project $215,875 $14,510 35 $415.95 

Rancho Cucamonga Cucamonga Creek Channel Bike Trail $1,556 $182 99 $1.83 

Rancho Cucamonga Day Creek Bike Trail $14,536 $1,704 80 $21.34 

Temecula Citywide Buffered Bike Lane Striping $69,175 $5,795 84 $68.96 

West Hollywood Fountain Ave Bicycle Facilities Project $3,209 $269 114 $2.36 

 Subcategory Total: $738,508 $54,492 1,204 $45.26 

   (8c) Bicycle Usage      

Inglewood Electric Bikes $44,034 $9,615 9 $1,123.47 

Los Angeles City Metro Bikeshare (Citywide) $136,240 $140,327 311 $450.58 

Orange City Police Bike Team $9,288 $2,028 1 $1,971.70 

Pasadena E-Bike Rebate Program $25,000 $5,459 154 $35.38 

 Subcategory Total: $214,562 $157,429 475 $331.21 

 Category Total: $953,070 $211,922 1,679 $126.20 

(9) PM Reduction Strategies     

   (9a) Road Dust Control     

Cathedral City Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $51,888 $53,445 466 $114.61 

Coachella Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $42,837 $44,122 385 $114.62 

Desert Hot Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $32,896 $33,884 297 $114.24 

94



Average Cost-Effectiveness by Project        

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

66 

Local Government Project Name MV Fees 
Amortized Air 

Funds 

Emission 

Reductions 

(ROG+Nox 

+PM+CO/7) 

(lbs./yr) 

Cost 

Effectiveness 

($/lbs.) 

El Monte Street Sweeper $32,858 $33,844 3,773 $8.97 

Hawthorne Reduction Street Sweeping Project  $109,713 $112,996 2,202 $51.31 

Indian Wells Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $4,816 $4,687 43 $109.63 

Indio Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $95,404 $98,266 829 $118.50 

La Quinta Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $38,315 $39,465 346 $114.05 

Loma Linda City Street Sweeping $36,564 $37,660 273 $138.08 

Lomita Street Sweeper  $15,000 $15,450 432 $35.77 

Moreno Valley Street Sweeping Program $202,384 $208,456 937 $222.55 

Norwalk Cleaner Street Sweeping Contract $87,564 $90,181 15,081 $5.98 

Palm Desert Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 2 Sweepers $68,083 $70,128 462 $151.89 

Palm Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $44,482 $45,817 401 $114.25 

Rancho Mirage Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $17,152 $17,668 152 $116.61 

Riverside County Regional Street Sweeping Program $54,400 $56,033 505 $111.04 

Walnut Street Sweeper with CNG Sweeper $32,000 $32,959 825 $39.96 

 Subcategory Total: $966,355 $995,059 27,407 $36.32 

 Category Total: $966,355 $995,059 27,407 $36.32 

(11) Miscellaneous Projects     

   (11a) Miscellaneous     

Chino Vehicle Emissions Credit Purchased $5,820 $5,993 358 $16.74 

Inglewood Emission Reductions $6,270 $6,456 1,096 $5.89 

Riverside City AQMD Rule 2202 Compliance $11,678 $12,025 1,250 $9.62 

Whittier Air Quality Investment Program $3,778 $3,892 222 $17.54 

 Subcategory Total: $27,546 $28,366 2,926 $9.69 

 Category Total: $27,546 $28,366 2,926 $9.69 

 Program Summary: $17,733,497 $8,557,478 243,259 $35.18 
 
 
 

95



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

67 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

(1) Alternative Fuels/Electric Vehicles

   (1a) Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchases/Leases 

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $2,427 $2,427 $798 $798 

Azusa Lease of Hybrid Pool Vehicle $2,221 $2,221 $730 $730 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $21,385 $21,385 $7,033 $7,033 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $3,453 $3,453 $2,339 $2,339 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program $31,973 $31,973 $10,514 $10,514 

Baldwin Park Fleet Leasing Program 15 vehicles $13,523 $13,523 $4,447 $4,447 

Beaumont FY23-24 City Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $5,348 $5,348 $1,759 $1,759 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $3,875 $3,875 $1,274 $1,274 

Bellflower 2023 F-150 Truck (Quantity 2) $5,959 $5,959 $1,960 $1,960 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick  $1,859 $1,859 $611 $611 

Bellflower 2024 Ford Hybrid Maverick Truck $6,058 $6,721 $1,992 $2,210 

Buena Park 2024 Kia Niro Hybrid $15,124 $15,124 $4,974 $4,974 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#1) $11,692 $11,692 $3,845 $3,845 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#2) $12,009 $12,009 $3,949 $3,949 

Buena Park Replace 1 police unit with a Hybrid Ford Explorer (#3) $12,019 $12,019 $3,952 $3,952 

Claremont 2 Sanitation Vehicle Purchase (CNG) $77 $392 $87 $445 

Covina 2020 Toyota Prius - Lease $7,941 $7,941 $2,612 $2,612 

Covina Lease of (3) 2024 Toyota Camry LE Hybrid Vehicles $6,915 $6,915 $2,274 $2,274 

Cudahy Light Duty Vehicle Leases $22,983 $22,983 $7,558 $7,558 

Cypress Compressed Natural Gas Sewer Cleaning Truck $95 $95 $102 $102 

Diamond Bar (2) electric, zero-emission work trucks $8,131 $8,131 $2,674 $2,674 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle lease $17,296 $17,296 $5,688 $5,688 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease 24 Honda Crv $17,541 $17,541 $5,769 $5,769 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Ford  $16,200 $16,200 $5,327 $5,327 

96



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project       

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

68 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds  Air Funds ALL Funds 

Duarte Hybrid Vehicle Lease Toyota $16,234 $16,234  $5,339 $5,339 

Eastvale Purchase of 3 Ford Escape PHEV $3,257 $3,257  $1,071 $1,071 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $106 $106  $35 $35 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $106 $106  $35 $35 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $106 $106  $35 $35 

Gardena Lease (1) 2019 Hyundai Ioniq Plug-In Hybrid Hatchback $3,385 $3,385  $1,113 $1,113 

Hemet One New 2024 Ford Maverick Hybrid $31,850 $31,850  $10,474 $10,474 

Huntington Beach Purchase of 1 new equipment - sweeper $181 $181  $195 $195 

Jurupa Valley Vin# 1FMCU0MZ4PUB13572 $2,260 $2,260  $743 $743 

La Verne New Vehicles $73,506 $73,506  $24,173 $24,173 

Laguna Hills 2023 Ford F-150 Hybrid 4x4 Truck $8,728 $8,728  $2,870 $2,870 

Lakewood Purchase of 1 new Ford Maverick Hybrid $2,180 $2,180  $717 $717 

Lakewood Purchase of 11 new Chevrolet Equinox $2,147 $2,147  $706 $706 

Lynwood 2022 Toyota Highlander Hybrid lease purchase $7,145 $7,145  $2,350 $2,350 

Norco Ford Escape ST-Line Hybrid Vehicle Purchase $6,194 $6,194  $2,037 $2,037 

Norco Ford Maverick Hybrid Trucks $1,970 $1,970  $648 $648 

Perris Purchase of two (2) Hybrid Cars $7,954 $7,954  $2,616 $2,616 

Perris Purchase of Two (2) Toyota Hybrid Cars $5,853 $5,853  $1,925 $1,925 

Riverside City Vactor Truck Purchase $455 $455  $497 $497 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #504 $1,489 $1,489  $490 $490 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #511 $1,378 $1,378  $453 $453 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #514 $3,318 $3,318  $1,091 $1,091 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #515 $1,215 $1,215  $399 $399 

Rosemead Lease Vehicle #516 $1,659 $1,659  $546 $546 

San Bernardino City 2024 FREIGHTLINER 114SD VIN 1FVHG3FW7RHVG3539 $61 $61  $64 $64 

San Dimas Street Sweeper $107 $107  $110 $110 

San Jacinto Vactor Truck $1,414 $2,330  $1,402 $2,311 

Santa Clarita 2024 CNG Freightliner Dump Truck $894 $894  $960 $960 

Stanton Purchase of Toyota Sienna hybrid Minivan $14,770 $14,770  $4,857 $4,857 

97



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project       

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

69 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds  Air Funds ALL Funds 

Temple City City Fleet Low Emission Vehicles Lease $2,294 $2,294  $754 $754 

Tustin Purchase 2 plug-in hybrid EVs $4,378 $4,378  $1,440 $1,440 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $9,209 $9,209  $3,029 $3,029 

Upland Vehicle Purchase $9,806 $9,806  $3,225 $3,225 

Walnut Purchase of Hybrid Vehicle $5,133 $10,266  $1,688 $3,376 

Westlake Village Lease of 1 Alternative Fuel Vehicle $8,787 $8,787  $2,890 $2,890 

       

   (1d) Electric Vehicle Purchases/Leases      

Alhambra Purchase two (2) Ford Mach E $2,552 $2,552  $734 $734 

Arcadia City Fleet Vehicle - Chevrolet Bolt EUV $6,641 $6,641  $1,909 $1,909 

Brea John Deere TE 4x2 Electric Utility Vehicle $227 $227  $227 $227 

Buena Park Police Captain's Take-home Car - Tesla Model Y $979 $979  $281 $281 

Buena Park Replace police captain's take-home vehicle with Ford Mach E $890 $890  $256 $256 

Calabasas 2 Electric Vehicle Purchase $3,116 $6,232  $896 $1,791 

Carson ELECTRIC UTILITY VEHICLE / GATOR $15 $15  $15 $15 

Carson Purchase of F-150 Lightning $3,425 $3,425  $984 $984 

Chino Hills Hybrid-gasoline vehicle $5,527 $5,527  $1,588 $1,588 

Colton Electric Vehicle Ford Lightening Fleet Purchases $15,555 $15,555  $4,471 $4,471 

Covina Purchase of (3) 2023 Ford E-Transit Cargo Vans $2,438 $2,438  $773 $773 

Culver City Pool Car Purchase $5,067 $5,067  $1,456 $1,456 

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Ford F-150 Lighting $2,420 $2,420  $695 $695 

El Monte El Monte Transit Service Trucks $969 $969  $279 $279 

El Monte Paratransit/Team-Building Electric Van $1,765 $1,765  $451 $451 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $18 $18  $5 $5 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $18 $18  $5 $5 

Fontana AFV Rebate Program $18 $18  $5 $5 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Lease Electric Vehicles  $1,308 $1,308  $376 $376 

Garden Grove 2023 ZEV Purchased Electric Vehicles  $374 $374  $107 $107 

Garden Grove 2024 ZEV Electric Vehicle Purchase  $976 $976  $280 $280 

98



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

70 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

Gardena Down Payment/Lease (1) 2023 Tesla Model Y Long Range AWD, $2,241 $2,241 $644 $644 

Gardena Lease (1) 2020 Tesla Model 3 AWD $1,207 $1,207 $347 $347 

Glendora EV250 Buses $168 $523 $165 $515 

Grand Terrace Grand Terrace Senior Bus $14 $359 $14 $357 

Hermosa Beach Purchase of Tesla $1,785 $2,659 $513 $764 

Huntington Park 1 2019 Green Power EV Star $819 $819 $235 $235 

Huntington Park 2019 Green Power EV Star Shuttle Purchase - 5 Vehicles $151 $151 $59 $59 

Irvine Irvine Police Cybertruck Purchase $1,023 $7,244 $294 $2,082 

La Mirada ELECTRIC FORKLIFT $1,156 $1,156 $1,156 $1,156 

Laguna Hills Electric Payloader Cart $20 $20 $20 $20 

Lynwood John Deere Gator Vehicle  $1,154 $1,154 $1,154 $1,154 

Orange City Clubb Car Ambulance Transport $45 $45 $45 $45 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3349 $4,648 $4,648 $1,336 $1,336 

Orange County Purchase of Ford Lightning Truck-Unit 3352 $4,648 $4,648 $1,336 $1,336 

Paramount Purchase of an Electric Utility Vehicle $14 $14 $14 $14 

Paramount Lease of Electric Vehicles $5,921 $5,921 $1,702 $1,702 

Perris Purchase of Electric Vehicles $1,257 $1,257 $361 $361 

Pico Rivera Purchase (1) electric vehicle (2023 Ford Lightning) $1,138 $2,260 $361 $716 

Rancho Cucamonga 2023 Chevrolet Bolt  $903 $903 $260 $260 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Heavy Duty Additions (Rizon) $77 $77 $76 $76 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Chevy Blazers) $2,168 $2,168 $623 $623 

Santa Ana EV Purchases - Light Duty Additions (Ford F-150 Lightings) $2,572 $2,572 $739 $739 

Santa Fe Springs Electric Transit Van $625 $625 $620 $620 

Signal Hill Purchase of Ford F-150 Lightning $144 $144 $57 $57 

South Gate Replace One Gas-Powered Vehicle with Electric Vehicle  $400 $400 $115 $115 

Stanton Purchase of electric forklift $201 $201 $201 $201 

West Covina Purchase of 2023 Ford E-Transit 350 Cargo Van $2,454 $2,454 $778 $778 

Whittier New Vehicle Purchase  $1,925 $1,925 $553 $553 

Yorba Linda Purchase of 5 new EV's $727 $727 $209 $209 

99



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project       

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

71 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds  Air Funds ALL Funds 

(2) Vehicle Emissions Abatement      

(2a) Off-Road Vehicle Cleaner Diesel Purchases, Repowers, and Retrofits      

Eastvale Purchase of 1 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader $69 $69  $69 $69 

San Marino Riding Lawnmower Replacement $10 $10  $10 $10 

South El Monte Mean Green Electric Mower $21 $21  $21 $21 

       

(3) Land Use      

   (3c) Facilities (Pedestrian, Mixed Use, etc.)      

Fontana Alder Middle School Sidewalk PN3367 $6,300 $26,414  $3,813 $15,989 

Fontana Alder‐Locust‐Ramona Safe Routes to School PN 3339 $303 $3,494  $181 $2,084 

Fontana Blanchard Avenue Sidewalk Gap Project PN 3115 $1,817 $2,500  $1,100 $1,514 

Rancho Cucamonga Haven Avenue Sidewalk Improvement $265 $758  $161 $459 

Yucaipa Yucaipa Blvd - 2nd to 5th St - Phase 3 $701 $701  $417 $417 

       

(4) Public Transportation (Transit & Rail)      

   (4c) Transit Operations      

Dana Point Dana Point Trolley and Special Event Program $1,441 $1,441  $1,029 $1,029 

La Habra Shuttle to Transport Seniors $845 $845  $1,761 $1,761 

Placentia Senior Mobility Program  $2,824 $13,924  $2,578 $12,711 

       

   (4d) Passenger Fare Subsidies      

Anaheim Metrolink and OCTA $245 $294  $134 $161 

Azusa Transit Pass Subsidy $512 $512  $282 $282 

Corona Corona Cruiser Fare Subsidy $397 $397  $231 $231 

Covina Commuter Choice $757 $757  $422 $422 

Garden Grove Transit Subsidy Metrolink & Bus $2,474 $2,474  $1,364 $1,364 

Glendale Transit Fare Subsidy  $457 $457  $255 $255 

Norwalk Commuter Benefits Program $161 $161  $89 $89 

Riverside City Riverside Go Transit Bus Pass Subsidy Program $105 $105  $58 $58 

100



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project       

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024       
 

72 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds  Air Funds ALL Funds 

Santa Fe Springs GO RIO (BUS PASS PROGRAM) $101 $101  $57 $57 

Walnut Bus Pass Subsidy $49 $49  $27 $27 

Whittier GO RIO $55 $55  $31 $31 

       

(5) Traffic Management       

   (5b) Traffic Flow or Signalization      

Anaheim Anaheim Bl from La Palma Ave to Wilken Wy $0 $0  $0 $0 

Costa Mesa Baker/Placentia/19th/Victoria TSSP $42 $42  $30 $30 

Costa Mesa Bear Street Traffic Signal Synchronization Project $1 $1  $1 $1 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - 5th St / Greenspot Rd $35 $35  $24 $24 

Highland Traffic Signal Synchronization - Baseline $12 $12  $9 $9 

Laguna Niguel Traffic Signal Coordination $21 $21  $14 $14 

Lake Forest Lake Forest Drive Traffic Signal Synchronization $0 $0  $0 $0 

Los Angeles City 3rd St $54 $54  $38 $38 

Los Angeles City 6th St  $93 $93  $66 $66 

Los Angeles City 8th St $60 $60  $43 $43 

Los Angeles City Adams Blvd $282 $282  $192 $192 

Los Angeles City Bundy Dr $72 $72  $49 $49 

Los Angeles City Burbank Blvd $105 $105  $58 $58 

Los Angeles City Cashio St $59 $59  $42 $42 

Los Angeles City Figueroa St $68 $68  $46 $46 

Los Angeles City Florence Ave $182 $182  $115 $115 

Los Angeles City Fountain Ave $75 $75  $54 $54 

Los Angeles City James M Wood Blvd $333 $333  $240 $240 

Los Angeles City Los Angeles St $92 $92  $66 $66 

Los Angeles City Melrose Ave $75 $75  $51 $51 

Los Angeles City Ohio Ave $87 $87  $61 $61 

Los Angeles City Pacific Ave $77 $77  $53 $53 

Los Angeles City Pico Blvd $83 $83  $58 $58 

101



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

73 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

Los Angeles City S Grand Ave $105 $105 $74 $74 

Los Angeles City S Pacific Ave (San Pedro) $61 $61 $41 $41 

Los Angeles City Sawtelle Blvd $221 $221 $151 $151 

Los Angeles City Soto St $82 $82 $57 $57 

Los Angeles City Temple St $116 $116 $81 $81 

Los Angeles City Van Ness Ave $163 $163 $116 $116 

Los Angeles City Vine St $57 $57 $40 $40 

Los Angeles City W 19th St $650 $650 $458 $458 

Los Angeles City Wilton Pl $93 $93 $67 $67 

Moreno Valley Traffic Signal Coordination Program $13 $13 $9 $9 

Pomona Traffic Controller Upgrades $34 $34 $18 $18 

Rancho Santa Margarita Los Alisos/Melinda Road Signal Equipment Update $4 $4 $3 $3 

Riverside City Traffic Timing Signal Coordination $763 $763 $520 $520 

(6) Transportation Demand Management

   (6a) Employer-Based Trip Reduction 

Anaheim Trip Reduction $248 $283 $136 $155 

Arcadia Rideshare Plus Program $270 $270 $148 $148 

Azusa Rideshare Financial Incentives $187 $187 $103 $103 

Baldwin Park Employer Trip Reduction Incentive Program $23 $23 $13 $13 

Bell Gardens Employee Ride Share Subsidies $85 $85 $47 $47 

Buena Park Employee Rideshare Program Incentives $295 $295 $162 $162 

Burbank Employee Rideshare Subsidies $874 $874 $479 $479 

Burbank Employee Transit Subsidies $427 $427 $234 $234 

Carson Breathe Employee Rideshare Project $472 $472 $259 $259 

Cerritos City Employee Rideshare Trip Rebate Program $253 $253 $139 $139 

Claremont Trip-Reduction Program $831 $831 $456 $456 

Commerce Employer Based Trip Reduction  $179 $179 $98 $98 

Compton Employee Transit/Pass Subsidy Program $1,655 $1,655 $913 $913 

102



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

74 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

Downey Downey Employee "Thumbs Up" Commuting Program $737 $737 $404 $404 

El Monte Employee Rideshare Program $420 $420 $230 $230 

Fontana Employee Rideshare Program $712 $712 $390 $390 

Garden Grove Rideshare Redemption  $308 $308 $169 $169 

Glendale Employer Based Trip Reduction Program  $51 $51 $28 $28 

Glendora Alternative Commute Program $746 $746 $409 $409 

Hermosa Beach Auto Trip Reduction Program $549 $549 $301 $301 

Huntington Beach Employer-Based Trip Reduction $143 $143 $78 $78 

La Verne City of La Verne Walk, Bike, Carpool or Public Transit Program $163 $163 $90 $90 

Los Angeles City Bikeshare Incentive $249 $249 $144 $144 

Los Angeles City Employer's Bike Incentive Program $79 $237 $45 $134 

Los Angeles City Employer's Carpool Incentive Program $6 $6 $3 $3 

Los Angeles City Employer's Transit Subsidy Program $75 $294 $41 $161 

Los Angeles City Employer's Walk Incentive Program $83 $332 $48 $192 

Los Angeles County Countywide Rideshare Program $44 $44 $24 $24 

Montebello Employee Rideshare Program $130 $130 $71 $71 

Monterey Park Employee Rideshare Program $1,668 $1,668 $908 $908 

Orange City Trip Reduction Program (TRP) $1,206 $1,206 $661 $661 

Orange County Ride Share $2 $2 $1 $1 

Palm Desert Rideshare Program $50 $50 $28 $28 

Palm Springs Employee Rideshare and Low-Carbon Transportation Initiative $27 $27 $15 $15 

Rancho Cucamonga Rideshare Program $549 $549 $301 $301 

Redondo Beach Employee Rideshare $135 $135 $74 $74 

Rialto Employee Rideshare Program $246 $246 $135 $135 

Riverside County Commuter Service Rideshare Program $15 $15 $8 $8 

San Bernardino City Rideshare Program $304 $304 $167 $167 

San Bernardino County ECRP $36 $36 $20 $20 

Santa Ana Rideshare Program $1,099 $1,099 $601 $601 

Santa Clarita Monthly Passes $70 $70 $39 $39 

103



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

75 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

Santa Clarita Rideshare Program $14 $14 $8 $8 

Stanton Rideshare Incentive Program $200 $200 $109 $109 

Torrance Employee Rideshare $412 $412 $226 $226 

Upland Rideshare Program $432 $432 $237 $237 

West Hollywood Alternative Transportation Mode Incentive $623 $623 $347 $347 

Whittier Rideshare Reward $10 $10 $6 $6 

   (6b) Other Trip Reduction Incentive Programs 

Pasadena Rideshare program $291 $291 $159 $159 

San Juan Capistrano Senior Nutritional Transportation Program $1,085 $5,409 $607 $3,027 

Whittier Bike to Work $440 $440 $249 $249 

   (6c) Vanpool Programs 

Anaheim Vanpool $1,998 $2,336 $1,295 $1,515 

Garden Grove Vanpool Program $516 $532 $283 $292 

Los Angeles City Employer's Vanpool Program $150 $1,136 $125 $951 

San Bernardino County SCAQMD Vanpool Program $232 $232 $139 $139 

   (6e) Telecommunication 

Garden Grove Telecommunication $8 $8 $4 $4 

(8) Bicycles

   (8a) Bicycle Lanes, Trails, and Bridges 

Anaheim Nohl Ranch Open Space Trail $24 $24 $14 $14 

Costa Mesa W 19th Bike Facility Improvements $57 $57 $34 $34 

Fontana Fontana Safe Routes to School Gap Closure PN 0003 $109 $3,483 $65 $2,078 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Brookhurst St. from Trask 

Ave. to Katella Ave $55 $230 $33 $137 

104



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

76 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Chapman from Valley 

View to Beach Blvd.  $67 $282 $40 $168 

Garden Grove 
Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Gilbert St. from Deodora 
Drive/ Westminster Blvd to Katella Ave  $85 $350 $51 $209 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - Lampson Ave. from Dale 

St. to Haster St $124 $527 $74 $314 

Garden Grove 

Bicycle Corridor Improvement Project - West Street from Garden 

Grove Avenue to Orangewood Avenue $68 $279 $40 $167 

La Canada Flintridge Foothill Blvd. Link Project $716 $12,459 $416 $7,240 

Rancho Cucamonga Cucamonga Creek Channel Bike Trail $3 $9 $2 $5 

Rancho Cucamonga Day Creek Bike Trail $35 $103 $21 $62 

Temecula Citywide Buffered Bike Lane Striping $114 $114 $69 $69 

West Hollywood Fountain Ave Bicycle Facilities Project $4 $6 $2 $4 

(8c) Bicycle Usage 

Inglewood Electric Bikes $3,142 $3,142 $1,123 $1,123 

Los Angeles City Metro Bikeshare (Citywide) $747 $46,141 $451 $27,845 

Orange City Police Bike Team $5,514 $5,514 $1,972 $1,972 

Pasadena E-Bike Rebate Program $99 $99 $35 $35 

(9) PM Reduction Strategies

   (9a) Road Dust Control 

Cathedral City Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $108 $108 $115 $115 

Coachella Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers” $108 $108 $115 $115 

Desert Hot Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $108 $108 $114 $114 

El Monte Street Sweeper $9 $9 $9 $9 

Hawthorne Reduction Street Sweeping Project  $47 $47 $51 $51 

Indian Wells Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $110 $110 $110 $110 

Indio Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $112 $112 $119 $119 

La Quinta Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $108 $108 $114 $114 

105



Cost-Effectiveness of Funding by Project 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

77 

Local Government Project Name 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 

Cost-Effectiveness ($/lb) 

Based on ROG + NOx + 

PM2.5 + CO/7 

Air Funds ALL Funds Air Funds ALL Funds 

Loma Linda City Street Sweeping $120 $120 $138 $138 

Lomita Street Sweeper  $29 $29 $36 $36 

Moreno Valley Street Sweeping Program $188 $188 $223 $223 

Norwalk Cleaner Street Sweeping Contract $6 $90 $6 $93 

Palm Desert Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 2 Sweepers $144 $144 $152 $152 

Palm Springs Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $108 $108 $114 $114 

Rancho Mirage Regional PM10 Street Sweeping Program Using 3 Sweepers $110 $110 $117 $117 

Riverside County Regional Street Sweeping Program $105 $105 $111 $111 

Walnut Street Sweeper with CNG Sweeper $33 $33 $40 $40 

(11) Miscellaneous Projects

   (11a) Miscellaneous 

Chino Vehicle Emissions Credit Purchased $31 $31 $17 $17 

Inglewood Emission Reductions $11 $11 $6 $6 

Riverside City AQMD Rule 2202 Compliance $17 $17 $10 $10 

Whittier Air Quality Investment Program $32 $32 $18 $18 

106



Summary of Projects that Reported Cost-Effectiveness 

Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 

78 

Motor Vehicle Fees $17,733,497

Air Funds (MVFees + MSRC + Moyer) $17,817,262

Amortized Air Funds $8,557,478

Emission Reductions (lbs per year) 243,259
(ROG + NOx + PM2.5 + CO/7)

Average Cost-Effectiveness (dollars per lb) $35.18 

This report includes only projects with cost-effectiveness greater than zero.

Cost-effectiveness is amortized Air Funds (MVFees + MSRC + Moyer dollars) divided by ROG + NOx + PM2.5 + CO/7. 

107



1 

South Coast 

Air Quality Management District 
  21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, CA 91765 

(909) 396-2000,  www.aqmd.gov

Rule 2305 Implementation Status Report: 

Warehouse Actions and Investments to Reduce Emissions (WAIRE) Program 

April 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025

1. Implementation and Outreach Activities:

Activity 
Since Last 

Report 

Since Rule 

Adoption 

Calls and Emails to WAIRE Program Hotline (909-396-3140) 

and Helpdesk (waire-program@aqmd.gov) 
849 17,259 

Views of Compliance Training Videos (outside of webinars) 15,173 45,461 

Notices Sent to Email Subscribers with Information About 

WAIRE Program Resources 0 108,449 

Visits to www.aqmd.gov/waire 4,593 99,215 

Warehouse Locations Visited In-Person 541 4,404 

Presentations to Stakeholders* 2 151 

*METRANS International Urban Freight Conference and Advanced Clean Transportation Expo.

2. Highlights of Recent Implementation and Enforcement Activities

• A total of 1,712 Annual WAIRE Reports (AWRs) were submitted by warehouse

operators for the first two compliance periods (2022 and 2023) as of May 31, 2025. To

date, a total of about 622,809 WAIRE Points have been earned across all options in the

two compliance periods, far exceeding the total WAIRE Points Compliance Obligation of

about 170,249 Points reported by these entities. The excess points may be banked by the

warehouse operators for future compliance.

• For the most recent 2024 compliance period, a total of 1,377 Annual WAIRE Reports

(AWRs) were submitted by warehouse operators as of May 31, 2025. These warehouse

operators earned a total of about 588,345 WAIRE Points across all WAIRE Menu options

during this compliance period, which far exceeds the total reported WAIRE Points

Compliance Obligation of 205,557 points.

• As of May 31, 2025, warehouse operators reported approximately $55.6 million in

mitigation fees (approximately 55,552 mitigation fee points earned). Mitigation fee points

represent about 4.6% of all WAIRE points earned.

• Since December 2023, 702 Notice of Violations (NOVs) have been issued to warehouse

operators for failure to submit required reports by the due date. Approximately 330

warehouses have contacted South Coast AQMD directly in response to the NOVs issued,

108

Item #3

http://www.aqmd.gov/
mailto:waire-program@aqmd.gov
http://www.aqmd.gov/waire


2 

and staff are providing compliance assistance as needed. Approximately 315 facilities 

have subsequently filed the required reports.  

3. Summary of Reporting Rates

The table below includes estimates of the reporting rates for the AWRs received by warehouse 

operators in the first three compliance years of rule implementation1. This table shows 

“anticipated reports”, which is an estimate of AWRs based on warehouse operators identified 

through Rule 2305 reporting and CoStar data through August 20242. Based on reported 

information, we estimate about 81% of entities with at least 100,000 square feet of indoor floor 

space need to earn WAIRE Points and submit an AWR, with the remaining 19% only required to 

submit limited information in an Initial Site Information Report. As additional reports are 

received, this estimate is subject to change. The table shows the number of warehouse operators 

that are anticipated to earn points. Reporting rates will increase through time in response to 

ongoing staff outreach and enforcement efforts. 

AWR Reporting Rate Summary* 

Compliance Year 2022 2023 2024 

Phase Phase 1 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 

AWRs Received 660 646 406 624 415 338 

Anticipated AWRs 1,408 1,408 1,287 1,408 1,287 1,661 

Reporting Rate 47% 46% 32% 44% 32% 20% 

* Reporting rates as of May 31, 2025. The reports received totals do not include the following: operators not subject

to AWR reporting, voluntary AWRs submitted by warehouse facility owners, warehouse operators who submitted

an early action AWR prior to their first AWR due date, and a small number of AWRs submitted in error.

1 Subject to auditing by South Coast AQMD. 
2 These numbers exclude those operators that are not required to earn WAIRE Points. 

109



South Coast 
Air Quality Management District 
21865 Copley Drive, Diamond Bar, CA 91765-4182 
(909) 396-2000  www.aqmd.gov

June 6, 2025 

Rule 2202 Summary Status Report 
Activity for January 1, 2025 – May 31, 2025 

Employee Commute Reduction Program (ECRP) 
# of Submittals: 107 

Emission Reduction Strategies (ERS) 
# of Submittals: 21 

Air Quality Investment Program (AQIP) Exclusively 
County # of Facilities $ Amount 
Los Angeles 35 $ 122,152 
Orange 3 $ 8,038 
Riverside 0 $ 0 
San Bernardino 4 $ 63,272 
TOTAL: 42 $ 193,462 

ECRP w/AQIP Combination 
County # of Facilities $ Amount 
Los Angeles 0 $ 0 
Orange 0 $ 0 
Riverside 0 $ 0 
San Bernardino 0 $ 0 
TOTAL: 0 $ 0 

Total Active Sites as of May 31, 2025 
ECRP (AVR Surveys) TOTAL 

Submittals 
w/Surveys AQIP ERS TOTAL ECRP1 AQIP2 ERS3 

479 6 11 496 97 720 1,313 
36.6% 0.6% 0.8% 38.0% 7.0% 55.0% 100%4

Total Peak Window Employees as of May 31, 2025 
ECRP (AVR Surveys) TOTAL 

Submittals 
w/Surveys AQIP ERS TOTAL ECRP1 AQIP2 ERS3 

386,657 1,600 1,774 390,031 14,245 286,063 690,339 
56.0% 0.2% 0.3% 56.5% 2.0% 41.5% 100%4

Notes: 1. ECRP Compliance Option.
2. ECRP Offset (combines ECRP w/AQIP). AQIP funds are used to supplement the ECRP AVR

survey shortfall.
3. ERS with Employee Survey to get Trip Reduction credits. Emission/Trip Reduction Strategies

are used to supplement the ECRP AVR survey shortfall.
4. Totals may vary slightly due to rounding.

110

Item #4



BOARD MEETING DATE:  August 1, 2025 AGENDA NO. 

REPORT: Intergovernmental Review of Environmental Documents and 

CEQA Lead Agency Projects  

SYNOPSIS: This report provides a listing of environmental documents prepared 

by other public agencies seeking review by South Coast AQMD 

between May 1, 2025 and May 31, 2025, and proposed projects for 

which South Coast AQMD is acting as lead agency pursuant to 

CEQA. 

COMMITTEE: Mobile Source, June 20, 2025, Reviewed 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Receive and file. 

Wayne Nastri 

Executive Officer 
SR:MK:BR:SW:ET:DC 

Background 

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Statute and Guidelines require 

public agencies, when acting in their lead agency role, to provide an opportunity for 

other public agencies and members of the public to review and comment on the analysis 

in environmental documents prepared for proposed projects. A lead agency is when a 

public agency has the greatest responsibility for supervising or approving a proposed 

project and is responsible for the preparation of the appropriate CEQA document. 

Each month, South Coast AQMD receives environmental documents, which include 

CEQA documents, for proposed projects that could adversely affect air quality. South 

Coast AQMD fulfills its intergovernmental review responsibilities, in a manner that is 

consistent with the Board’s 1997 Environmental Justice Guiding Principles and 

Environmental Justice Initiative #4, by reviewing and commenting on the adequacy of 

the air quality analysis in the environmental documents prepared by other lead agencies. 

DRAFT VERSION

111

Item #5



2 

 

 

The status of these intergovernmental review activities is provided in this report in two 

sections:  1) Attachment A lists all of the environmental documents prepared by other 

public agencies seeking review by South Coast AQMD that were received during the 

reporting period; and 2) Attachment B lists the active projects for which South Coast 

AQMD has reviewed or is continuing to conduct a review of the environmental 

documents prepared by other public agencies. Further, as required by the Board’s 

October 2002 Environmental Justice Program Enhancements for fiscal year (FY) 2002-

03, each attachment includes notes for proposed projects which indicate when South 

Coast AQMD has been contacted regarding potential air quality-related environmental 

justice concerns. The attachments also identify for each proposed project, as applicable:  

1) the dates of the public comment period and the public hearing date; 2) whether staff 

provided written comments to a lead agency and the location where the comment letter 

may be accessed on South Coast AQMD’s website; and 3) whether staff testified at a 

hearing.  

 

In addition, the South Coast AQMD will act as lead agency for a proposed project and 

prepare a CEQA document when:  1) air permits are needed; 2) potentially significant 

adverse impacts have been identified; and 3) the South Coast AQMD has primary 

discretionary authority over the approvals. Attachment C lists the proposed air permit 

projects for which South Coast AQMD is lead agency under CEQA. 

 

Attachment A – Log of Environmental Documents Prepared by Other Public 

Agencies and Status of Review, and Attachment B – Log of Active Projects with 

Continued Review of Environmental Documents Prepared by Other Public 

Agencies  

 

Attachment A contains a list of all environmental documents prepared by other public 

agencies seeking review by South Coast AQMD that were received pursuant to CEQA 

or other regulatory requirements. Attachment B provides a list of active projects, which 

were identified in previous months’ reports, and which South Coast AQMD staff is 

continuing to evaluate or prepare comments relative to the environmental documents 

prepared by other public agencies. The following table provides statistics on the status 

of review1 of environmental documents for the current reporting period for Attachments 

A and B combined2: 

 
1 The status of review reflects the date when this Board Letter was prepared. Therefore, Attachments A and B 

may not reflect the most recent updates. 
2 Copies of all comment letters sent to the lead agencies are available on South Coast AQMD’s website at: 

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/commenting-agency. 

112

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/commenting-agency


3 

 

 

Statistics for Reporting Period from May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Attachment A: Environmental Documents Prepared by Other Public 

Agencies and Status of Review 

83 

Attachment B: Active Projects with Continued Review of 

Environmental Documents Prepared by Other Public Agencies (which 

were previously identified in the April 2025 report) 

 

6 

Total Environmental Documents Listed in Attachments A & B 89 

    Comment letters sent 8 

    Environmental documents reviewed, but no comments were made 67 

    Environmental documents currently undergoing review 14 

 

Staff focuses on reviewing and preparing comments on environmental documents 

prepared by other public agencies for proposed projects:  1) where South Coast AQMD 

is a responsible agency under CEQA (e.g., when air permits are required but another 

public agency is lead agency); 2) that may have significant adverse regional air quality 

impacts (e.g., special event centers, landfills, goods movement); 3) that may have 

localized or toxic air quality impacts (e.g., warehouse and distribution centers); 4) 

where environmental justice concerns have been raised; and 5) which a lead or 

responsible agency has specifically requested South Coast AQMD review.  

 

If staff provided written comments to a lead agency, then a hyperlink to the “South 

Coast AQMD Letter” is included in the “Project Description” column which 

corresponds to a notation in the “Comment Status” column. In addition, if staff testified 

at a hearing for a proposed project, then a notation is included in the “Comment Status” 

column. Copies of all comment letters sent to lead agencies are available on South 

Coast AQMD’s website at: http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/commenting-

agency. Interested parties seeking information regarding the comment periods and 

scheduled public hearings for projects listed in Attachments A and B should contact the 

lead agencies for further details as these dates are occasionally modified. 

 

In January 2006, the Board approved the Clean Port Initiative Workplan (Workplan). 

One action item of the Workplan was to prepare a monthly report describing CEQA 

documents for projects related to goods movement and to make full use of the process 

to ensure the air quality impacts of such projects are thoroughly mitigated. In 

accordance with this action item, Attachments A and B organize the environmental 

documents received according to the following categories: 1) goods movement projects; 

2) schools; 3) landfills and wastewater projects; 4) airports; and 5) general land use 

projects. In response to the action item relative to mitigation, staff maintains a 

compilation of  mitigation measures presented as a series of tables relative to off-road 

engines; on-road engines; harbor craft; ocean-going vessels; locomotives; fugitive dust; 

and greenhouse gases which are available on South Coast AQMD’s website at: 

113

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/commenting-agency
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/commenting-agency


4 

 

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/air-quality-analysis-handbook/mitigation-

measures-and-control-efficiencies. Staff will continue compiling tables of mitigation 

measures for other emission sources such as ground support equipment. 

 

Attachment C – Proposed Air Permit Projects for Which South Coast AQMD is 

CEQA Lead Agency 

 

The CEQA lead agency is responsible for determining the type of environmental 

document to be prepared if a proposal requiring discretionary action is considered to be 

a “project” as defined by CEQA. South Coast AQMD periodically acts as lead agency 

for its air permit projects and the type of environmental document prepared may vary 

depending on the potential impacts. For example, an Environmental Impact Report 

(EIR) is prepared when there is substantial evidence that the project may have 

significant adverse effects on the environment. Similarly, a Negative Declaration (ND) 

or Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) may be prepared if a proposed project will 

not generate significant adverse environmental impacts, or the impacts can be mitigated 

to less than significance. The ND and MND are types of CEQA documents which 

analyze the potential environmental impacts and describe the reasons why a significant 

adverse effect on the environment will not occur such that the preparation of an EIR is 

not required.  

 

Attachment C of this report summarizes the proposed air permit projects for which 

South Coast AQMD is lead agency and is currently preparing or has prepared 

environmental documentation pursuant to CEQA. As noted in Attachment C, South 

Coast AQMD is lead agency for four air permit projects during May 2025. 

 

Attachments 

 

A. Environmental Documents Prepared by Other Public Agencies and Status of 

Review 

B. Active Projects with Continued Review of Environmental Documents Prepared 

by Other Public Agencies  

C. Proposed Air Permit Projects for Which South Coast AQMD is CEQA Lead 

Agency  

 

114

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/air-quality-analysis-handbook/mitigation-measures-and-control-efficiencies
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/regulations/ceqa/air-quality-analysis-handbook/mitigation-measures-and-control-efficiencies


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-1

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD AGENCY COMMENT 

STATUS 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of improving and expanding an existing cold storage facility by adding a 

new two-story, 65-foot tall, 281,899 square foot facility and 71,331 square foot freezer. The 

existing 27,157 square freezer will be demolished and altered. The project is located at 142 Coil 

Avenue in Los Angeles and is within the designated AB617 Wilmington, Carson, and West 

Long Beach community. 

Comment Period:  4/24/2025 - 5/27/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of Intent 

to Adopt a 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Los Angeles Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250501-01 

KPAC Coil Avenue Freezer Expansion 

Project# 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of constructing a 517,437 square foot warehouse on 26.47 acres. The 

project is located at 4000 Via Oro Avenue on the northeast corner of West Carson Street and 

Via Oro Avenue in Long Beach within the designated AB 617 Wilmington, Carson, and West

Long Beach community. 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental 

Impact Report, which can be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-

source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-04-draft-eir-intex-corporate-office-and-

fulfillment-center-project.pdf and https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2023/may-2023/LAC230418-06.pdf.  

References: LAC250409-03; LAC240801-04; and LAC230418-06 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: 6/10/2025 

Other City of Long Beach Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

LAC250521-02 

Intex Corporate Office and Fulfillment 

Center# 

 

DRAFT VERSION

115

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-04-draft-eir-intex-corporate-office-and-fulfillment-center-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-04-draft-eir-intex-corporate-office-and-fulfillment-center-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-04-draft-eir-intex-corporate-office-and-fulfillment-center-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/may-2023/LAC230418-06.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/may-2023/LAC230418-06.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-2 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT  
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of demolishing an existing 637,503 square foot office building, surface 

parking, and associated landscape areas and constructing a new industrial warehouse consisting 

of 181,500 square foot parcel delivery facility building. The 31.6-acre site is located at 275 

Valencia Avenue in Brea. 

 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental 

Impact   Report, which can be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2024/december-2024/orc241106-09-deir-djt4-parcel-delivery-facility-project.pdf.  

 

References: ORC241106-09 and ORC230719-13 
 

 
Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: 5/13/2025 

Other City of Brea Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250506-07 

DJT4 Parcel Delivery Facility 

Project (Amazon Parcel Delivery 

Facility Project) 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of amending Plot Plan No. 04-PP-18 to add a 457,444 square foot single-

story warehouse building and associated improvements within the Rolling Hills Ranch 

Industrial Park Specific Plan (Crossroads Logistics Center). No variances or amendments to 

the approved specific Plan or Plot Plan conditions of approval are requested. The project is 

located at 1022 Prosperity Way in Beaumont. 

 

 
 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Other City of 

Beaumont 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250501-05 

PP2024-0052 

116

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/december-2024/orc241106-09-deir-djt4-parcel-delivery-facility-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/december-2024/orc241106-09-deir-djt4-parcel-delivery-facility-project.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-3 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of two warehouses where Building 1 will be 105,326 square feet and 

Building 2 will be 292,715 square feet. Additional improvements include a parking lot, loading 

docks, ornamental landscaping, associate onsite infrastructure, and construction of offsite street 

improvements, and an 11-foot tall screen wall along the flood channel and entries to screen the 

truck court from public view. The project is located south of Ethanac Road, east of Evans 

Road, west of Barnet Road, and north of McLauglin Road, within Menifee. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental 

Impact Report, which can be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2024/july-2024/rvc240612-05-deir-northern-gateway-logistics-center-project.pdf and 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/july-2023/RVC230628-05.pdf. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Preparation, which can be accessed at: 
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/january-2023/RVC230117-05.pdf   

 

References: RVC240612-05; RVC230628-05 and RVC230117-05 

 

Comment Period: N/A                                                Public Hearing: 5/14/2025 

Other City of 

Menifee 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250502-09 

Northern Gateway Logistics Center 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of constructing a 185,912 square foot warehouse with concrete tilt-up, 

non- refrigerated warehouse on 9.62 acres of vacant land with related landscaping, drainage 

basin, and parking, and 0.90 acre for public right-of-way improvements to be built along 

Tabacco Road and Placentia Avenue. The project is located north of Water Avenue, south of 

Placentia Avenue, west of Harvill Avenue and east of Tobacco Road in the City of Riverside. 

 

Comment Period:  5/2/2025 - 5/21/2025                Public Hearing: N/A 

Negative 

Declaration 

County of 

Riverside 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250507-03 

Thrifty Oil North Business Center 

117

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/july-2024/rvc240612-05-deir-northern-gateway-logistics-center-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/july-2024/rvc240612-05-deir-northern-gateway-logistics-center-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/july-2023/RVC230628-05.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/january-2023/RVC230117-05.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-4 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of demolishing two non-operational and unoccupied industrial buildings 

that are approximately 157,221 square feet and 20,000 square feet, respectively, and a 100-

space surface parking lot and constructing, operating, and maintaining one concrete tilt-up 

industrial warehouse building with approximately 334,776 gross square feet of floor area on 

14.8 acres. The project is located at 12459 Arrow Route in Rancho Cucamonga. 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/22/2025 - 7/8/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Rancho 

Cucam

onga 

Under 

review, may 

submit 

comments 

RVC250527-04 

Newcastle Arrow Route Project 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of merging seven parcels and constructing a 549,786 square foot 

warehouse on 25 acres with high-cube warehouse distribution uses, solar-ready rooftop 

panels, 10,000 square feet of office and mezzanine uses, and 94 dock doors on the north side 

of the building. The project also includes infrastructure, appurtenances, associated parking 

areas, and associated 1.1-acre off-site improvements. The project is located at the northwest 

corner of Harley Knox Boulevard and Indian Avenue in Perris. 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/30/2025 - 6/30/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Preparation 

City of 

Perris 

Under 

review, may 

submit 

comments 

RVC250528-02 

First Industrial Logistics at Harley 

Knox Indian Project 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of constructing a 398,514 square foot warehouse on 18.3 acres. The 

project would provide 125 parking stalls, 71 trailer stalls, 10 trailer tandem stalls, and 37 

tractor trailer stalls. The project is located on the northeast corner of the intersection of Sierra 

Avenue and Clubhouse Drive and is bounded to the north and south by existing warehouse 

industrial buildings, to the east by Mango Avenue and a landfill, and to the west by Sierra 

Avenue and residential development, in Fontana. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Preparation for the project, which can 

be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/may-

2023/SBC230405-03.pdf. 

 

Reference SBC230405-03 

 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Final 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Fontana 

Under 

review, may 

submit 

comments 

SBC250521-07 

Sierra Distribution Facility Project 

118

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/may-2023/SBC230405-03.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/may-2023/SBC230405-03.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-5 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Industrial and Commercial The 53-acre project consists of: 1) splitting one parcel on the southeast portion of the site 

into 10 new parcels; 2) demolishing and removing existing uses, and developing 10 new 

light industrial buildings ranging in size between 57,472 square feet and 124,265 square feet, 

for a total of 938,681 square feet; 3) installing landscaping, hardscaping, parking, vehicular 

access; 4) making circulation and infrastructure improvements; and 5) constructing  a new 

sewer line and new stormwater outfalls. The project is located in the Seal Beach Oil Field 

and Long Beach’s Methane Gas Zone at 6801 2nd Street in Long Beach. 

 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/lac250506-02.pdf  
 

Comment Period:  5/2/2025 - 6/2/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Preparation 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Long 

Beach 

Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/30/2025 

LAC250506-02 

Sea Ranch Business Park Project 

Industrial and Commercial The project consists of constructing new mixed-use buildings with approximately 82,324 

square feet of floor area on 0.57-acre including 3,959 square feet of retail uses and 78,365 

square feet of mini-warehouses uses. The project is located at 12681 West Jefferson 

Boulevard in Los Angeles. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Preparation for the project, which can 

be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2019/april/LAC190402-01.pdf  

 

Reference: LAC190402-01 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/22/2025 - 6/23/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Los 

Angeles 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

LAC250521-03 

Playa Vista Public 

Storage Redevelopment 

Project 

Industrial and Commercial The project consists of constructing a 10,338 square foot mezzanine for additional office space 

within an existing approximately 173,000 square foot (gross floor area) warehouse. The 

project is located at 12821 Knott Street in Garden Grove. 

 
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/orc250513-05.pdf  

 
 

Comment Period:  5/13/2025 - 6/2/2025 Public Hearing: 6/3/2025 

Notice of Intent 

to Adopt an 

Initial 

Study/Negative 

Declaration 

City of 

Garden Grove 

Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/28/2025 

ORC250513-05 

Harbinger Motors 

119

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/lac250506-02.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2019/april/LAC190402-01.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2019/april/LAC190402-01.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/orc250513-05.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-6 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Industrial and Commercial The project consists of constructing a new 76,700 square foot industrial building. The project 

is located at 2240 Fleetwood Drive in Jurupa Valley. 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/21/2025 - 6/12/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City 

of 

Jurupa 

Valley 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250521-06 

MA23090-SDP23053 

Warehouse & Distribution Centers The project consists of constructing a concrete tilt-up building totaling 829,755 square feet, 

which includes 10,000 square feet of office space, approximately 503 automobile parking 

spaces, and approximately 258 truck trailer parking spaces, associated facilities. Improvements 

include loading dock doors, on-site landscaping, and related on-site and off-site improvements 

(roadway improvements, sewer, storm drain, and utilities). The project is bounded by 

McLaughlin Road to the south, Ethanac Road to the north, Sherman Road to the east, and 

Trumble Road to the west in Menifee. 

 

 

Reference: RVC241001-02 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/23/2025 - 6/23/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Menifee 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

RVC250522-03 

The Heritage Valley Business Center 

120



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-7 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Industrial and Commercial The project consists of constructing a 25,750-square foot building on five acres and a 14,139-

square foot building on 10 acres, and designating 9.6 acres for the sale and rental of commercial 

trailers – all on a site totaling 25.6 gross acres which is comprised of two vacant parcels bisected 

by East Frontage Road. The project is located northeast of Interstate 215 and Placentia Avenue 

interchange, between Walnut Avenue to the north and Placentia Avenue to the south in Perris. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Mitigated Negative Declaration, which can be 

accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/april-2025/rvc250319-

01.pdf. 

 

 

References: RVC250319-01; RVC200825-01; RVC200611-28 and RVC190924-01 

 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: 6/4/2025 

Other City of Perris Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

RVC250527-02 

The Barker Business Park 

Industrial and Commercial The project consists of expanding a beverage distribution facility on a three-acre site by: 1) 

constructing up to 1,054,541 square feet of new manufacturing, light industrial, office uses, a 

four-story parking structure, a solar energy and battery storage system, and a cogeneration 

system during two phases of construction on the northern and southern portions of the site; 

and 2) demolishing a 62,210 square foot warehouse on the northern portion. The project is 

comprised of eight contiguous assessor parcels and bounded by 7th Street to the north, Utica 

Avenue to the east, 6th Street to the south, and Haven Avenue to the west. The project is 

located in the southern area of Rancho Cucamonga. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Draft Environmental Impact Report, which can be 

viewed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/october-

2023/SBC230920-09.pdf. 

 

References: SBC230823-10 and SBC230920-09 

 

Comment Period:  4/29/2025 - 6/13/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Availability of 

a Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Rancho 

Cucamonga 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

SBC250502-10 

El Camino Project 

121

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/april-2025/rvc250319-01.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/april-2025/rvc250319-01.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/october-2023/SBC230920-09.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/october-2023/SBC230920-09.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-8 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of a constructing a regional water recycling facility that would 

produce high quality water to refill underground reservoirs for use in the event of an 

earthquake or other emergency that disrupts imported water supplies. The project is 

located at 24501 South Figueroa Street on the northwest corner of South Figueroa Street 

and West Lomita Boulevard in Carson and encompasses unincorporated areas of Los 

Angeles, Orange, and San Bernardino counties in the designated AB 617 Wilmington, 

Carson, West Long Beach community. 

 

Staff previously provided comments for the Draft Environmental Impact Report which can 

be viewed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2022/november/LAC221004-04.pdf. 

 

Reference: LAC221004-04 

 

Comment Period:  5/14/2025 - 7/14/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

 Initial Project 

Consultation 

Metropolitan 

Water District 

of Southern 

California 

Document 

reviewed - 

No comments 

sent 

LAC250501-03 

Pure Water Southern California# 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of a cleaning up polychlorinated biphenyls and volatile organic 

compound at the 2.5-acre industrial area site. The project is located at 6900 Stanford 

Avenue in Los Angeles and within the designated AB617 South Los Angeles and 

Southeast Los Angeles community. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  4/30/2025 - 5/1/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No comments 

sent 

LAC250502-01 

Community Survey: General Electric 

Property# 

122

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2022/november/LAC221004-04.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2022/november/LAC221004-04.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-9 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of replacing two 750-gallon reactors (K-3 and K-24) due to worn out 

liners. The project is located at 15524 Carmenita Road, in Santa Fe Springs. 

 

 

Reference: LAC230322-04 

 

 
Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250506-03 

Heraeus Precious Metals - 

Hazardous Waste Facility Permit 

Modification 

 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of constructing a 0.7-mile sewer line that would begin on an overbank 

adjacent to the north line of the Santa Clara River and south of State Route14 and includes: 1) 

making additional minor modifications and adjustments to the access road; 2) aligning the 

multipurpose trail; 3) modifications to the soil cement bank protection to include rock slope 

protection in three locations; 4) removing the exposed portions of nine manholes from within 

the Sana Clara River channel; and 5) installing new access banks from the Santa Clara River 

to the manhole locations. The majority of the project is located in an undeveloped area to the 

north of Santa Clara River and along the northern bank of the Santa Clara River. A portion of 

the project is located along Sand Canyon Road and terminates near existing commercial uses 

east of the right-of-way. The project encompasses 2.5 acres located in the eastern portion of 

Santa Clarita. 

 

References: LAC240417-06; LAC240328-02; LAC240306-01; LAC230308-0; LAC140221-

01 and LAC161201-01 

 

      Comment Period:  5/9/2025 - 6/9/2025                                       Public Hearing: N/A 

Addendum to the 

Initial 

Study/Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

Santa 

Clarita 

Valley 

Water 

Agency 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250512-01 

Sand Canyon Sewer Relocation 

Project 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of cleaning up volatile organic compounds including tetrachloroethene 

and trichloroethene. A Removal Action Plan will be prepared and implemented to address 

these issues. The project site is located at 2330 Pontius Avenue in Los Angeles. 

 

 

      Comment Period:  5/12/2025 - 6/2/2025                                       Public Hearing: N/A 

Community 

Survey 

Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250513-01 

Community Survey - Pontius 

123



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-10

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of a request for a Class 1 Permit Modification to: 1) provide notification 

of the intended replacement of two existing tanks (T-59, T-61) with new tanks built to the 

same design standards; 2) install a mixer on one of its tanks; 3) update a list of equipment 

subject to air emissions standards in the facilities permit application; 4) request removal of a 

permit condition that is no longer need because its terms have been satisfied; and 5) correct 

typographical and administrative errors . The project is located at 3150 East Pico Boulevard 

in Los Angeles and within the designated AB 617 East Los Angeles, Boyle Heights, and West 

Commerce community. 

Reference: LAC241002-08 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250513-02 

Class 1 Permit Notification 

Pacific Resource Recovery 

Services# 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of developing two regional stormwater capture and treatment facilities in 

the Lower Arroyo Seco Channel adjacent to the Arroyo Seco Channel (the Channel) at: 1) the 

northern, San Rafael Site which is situated in southwest of the San Rafael Avenue overpass 

of the Channel; and 2) the southern, San Pascual Site which is situated southeast of the San 

Pascual Avenue overpass of the Channel and on the east side of the Channel. The project is 

located in Pasadena and South Pasadena. 

Reference: LAC231201-12 

Comment Period:  5/15/2025 - 6/13/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Preparation of a 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Pasadena 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

LAC250514-02 

Arroyo Seco Water Reuse Project 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of a constructing regional water recycling facility that would be capable 

of producing high quality water to refill underground reservoirs for use in the event of an 

earthquake or other emergency that disrupts imported water supplies. The project is located 

at 24501 South Figueroa Street on the northwest corner of South Figueroa Street and West 

Lomita Boulevard in Carson and encompasses unincorporated areas of Los Angeles, Orange, 

and San Bernardino counties in the designated AB 617 Wilmington, Carson, West Long 

Beach community. 

Staff previously provided comments for the Draft Environmental Impact Report, which 

can be viewed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2022/november/LAC221004-04.pdf  

Reference: LAC250501-03 and LAC221004-04 

Comment Period:  5/14/2025 - 7/14/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

The 

Metropolitan 

Water District 

of Southern 

California 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

LAC250515-01 

Pure Water Southern 

California Program# 

124

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2022/november/LAC221004-04.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2022/november/LAC221004-04.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-11 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of a cleaning up the Coca Cola Montebello Site to remove  volatile 

organic compounds from the soil, soil vapor and groundwater. The project is located at 666 

Union Street in Montebello. 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/20/2025 - 6/20/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250520-01 

Coca Cola Montebello Site 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of cleaning up the Norwalk-Koontz-Florence SFS facility to remove 

tetrachlorethylene, trichlorethylene, and other volatile organic compounds from the soil, soil 

vapor and groundwater. The project is located at 10801 Norwalk Boulevard in Santa Fe 

Springs. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/20/2025 - 6/6/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250520-02 

Norwalk-Koontz-Florence SFS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of conducting a community survey of the Interim Remedial Action Plan 

for the former BCI Coca-Cola Bottling Company of Los Angeles. The site has been found to 

have elevated levels of volatile organic compounds. The 9.47-acre site is located at 1334 

South Central Avenue in Los Angeles. 

 

 

 
 

Comment Period:  5/29/2025 - 6/23/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250528-01 

Community Survey – BCI Coca-

Cola Bottling Company of Los 

Angeles 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of rehabilitating and replacing the Santiago Creek Dam outlet tower and 

spillway facilities and to modify the embankment to permit operation of the facilities for a 

long-term water benefit. The project is located at Santiago Creek Dam, at the northwest end of 

Irvine Lake, in unincorporated Orange County. 

 

References: ORC230510-04 

 

        
       Comment Period:  4/28/2025 - 6/11/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Availability of a 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

Irvine Ranch 

Water District 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

ORC250502-05 

Santiago Creek Dam Improvement 

Project 

125



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-12

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of investigating dam safety improvements to reduce dam safety risk and 

providing a basis from which to recommend a plan for implementation. The project is located in 

Carbon Canyon. 

References: ORC100831-07 and ORC100105-03 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Initial Project 

Consultation 

U.S. Army 

Corps of 

Engineers 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250502-06 

Carbon Canyon Dam 

Safety Modification 

Study 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of cleaning up metals and volatile organic compounds from the S & S 

Polishing and Plating facility  located at 1503 North Miller Street in Anaheim. 

Reference: ORC250312-07 

Comment Period:  5/8/2025 - 6/6/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250506-06 

S & S Polishing and Plating 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of demolishing existing gas-to-energy facility structures and constructing 

a wireless telecommunication facility on 4.14 acres. The project is located at 20662 Newport 

Coast Drive near the northeast corner of San Joaquin Hills Road and Newport Coast Drive in 

Newport Beach. 

References: ORC180403-15; ORC160928-01 and ORC160804-05 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Response to 

Comments 

City of 

Newport 

Beach 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

ORC250514-03 

Coyote Canyon Landfill Gas to 

Energy Plant Project 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of: : 1) demolishing, abandoning, removing, relocating, reconfiguring, 

replacing, and converting various components of the existing lift station; 2) constructing a new 

wet well,  new electrical building, two new emergency discharge manholes,  a new force main 

connection and a new access driveway on Avenida Sevilla; and 3) removing 15 trees. The 

project is located on 0.16 acre at the existing Aliso Creek Lift Station, immediately north of 

Avenida Sevilla overcrossing of Aliso Creek in the Laguna Woods Village in Laguna Woods . 

Reference: ORC250304-05 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Final Initial 

Study/Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

El Toro 

Water 

District 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250520-03 

Aliso Creek Lift Station Improvement 

Projects 

126



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-13

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC

. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of expanding the restoration project at the Salton Sea under the Species 

Conservation Habitat Project's East Pond. The project is located on or around the wetlands, 

shores, rivers, natural habitats, entries, dust suppression and other projects of the Salton Sea 

and in the County of Riverside, which is bounded by Mecca to the north, State Route 111 to 

the east, State Route 78 to the south, and State Route 86 to the west. The project is also within 

the designated AB 617 Eastern Coachella Valley community. 

References: RVC240910-04, RVC240423-01, RVC240326-06, RVC240321-02, and 

RVC230103-09 

Comment Period: N/A  Public Hearing: N/A 

Other California 

Natural 

Resources 

Agency 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250502-08 

2025 Annual Report - Salton 

Sea Management Program 

(SSMP)# 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of constructing and operating a new water pipeline to improve operational 

reliability for the existing transmission pipelines and to support the operation of the proposed 

Goetz Road water storage tank. The 4.4 linear mile site stretches along Valley Boulevard from 

the existing Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Desalination Complex, which is 

located at 29285 Valley Boulevard in Menifee, to the intersection of McLaughlin Road and 

Goetz Road in Perris. 

References: RVC240221-19; RVC151013-05 and RVC150203-03 

Comment Period:  5/1/2025 - 6/2/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Intent to 

Adopt a 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

Eastern 

Municipal 

Water District 

(EMWD) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250506-09 

Valley Boulevard Potable 

Water Transmission 

Pipelines Project 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of improving the domestic water distribution system by replacing 

approximately 14.5 miles of existing asbestos cement pipe and ductile iron pipe domestic 

water transmission mains with approximately 15.4 miles of 24-inch diameter DIP water 

transmission main to serve areas of Salton Sea Beach, Desert Shores, Salton-City, and 

unincorporated areas in Riverside and Imperial Counties on the west side of the Salton Sea. 

The proposed pipeline would connect to existing watermains on Service Road and Golden 

Avenue and would terminates at  Reservoir No. 1092 at the end of Diamond Avenue in Salton 

City and Imperial County. The project is located near postmile 61 and Highway 86 Right of 

Way, in the unincorporated cities of Riverside County and Imperial County. 

Comment Period:  5/9/2025 - 6/9/2025 Public Hearing: 7/22/2025 

Notice of 

Intent to 

Adopt a 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

Coachella 

Valley Water 

District 

Under 

review, 

may 

submit 

comments 

RVC250513-06 

Highway 86 Water Transmission 

Main 

127



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-14

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of a permit renewal that requires the facility to monitor and maintain a 

hazardous waste landfill that was created to contain waste from the former steel mill. The 

Chemwest Upper Ponds/Consolidated Waste Cell, Aboveground Storage Tanks, Chrome 

Ponds and Adjacent Areas, cap area, covers an area of approximately 29 acres. The project is 

located at 13557 San Bernardino Avenue in Fontana. 

References:SBC240821-11; SBC190822-03 and SBC160719-04 

Comment Period:  5/27/2025 - 6/18/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Community 

Survey 

Department 

of Toxic 

Substances 

Control 

(DTSC) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250527-07 

Kaiser Ventures, Inc. 

Utilities The project consists of constructing a battery energy storage system that would be capable of 

storing up to 250 megawatts (MW) of electricity for up to 4 hours (up to 1,000 MW-hours) on 

12.4 acres. The project is bounded by Saddleback Church Rancho Capistrano to the north, 

Interstate 5 to the east, Oso Creak to the east and south, and the city limits of San Juan 

Capistrano to the west in San Juan Capistrano. 

Reference: ORC240419-01 

Comment Period:  5/3/2025 - 6/2/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Preparation of 

a Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

California 

Energy 

Commission 

Under 

review, may 

submit 

comments 

ORC250506-08 

Compass Energy Storage Project 

Transportation The project consists of amending the language in the Implementation Plan and Land Use Plan 

of the certified Local Coastal Program. The terms “funicular” and “inclined elevator” will be 

replaced with Strand Transit System (STS). The project is located in Orange County. 

Comment Period:  4/30/2025 - 5/6/2025 Public Hearing: 5/7/2025 

Other California 

Coastal 

Commission 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250502-07 

LCP Amendment No. LCP -5 DPT-

25- 0008-1 - Strand Transit System

128



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-15 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC. 

LEAD AGENCY COMMENT 

STATUS 

Transportation The project consists of repairing, restoring, and improving severely damaged transportation 

assets caused by the Silverado fire and improving the resilience of existing roadway assets 

within fire severity zone. The project begins on State Route 133 from Post Mile (PM) 11.4 to 

PM13.6 and on State Route 241 from PM24.5 to PM35.7 in the cities of Irvine, Orange, and 

unincorporated Orange County.  

 

 

 

    Comment Period:  5/1/2025 - 5/30/2025                               Public Hearing: N/A 

Initial 

Study/Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

California 

Department of 

Transportation 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250506-05 

SR-133/SR-241 Permanent 

Restoration Project 

Transportation The project consists of installing multi-use trails in Santa Ana River Trail Phases 2, 2A, and 

3A to construct a 2.78-mile gap in the 110-mile planned alignment connecting and narrowing 

the distance from existing trails upstream and downstream of Prado Basin. The project is 

located in the Prado Dam Flood Control Basin in Riverside County. 

 

Reference: RVC250423-08 

 

 
Comment Period:  4/24/2025 - 5/24/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of Intent 

to Adopt/Notice 

of Availability 

of a Mitigated 

Negative 

Riverside County 

Regional Park and 

Open-Space 

District 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250501-04 

Santa Ana River Trail (SART) - 

Segments 2, 2A, and 3A 

Transportation The project consists of installing a multi-use trail in the Santa Ana River Trail Segment 3B to 

construct a 0.66-mile gap in the 110-mile planned alignment connecting and narrowing the 

distance from existing trails upstream and downstream of Prado Basin. The project is located 

in the Prado Dam Flood Control Basin in Riverside County. 

 

 

       Comment Period:  4/24/2025 - 5/24/2025                            Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of Intent 

to Adopt/Notice 

of Availability 

of a Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

Riverside County 

Regional Park and 

Open-Space 

District 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250501-06 

Santa Ana River Trail (SART) - 

Segment 3B 

129



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-16

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of: 1) renovating existing buildings; 2) demolishing and/or replacing 

existing buildings in the same general physical location; 3) minimally constructing new 

buildings on undeveloped sites at the core of the campus; and 4) retaining most buildings in 

their existing locations and configurations. The total net increase is approximately 600,000 

gross square feet (GSF) of building space and approximately 1,404 new student beds. At 

buildout there will be approximately 6.6 million GSF of building space. The project is located 

on the main campus at 3801 West Temple Avenue in Pomona and unincorporated Los 

Angeles. 

      Comment Period:  5/7/2025 - 6/20/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

The Board 

of Trustees 

of the 

California 

State 

University 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250507-01 

California State Polytechnic 

University, Pomona Campus Master 

Plan Update 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of building replacements, demolition, renovation, and modernization to 

address critical physical concerns and provide facilities that are safe, secure, and better 

aligned with the current instructional program. The 23.63-acre site is located at 7850 

Melrose Avenue in Los Angeles. 

 Comment Period:  5/7/2025 - 6/6/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of Intent 

to Adopt a 

Negative 

Declaration 

Los Angeles 

Unified 

School 

District 

(LAUSD) 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250508-01 

Fairfax High School 

Major Modernization 

Project 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of constructing a 56,366 square foot public charter school, which includes 

classrooms, administrative office space, 1,753 square foot multipurpose room, gymnasium, 

square foot play yard area, parking spaces, bicycle parking spaces, loading space, concrete 

cement wall, wrought iron fencing, vehicle gates, a pedestrian gate and net, tree removal, 

25,253 square feet of landscaping, and 47,473 square feet of hardscaping on 2.5 acres. The 

project is located at 16600-16602 West Vanowen Street and 16601 West Archwood Street in 

the Reseda and West Van Nuys. 

      Comment Period:  5/9/2025 - 5/27/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Los 

Angeles 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250508-02 

16600-16602 West Vanowen Street 

130



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-17

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of developing a bike park with 15 miles of trails inter-dispersed 

throughout the site and two activity/programming areas, Haskell Bike Park Core and the Blue 

Cloud Trailhead. The project is located in the northern portion of Santa Clarita and a portion of 

unincorporated Los Angeles County on approximately 380 acres. 

Comment Period:  5/12/2025 - 6/12/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of Intent 

to Adopt an 

Initial 

Study/Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Santa 

Clarita 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250513-04 

Haskell Canyon Bike Park 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of subdividing two lots totaling 853,737 gross square feet (19.6 acres) 

and 830,113 net square feet (19.06 acres) that currently has a single-family home, a three-car 

garage, and a private school. The existing single family home will remain, and the private 

school will be converted into a single-family home. An additional 11 single-family homes 

will be constructed for a total of 13 single family homes on site. The project is located at 

8100, 8150, and 8160 West McGroarty Street in La Tuna Canyon. 

 Comment Period: N/A  Public Hearing: N/A 

Initial 

Study/Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Los 

Angeles 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250514-01 

8100, 8150, and 8160 W. McGroarty 

Street, 10000 N. McVine Terrace 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of removing all existing improvements and redeveloping the site with a 

5.06-acre surf lagoon that would provide four distinct surf areas surrounded by viewing 

platforms, seating, three warming pools and a spa. The project also includes developing:  1) a 

three-story amenity clubhouse building that would be approximately 50,341 net square feet; 2) 

a two-story, 9,432 net square foot athlete accommodations; and 3) a basement for storage of 

surfboards, golf carts, and golf starter. The project is located at 3100 Irvine Avenue in Newport 

Beach. 

Reference: ORC241113-09 

Comment Period:  5/23/2025 - 7/7/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Newport 

Beach 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250522-02 

Snug Harbor Surf Park 

131



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-18

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of constructing a new overcrossing bridge on Interstate 215 at Ellis 

Avenue with various alternatives. The project is located along Interstate 215 at Ellis 

Avenue, 0.9 mile south of the Interstate 215 and the east interchange of State Route74 in 

Perris. 

Comment Period:  5/19/2025 - 6/19/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Perris Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250519-01 

Interstate 215/Ellis 

Avenue Overcrossing 

Project 

Institutional (schools, government, 

etc.) 

The project consists of: 1) demolishing and removing landscaping, applying concrete and 

asphalt making improvements to park equipment, the swimming pool, pathways, lighting, and 

landscaping on 4.04 acres at Fritz Burns Park; and 2) demolishing and removing three existing 

buildings and constructing a 12,380 square foot building on 2.82 acres at the City of La Quinta’s 

Maintenance and Operations Yard.  , , . The project is located on the southeast corner of Avenue 

52 and Avenida Bermudas in La Quinta. 

Comment Period:  5/27/2025 - 6/16/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of La 

Quinta 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250521-05 

Fritz Burns Park and City 

Maintenance and Operations: Yard 

Improvements Project 

Medical Facility The project consists of constructing a three-story 50,800 square foot medical office building 

on five acres. The project is located at the northeast corner of Rouse Road and Encanto Drive 

in Menifee. 

     Comment Period: N/A  Public Hearing: 5/28/2025 

Other City of 

Menifee 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250520-05 

Kaiser Permanente Medical 

Office (PLN24-0103) 

132



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-19 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC

. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Retail The project consists of constructing a 206,756 square foott self-storage building with 551 

rentable recreational vehicle (RV) parking stalls and 41 automobile parking stalls on 14.20 

acres. The project is located at 3701 Pacific Place near the northwest corner of North Pacific 

Place and Ambeco Road in Lonb Beach within the designated AB 617 Wilmington, Carson, 

West Long Beach community. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental 

Impact Report, which can be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-15-draft-eir-pacific-place-project.pdf.  

 

References: LAC240801-15; LAC230607-01 and LAC201016-01 

 

Comment Period:  5/14/2025 - 6/5/2025 Public Hearing: 6/5/2025 

Other City of Long 

Beach 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250515-02 

Pacific Place Project# 

Retail The project consists of providing businesses forgivable loans/grants for the rehabilitation of 

deteriorated structures in a designated commercial area known as a Job and Economic 

Development Initiative (JEDI) Zone, to revitalize targeted underserved neighborhoods and 

create and/or preserve jobs. The project is located along the Reseda Boulevard Corridor 

between Van Owen St. (to the south) and Gault St. (to the north) in Council District 4 in the 

Reseda neighborhood of Los Angeles. 

 

Comment Period:  5/21/2025 - 5/28/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other City of Los 

Angeles 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250521-01 

JEDI Zone Facade 

Improvement Program 

Retail The project consists of constructing a Panera Bread restaurant with a drive-thru totaling 

approximately 3,145 square feet. The project is generally located at the northwest corner of 

Temecula Parkway and Bedford Court intersection, in Temecula. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of Temecula Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250513-07 

PA25-0049 

133

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-15-draft-eir-pacific-place-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/september-2024/lac240801-15-draft-eir-pacific-place-project.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-20 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC

. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Retail The project consists of constructing 168 residential units, a hotel with 376 rooms, a parking 

facility with five levels, 220,000 square feet for office uses, 12,875 square feet for restaurant 

uses, 20,690 square feet for grocery store uses, and 28,416 for fitness center uses on 10 acres. 

The project is located on the southwest corner of Orange Street and 3rd Street in Riverside. 

 

Reference: RVC241010-08 

 

 

 

 

      Comment Period:  5/23/2025 - 7/7/2025                                   Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Availability 

of a Draft 

Environment

al Impact 

Report 

City of Riverside Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250520-06 

Riverside Alive Project 

Retail The project consists of constructing two mixed-use developments: 1) a 1,025 square foot 

building; and 2) an 8,200 square foot building on 8.63 acres. The project also includes parking 

spaces, drive-thru lanes, a bypass exit lane, two trash enclosures, and a customer walk-up 

window on the north side of the building. The project is located south of Newport Road, east of 

Bradley and west of Evans Road in Menifee. 

 
 

Comment Period:  5/27/2025 - 6/12/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of Menifee Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250527-03 

PLN25-0077 and PLN25-0078 

(PR24- 

0236) Dutch Bros. Coffee and 

Mixed- Use Building 

  

Retail The project consists of constructing two restaurants and landscaping, which includes: 1) a 

3,655 square foot McDonald’s Restaurant and a drive-thru on a 0.89-acre parcel; 2) a 1,266 

square foot Starbucks Coffee Shop with a drive-through on a 0.63-acre parcel; and 3) a five-

foot reduction to the 15-foot required setback along Cedar Avenue. The project is located on 

Cedar Avenue in San Bernardino County. 

 

      Comment Period: N/A                                                                Public Hearing: 6/5/2025 

Other County of 

San 

Bernardino 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250527-06 

PROJ-2025-00058/PROJ-2025-00056 

134



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-21 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of a constructing a seven-story building tohouse Transition Age Youth. 

The project is located in the Lincoln Heights area of East Los Angeles, at 216-224 South 

Avenue 24 in Los Angeles. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  4/28/2025 - 5/13/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Finding of No 

Significant Impact 

City of Los 

Angeles 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250501-02 

The Grace Villas Housing Project 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of: 1) demolishing a two-story building and an existing three-story 

historic Craftsman Home due to fire damage; 2) constructing a new one-story home within the 

same footprint; 3)constructing a six-story building with 127 restricted units with 31 permanent 

supported housing, 95 units for low-income households, and one 1-bedroom unit to be 

designated as a manager’s unrestricted unit. The project is located at 1226–1224 Menlo 

Avenue in Los Angeles. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/1/2025 - 5/16/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Finding of No 

Significant Impact 

City of Los 

Angeles 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250502-03 

1216-1224 Menlo Avenue 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing a new mixed-use building with 369 residential units and 

a 20,740 square foot commercial area. The project is located at 740-780 Garvey Avenue and 

220 S Atlantic Boulevard in Monterey Park. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/2/2025 - 5/19/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of 

Monterey 

Park 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250506-01 

Tentative Tract Map 84680 

135



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-22 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of subdividing a 9.7-acre property into three lots for future construction of 

106 residential units, 70 apartments, 26 townhomes, and 4,000 square feet of commercial uses. 

The project is located at 23755 Newhall Avenue in Santa Clarita. 

 

 

 

 
 

Comment Period:  4/29/2025 - 5/20/2025 Public Hearing: 5/20/2025 

Notice of 

Intent to Adopt 

a Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Santa 

Clarita 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250506-04 

Newhall Avenue Mixed Use Project 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing and subdividing three single-family condominiums and 

converting one lot into four lots. The project is located at 1585 Sombrero Drive in Monterey 

Park. 

 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/14/2025 - 5/29/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of 

Monterey 

Park 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250513-03 

Tentative Tract Map 84666 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of expanding a mixed-use community and performing arts center by 

constructing: 1) The Forster & El Camino Mixed Use Project on a 3.17-acre vacant site; and 2) 

a Performing Arts Center on a 1.88-acre site. The project is located at 31878 Camino 

Capistrano in San Juan Capistrano. 

 

Staff previously provided comments on the Draft Environmental Impact Report, which 

can be viewed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2023/november-2023/ORC231011-09.pdf.  

 

References: ORC231011-09 and ORC210824-02 

 

Comment Period:  4/24/2025 - 6/9/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Availability of 

a Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of San 

Juan 

Capistrano 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250502-04 

El Camino Specific Plan Amendment 

136

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/november-2023/ORC231011-09.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2023/november-2023/ORC231011-09.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-23 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing 142 residential units on 6.12 acres. The project will also 

include private roadways, parking, pedestrian walkways, common space, amenities, 

landscaping and a recreational amenity area, including approximately 93,500 square feet of 

open space. The project is located at 3150 Bear Street, in the northern portion of Costa Mesa. 

 

 

  Comment Period:  5/1/2025 - 5/31/2025                Public Hearing: N/A 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Costa 

Mesa 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250507-02 

Bear Street Residential Project 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing 73 residential units on 3.39 acres. This includes nine 

buildings, a two-car garage, a private open space for each unit, 18 guest parking spaces, 

common open space, landscaping, and public space. The project is located at 13751 and 

13841 Red Hill Avenue in Tustin. 

 

Staff previously provided comments during the Notice of Availability of a Draft EIR review 

period and Notice of Preparation for the project review period , which can be accessed at: 
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2018/deirredhillavenue-031418.pdf and 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2017/nop-redhillave-042817.pdf.  

 

References: ORC250415-08; ORC180807-03; ORC180208-05; ORC180202-02;ORC170411-

10 and ORC170411-10 

 

 

Comment Period: N/A                                             Public Hearing: 5/13/2025 

Other City of Tustin Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250527-01 

RAR 2025-0001, DR 2024-0014, DA 

2024-0004, SUB 2024-0005 TTM 

19361, TTM 19361, & Density 

Bonus requests 

137

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2018/deirredhillavenue-031418.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2017/nop-redhillave-042817.pdf


ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-24

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC

. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of developing two parcels on a 4.71-acre site by constructing new 

multiple family residences comprised of  a 70-unit apartment complex with 14 buildings 

with a total floor area of approximately 92,984 square feet and a building footprint of 54,802 

square feet. The project is located east of C Avenue, 180 feet north of Lime Street and 890 

feet south of Muscatel Street in the central portion of Hesperia. 

Comment Period:  5/6/2025 - 6/4/2025    Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Intent to 

Adopt a 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Hesperia Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250507-04 

Taylor Apartment Complex 

(SPR24- 00007) 

Retail The project consists ofa: 1) constructing a mixed-use building with commercial space 

including a new hotel; 2) constructing 174 single family homes and 26 townhomes;  and 3) 

preserving existing historic structures. The project is located at 230 W. Devonshire Avenue 

and is bounded by Devonshire Avenue, State Street, Gilbert Street and Oakland Avenue in 

Hemet. 

Comment Period:  5/12/2025 - 5/14/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of Hemet Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250512-08 

Preliminary Review (PR) 2025-

012 Hemet Stock Farm 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of subdividing 17.7 acres into 15 residential lots. The project is located 

to the west of Santa Fe Avenue, between Menlo Avenue and E Fruitvale Avenue in  Hemet. 

Comment Period:  5/14/2025 - 5/21/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of Hemet Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250513-08 

Preliminary Review 2025-006 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of developing a Highway 111 Corridor Specific Plan and revising the 

Development Code to transform the area into a vibrant mixed-use corridor. The project is 

located approximately two miles along Highway 11 between Washington Street to the west, 

Jefferson Street to the east, the Whitewater Wash to the north, and Avenue 48 to the south, in 

La Quinta. 

    Comment Period:  5/19/2025 - 6/19/2025  Public Hearing: 6/24/2025 

Notice of 

Intent to 

Adopt a 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of La Quinta Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250520-04 

Highway 111 Corridor Specific Plan 

and Development Code 

138



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-25

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of developing a 150-unit affordable house community on five acres 

which will be comprised of: 1) seven residential buildings oriented around central 

courtyards, connected by an accessible paseo network; 2) amenities including a pool, 

community center, laundry facilities, a tot lot, gardens and bicycle storage; and 3) on-site 

supportive services provided through the Hope Through Housing Foundation. The project 

is located south of Via Vail to the southeast of the Rancho Mirage Dog Park in Rancho 

Mirage. 

 Comment Period:  5/23/2025 - 6/23/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of 

Rancho 

Mirage 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250521-04 

Rancho Mirage Affordable 

Housing Family Apartments 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing 232 residential units and 24,000 square feet of 

commercial/retail space within 33-acres with landscaping, parking and infrastructure facilities 

and amenities. The project is located to the southeast of the intersection of Limonite Avenue 

and Wineville Avenue (bordered by Limonite Avenue to the north, Wineville Avenue to the 

west and, 63rd Street to the south, and a commercial self-storage center to the east in Jurupa 

Valley. 

Comment Period: N/A Public Hearing: N/A 

Other City of 

Jurupa 

Valley 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250527-05 

Wineville Property 

Development Project/Master 

Application 22248 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project seeks a major variance for a two-story garage deck to encroach 10 feet into the 

15-foot west street side yard setback on a 4.57-acre parcel. The project is located in the low-

density residential land use category and qualifies as Lake Arrowhead/single residential with

a 14,000 square feet minimum zoning district. The project is located at 369 Summit Road in

Lake Arrowhead.

Comment Period:  4/30/2025 - 5/5/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Other County of 

San 

Bernardino 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250502-11 

PVAR-2024-00040 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of rehabilitating a 0.45-acre site with six residential units located on two 

parcels. The project is located within a Federal Emergency Management Agency Zone X and 

is within the 500-year floodplain at 1139 and 1141 West Mill Street in the southwest portion of 

San Bernardino within the designated AB 617 San Bernardino, Muscoy community. 

Reference: SBC250318-06 

     Comment Period:  5/6/2025 - 5/7/2025   Public Hearing: N/A 

Other City of San 

Bernardino 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250506-10 

1139 and 1141 West Mill Street 

Residential Rehabilitation 

Project# 

139



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-26 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of : 1) constructing a self-storage facility along Euclid Avenue frontage; 

2) constructing a mixed-use development consisting of 20,800 square feet of commercial 

retail, a 132,438 square foot self-storage facility, and a 265-unit residential rental community 

consisting of a three- to four-story apartment building at a density of 26.9 dwelling units per 

acre; 3) subdividing an approximately 9.82-acre site into five lots ranging from approximately 

28,000 square feet to 218,000 square feet; and 4) requesting to allow two fast food drive-thru 

restaurant along the Shaefer Avenue Project frontage. The project is located on the north side 

of Schaefer Avenue between Euclid Avenue and Fern Avenue in Chino.  

 

Reference: SBC230214-11 

 

Comment Period:  5/14/2025 - 5/21/2025 Public Hearing: 5/21/2025 

Other City of 

Chino 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250513-09 

Eden Mixed-Use Development 

Project 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of a residential development within 7.6 net acres of the 79.2 gross-acre 

site with: 1) a maximum buildout of 1,557 units and a potential target buildout of 940 units 

within the specified Planning Areas; 2) an Implementing Project consisting of 920 units on 

67.2 net acres of the site; 3)  a Tentative Tract Map (TTM No. 20670) which subdivides the 

38-net acre portion of the site north of Southern California Edison on into 86 numbered lots 

(Lot 1- 86); 4) 21 lettered lots (Lot A-X), and three street/alley lots; and 5) additional 

improvements which include roadways, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, parking, landscaping 

parks, recreation facilities and utility infrastructure. The project is located at the northwest 

corner of the intersection of Edison Avenue to the south, Walker Avenue to the East and 

agricultural land to the west; and is bounded by Schaefer Avenue to the North in Ontario. 

 

Comment Period:  5/20/2025 - 6/19/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Ontario 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250519-02 

Walker Ranch Specific Plan (File 

Nos. PSP-24-0001 & PMTT24-

0004) 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of subdividing a property for air rights, developing a nine -unit 

condominium complex, and . consolidating two lots into one lot. The project is located at 338-

346 Sefton Avenue in Monterey Park. 

 

 

 

 

Comment Period:  4/30/2025 - 5/13/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of 

Monterey 

Park 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250502-02 

Tentative Tract Map 084721 

140



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-27 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of establishing eight housing opportunity sites, the Main Street Program, 

Old Ranch Country Club Pipeline Project, and Accessory Dwelling Units on a site of 259.45 

acres with 60.06 acres to be developed under a Housing Element and Zoning Code Update. 

The project is located in Seal Beach. 

 

 

     Comment Period:  5/9/2025 - 6/23/2025                              Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Seal 

Beach 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250512-02 

City of Seal Beach Housing 

Element and Zoning Code Update 

Project 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of developing 305 acres with the primary goal of promoting future 

revitalization and reuse of the Washington/Rosemead Boulevard area to support the future 

extension of the E Line (formerly referred to as the Gold Line) to create a compact multi-

modal, mixed-use, and sustainable environment that is a focal point for community 

activity.The project assumes a maximum buildout of 2,336 new residential units and 

approximately 5,889,747square feet of new non-residential uses (commercial, retail, office, 

public facilities, etc.). A General Plan Amendment to update the land use map and a 

Municipal Code Amendment to update the zoning map will be processed in conjunction with 

the proposed Specific Plan Project Area. The project is located in Pico Rivera and is generally 

bound by Washington Boulevard to the north, Rosemead Boulevard to the east, Paramount 

Boulevard to the west, and a BNSF Pico Rivera rail yard to the south. 

 

Comment Period:  5/23/2025 - 7/11/202                                   Public Hearing: N/A 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Pico 

Rivera 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

LAC250522-01 

Washington Boulevard Transit 

Oriented Development Specific Plan 

Project 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of updating the General Plan and evaluating three opportunity areas: the 

Marketplace at Laguna Niguel, the Chet Holifield Federal Building, and the Town Center, 

each serving a district role. The project is located in Laguna Niguel. 

 

 

Comment Period:  5/13/2025 - 6/11/2025                             Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Preparation of a 

Program 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of 

Laguna 

Niguel 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

ORC250512-03 

Laguna Niguel General Plan Update 

141



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

A-28

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC

. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of adjusting the boundary between Joshua Tree/General Commercial Sign 

Control Primary and Joshua Tree/Multiple Residential with a parcel, as specified under the 

General Plan Amendment and Zone Change. The project is located on the northwest corner of 

Sunset Road and Twentynine Palms Highway (State Route 62) in the Joshua Tree Community. 

 Comment Period:  4/16/2025 - 5/16/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Availability 

of a Draft 

Negative 

Declaration 

County of 

San 

Bernardino 

Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250501-07 

Joshua Tree General Plan 

Amendment and Zone Change 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing 439 single family homes on 94.3 acres. The project is 

located east of California Road, north of Olive Road, south of Simpson Road, and west of 

Fuego Road, in Hemet. 

Comment Period:  5/12/2025 - 5/14/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Site Plan City of Hemet Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

RVC250512-09 

Preliminary Review (PR) 2025-

013 Simpson by Meritage 

Homes 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of adopting the City’s Climate Action Plan (CAP) to identify 

numerous programs and policies for the public and private sector which seek 

to significantly reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The project is located in 
Redlands. 

References: SBC170509-05 and SBC160913-03 

Comment Period:  5/1/2025 - 5/30/2025 Public Hearing: 6/17/2025 

Notice of 

Intent to 

Adopt a 

Negative 

Declaration 

City of Redlands Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250507-05 

Climate Action Plan Update Project 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of: 1) adopting Resolutions No. 8687, No, 8688, No. 8689, and No. 8690; 

2) introducing Ordinance No. 2983 for Zone Change No. 479 to change the zones of nine

parcels to Multi-family Residential (MFR); sixteen parcels to MFR; one parcel to MFR and a

portion of one parcel to Public Institutional. The project is applicable to the City of Redlands.

      Comment Period:  4/11/2025 - 4/22/2025  Public Hearing: 6/3/2025 

Other City of Redlands Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250513-10 

2021-2029 Housing Element 

Rezoning Project 

142



ATTACHMENT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES AND STATUS OF REVIEW 

May 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 

Key: 

# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, SBC = San Bernardino County, ALL = All counties within the South Coast AQMD jurisdiction, and ODP = 

Project located outside of South Coast AQMD jurisdiction 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting 

2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report. 

A-29 

 

 

 

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN 

NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

TYPE 

OF 

DOC

. 

LEAD 
AGENCY 

COMMENT 

STATUS 

Plans and Regulations The project consists of: 1) developing 65 single family residences, private community facilities 

and ancillary features on a 9.16-acre portion of the 15th Street flood control basin; 2) 

modifying 6.85-acres on the 15th Street flood control basin east of the proposed features to 

retain the basin’s stormwater and flood control capacity/improvements; 3) extending 15th 

Street from the southwest corner of the site to Campus Avenue; and 4) developing a 0.15-acre 

public pocket park on 15th Street near the north end of Fernando Avenue, as specified in the 

Villa Serena Specific Plan. The project is located on the 20.3-acre 15th Street flood control 

basin south of Upland Hills Country Club in the central-eastern portion of Upland. 

 

References: SBC250408-06 and SBC241105-06 

 

    Comment Period: N/A                                                     Public Hearing: 6/9/2025 

Other City of Upland Document 

reviewed - 

No 

comments 

sent 

SBC250520-07 

Villa Serena Specific Plan 

 

143



ATTACHMENT B 

ACTIVE PROJECTS WITH CONTINUED REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS 

PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES 

Key: 
# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, and SBC = San Bernardino County 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting
2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

B-1

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD AGENCY COMMENT 

STATUS 

Waste and Water-related The project consists of constructing 19.6 miles of sewer pipelines, lift stations, and staging areas. 

The project is located within the Soboba Band of Luiseno Indian’s 8,320-acre Reservation and 

unincorporated area of Riverside County in San Jacinto.  

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/rvc250414-02.pdf  

 Comment Period:  4/14/2025 - 5/9/2025  Public Hearing: N/A 

Mitigated 

Negative 

Declaration 

County of Riverside Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/9/2025 

RVC250414-02 

Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians' Septic 

to Sewer Conversion Project 

Industrial and Commercial The project consists of an industrial site, a residential site, and a golf course site, each with 

demolition, construction, and renovation activities. The three project sites comprise 92.12 acres 

located at 919 Sierra Madre Avenue in Azusa. 

Reference: LAC231227-04 

Staff previously provided comments on the Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact 

Report which can be accessed at: https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-

letters/2024/january-2024/LAC231227-04.pdf  

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/lac250415-07.pdf

Comment Period:  4/11/2025 - 5/27/2025 Public Hearing: 7/9/2025 

Notice of 

Availability of a 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Azusa Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/23/2025 

LAC250415-07 

Azusa Greens Redevelopment Project 

Retail The project consists of constructing: 1) a hotel comprised of 500 guest suites with balconies and 

amenities; 2) an entertainment/pool deck with amenities; and 3) a five-level parking garage with a 

total of 538 spaces inclusive of spaces available for valet parking. The 3.72-acre project is located 

at the northwest corner of Harbor Boulevard and Twintree Avenue, along the west and east sides of 

and on Thackery Drive in Garden Grove. 

Reference: ORC220609-04 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/orc250422-03.pdf  

Comment Period:  4/18/2025 - 5/19/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

Notice of 

Preparation of a 

Supplemental 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Garden 

Grove 

Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/16/2025 

ORC250422-03 

B-2 Hotel Project

Retail The project consists of constructing and operating eight commercial and retail buildings on 10.55 

acres which includes: 1) a grocery store (59,371 square feet); 2) three quick serve restaurant 

buildings (7,067 total square feet); 3) three retail buildings (30,113 total square feet); 4) one 

convenience store with an eight-pump fueling station (4,913 square feet); and 5) 489 parking 

spaces with 18 accessible spaces. The project is located on the southeast corner of North Perris 

Boulevard and Placentia Avenue in Perris. 

Notice of 

Availability of a 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

City of Perris Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/23/2025 

RVC250415-04 

Vallarta Market Place Community 

Shopping Center 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/rvc250415-04.pdf 

Comment Period:  4/11/2025 - 5/26/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

DRAFT VERSION

144

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/rvc250414-02.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/january-2024/LAC231227-04.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2024/january-2024/LAC231227-04.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/lac250415-07.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/orc250422-03.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/rvc250415-04.pdf


ATTACHMENT B 

ACTIVE PROJECTS WITH CONTINUED REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS 

PREPARED BY OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES 

Key: 
# = Project has potential environmental justice concerns due to the nature and/or location of the project. 

LAC = Los Angeles County, ORC = Orange County, RVC = Riverside County, and SBC = San Bernardino County 

Project Notes: 

1. Disposition may change prior to Governing Board Meeting
2. Documents received by the CEQA Intergovernmental Review program but not requiring review are not included in this report.

B-2

SOUTH COAST AQMD LOG-IN NUMBER 

PROJECT TITLE 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION TYPE OF 

DOC. 

LEAD AGENCY COMMENT 

STATUS 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing 323 lots in three areas on 328.7 combined acres. The project 

includes 281 residential lots, 33 Homeowner Association (HOA) lots, four water quality basin 

lots, three Los Angeles County Flood Control lots, one water tank lot, and one Santa Clarita 

Valley Water Agency lot. Area 1 is located on the northwest corner of Bouquet Canyon Road 

and Vasquez Road. Area 2 is located on the northeast corner of Bouquet Canyon Road and 

Vasquez Road. Lastly, Area 3 is located on the southeast corner of Bouquet Canyon Road and 

Vasquez Road. All areas are located in Santa Clarita. 

Reference: LAC200423-09 

Notice of 

Preparation of 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

County of Los 

Angeles 

Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/14/2025 

LAC250404-01 

Bouquet Canyon Residential Project 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/south-coast-aqmd-

comments---nop-deir-bouquet-canyon-residential-project.pdf  

Comment Period:  4/7/2025 - 5/19/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

General Land Use (residential, etc.) The project consists of constructing 694 residential units, an 8.97-acre public park, 3.49 acres of 

manufactured slopes, 16.06 acres of drainage and water quality features, 61.42 acres designated 

to Open Space-Conservation Habitat, and 18.65 acres of major roadways. The 196.05-acre project 

is located on the northwest corner of Keller Road at Winchester Road in unincorporated Riverside 

County. 

References: RVC210901-06; RVC210720-10; RVC121121-01; RVC110810-05; and RVC100817-
04 

Notice of 

Preparation of a 

Draft 

Environment 

Impact Report 

County of Riverside Comment 

letter sent 

on 

5/2/2025 

RVC250402-08 

Keller Crossing 

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/rvc250402-08.pdf  

Comment Period:  4/3/2025 - 5/3/2025 Public Hearing: N/A 

145

https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/south-coast-aqmd-comments---nop-deir-bouquet-canyon-residential-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/south-coast-aqmd-comments---nop-deir-bouquet-canyon-residential-project.pdf
https://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/comment-letters/2025/may-2025/rvc250402-08.pdf


ATTACHMENT C PROPOSED AIR PERMIT PROJECTS FOR 

WHICH SOUTH COAST AQMD IS CEQA LEAD AGENCY 

THROUGH MAY 31, 2025 

C-1

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROPONENT TYPE OF 

DOCUMENT 

STATUS CONSULTANT 

Quemetco is proposing to modify its existing South Coast 

AQMD permits to allow the facility to recycle more batteries 

and to eliminate the existing daily idle time of the furnaces. The 

proposed project will increase the rotary feed drying furnace 

feed rate limit from 600 to 750 tons per day and increase the 

amount of total coke material allowed to be processed. In 

addition, the project will allow the use of petroleum coke in lieu 

of or in addition to calcined coke and remove one existing 

emergency diesel-fueled internal combustion engine (ICE) and 

install two new emergency natural gas-fueled ICEs. 

Quemetco Environmental Impact 

Report (EIR) 

The Draft EIR was released for a 124-day public 

review and comment period from October 14, 

2021 to February 15, 2022 and approximately 

200 comment letters were received. 

South Coast AQMD held two community 

meetings on November 10, 2021, and February 

9, 2022, which presented an overview of the 

proposed project, the CEQA process, detailed 

analysis of the potentially significant 

environmental topic areas, and the existing 

regulatory safeguards. Response to written 

comments submitted relative to the Draft EIR 

and oral comments made at the community 

meetings are currently being prepared by the 

consultant. 

After the Draft EIR public comment and review 

period closed, Quemetco submitted additional 

applications for other permit modifications. 

South Coast AQMD staff is evaluating the 

effect of these new applications on the EIR 

process. 

Trinity 

Consultants 

Sunshine Canyon Landfill is proposing to modify its South 

Coast AQMD permits for its active landfill gas collection and 

control system to accommodate the increased collection of 

landfill gas. The proposed project will: 1) install two new low- 

emission flares with two additional 300-horsepower electric 

blowers; and 2) increase the landfill gas flow limit of the 

existing landfill gas collection system. 

Sunshine Canyon 
Landfill 

Subsequent 

Environmental Impact 

Report (SEIR) 

The consultant has provided an 

updated Draft SEIR which is being 

concurrently reviewed by South Coast 

AQMD staff and the facility. 

Castle 
Environmental 

Consulting 

DRAFT VERSION

146



ATTACHMENT C PROPOSED AIR PERMIT PROJECTS FOR 

WHICH SOUTH COAST AQMD IS CEQA LEAD AGENCY 

THROUGH MAY 31, 2025 

C-2

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROPONENT TYPE OF 

DOCUMENT 

STATUS CONSULTANT 

SoCalGas is proposing to modify their Title V permit for the 

Honor Rancho Natural Gas Storage Field to: 1) replace five 
compressor engines with four new natural gas-fueled 

compressor engines (each rated at 5,000 horsepower (hp)), new 
selective catalytic reduction systems and a new aqueous urea 

storage tank; 2) install two new electric compressors (each 

rated at 5,500 hp) with associated ancillary equipment; 3) 
construct a new building to house the new compressors; 4) 

install an advanced renewable energy system, which will 

include hydrogen electrolyzers, hydrogen storage, and fuel 
blending equipment to mix hydrogen with natural gas which 

will fuel the compressor engines; 5) install a hydrogen vehicle 
fueling station; 6) install an electric microgrid with an energy 

storage system and a natural gas fuel cell system; and 7) install 
one new electricity transmission line which will connect to 
Southern California Edison. 

Southern 

California Gas 

Company 

(SoCalGas) 

Addendum to the 

Final Subsequent 

Environmental 

Assessment for Rule 

1110.2 and Rule 

1100, and the Final 

Program EIR for the 

2016 Air Quality 

Management Plan 

The consultant has prepared a revised 

preliminary draft Addendum which 

South Coast AQMD staff is reviewing. 

Dudek 

Tesoro is proposing modifications to its Carson Operations 

and Wilmington Operations at the Marathon Los Angeles 

Refinery in order to replace aging coke drums, produce 

asphalt binder, and make more high-octane, low vapor 

pressure clean-gasoline blendstock by modifying the fluid 

feed hydrodesulfurization unit, the fluidized catalytic cracking 

unit, and the alkylation units. 

Tesoro 

Refining & 

Marketing 

Company, 

LLC 

(Tesoro) 

Notice of 

Preparation of a 

Draft 

Environmental 

Impact Report 

and Initial Study 

(NOP/IS) 

The consultant has prepared a 

preliminary draft NOP/IS which 

South Coast AQMD staff is 

reviewing. 

Environmental 

Audit, Inc. 

147


	0 - MSC AGENDA 062025
	1 - PR 2304 Commercial Marine Ports
	2 - AB 2766 FY2023-24 Annual Report Presentation
	2A - AB 2766 Annual Report FY23-24
	3 - May 2025_Mobile Source Committee WAIRE Status Report
	4 - R2202 Summary Status Report May 2025
	5 - Intergovernmental Review of Environmental Docs and CEQA Lead Agency - Draft Board Letter
	5A - Intergovernmental Review of Environmental Docs and CEQA Lead Agency - Draft Attachment A
	5B - Intergovernmental Review of Environmental Docs and CEQA Lead Agency - Draft Attachment B
	5C - Intergovernmental Review of Environmental Docs and CEQA Lead Agency - Draft Attachment C



